
City of Chicago 

Office of the City Clerk 

Document Tracking Sheet 

O2014-9424 

Meeting Date: 

Sponsor(s): 

Type: 

Title: 

Committee(s) Assignment: 

11/19/2014 

Emanuel (Mayor) 

Ordinance 

Scope of services, budget and management agreement for 
Special Service Area No. 38 
Committee on Finance 
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To the President and Members of the City Council: 

Vour Committee on Finance having had under consideration 

An ordinance authorizing to establish and enlarge Special Service Area Number 38, to 
approve the imposition of a tax levy, to approve the 2015 budget, and to approve the 
Service Provider Agreement. 

02014-9424 

Amount to be levied: $243,705 

Having had the same under advisement, begs leave to report and recommend that 
your Honorable Body pass the proposed Ordinance Transmitted Herewith 

This recommendation was concurred in by (awiva voce vote 
of members of the committee with dissenting vote(s 

Respectfully submitted 

/ 
Chairman 
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REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE ON FINANCE 
TO THE CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF CHICAGO 



R A H M E M A N U E L 
MAYOR 

O F F I C E O F T H E M A Y O R 

C I T Y OF C H I C A G O 

November 19, 2014 

TO THE HONORABLE, THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF CHICAGO 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

At the request ofthe Commissioner of Planning and Development, 1 transmit herewith 
ordinances authorizing a scope of services, budget and management agreement for Special 
Service Areas 38 and 69. 

Your favorable consideration of these ordinances will be appreciated. 

Very truly yours, 

Mayor 





ORDINANCE 

WHEREAS, special service areas may be established pursuant to Article Vll, Sections 
6(1) and 7(6) of the Constitution of the State of Illinois, and pursuant to the provisions of the 
Special Service Area Tax Law, 35 ILCS 200/27-5 et seq.. as amended from time to time (the 
"Act"), and pursuant to the Property Tax Code, 35 ILCS 200/1-1 et seq.. as amended from time 
to time (the "Property Tax Code"); and 

WHEREAS, on December 7, 2005, the City Council of the City of Chicago (the "City 
Council") enacted an ordinance (the "Establishment Ordinance") which established an area (the 
"Original Area") known and designated as City of Chicago Special Service Area Number 38, and 
authorized the levy of an annual tax for the period beginning in tax year 2005 through and 
including tax year 2014 (the "Initial Period"), not to exceed an annual rate of one hundred sixty 
four thousandths of one percent (0.164%) of the equalized assessed value of the taxable 
property therein (the "Original Services Tax") to provide certain special services in and for the 
Original Area in addition to the services provided by and to the City of Chicago generally (the 
"Original Special Services"); and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is in the best interests of the City (i) to enlarge 
the boundaries of the Original Area (as enlarged, the "Area"), (ii) authorize certain special 
services in the Area distinct from the Original Special Services (the "Special Services"), (iii) 
authorize an increase in the maximum annual rate of the levy to provide the Special Services to 
an amount not to exceed 0.333% of the equalized assessed value of the taxable property within 
the Area (the "Services Tax"), and (iv) to authorize the extension of the time period for which the 
levy of the Services Tax is authorized within the Area from the Initial Period to a period from tax 
year 2014 through and including tax year 2028 (the "Levy Period"); and 

WHEREAS, the Establishment Ordinance provided for the appointment of the 
Northcenter Special Service Area Commission (the "Commission") for the purpose of 
recommending to the City Council a yearly budget based upon the cost of providing the Special 
Services and further to advise the City Council regarding the amount of the Services Tax to be 
levied; and 

WHEREAS, it is the responsibility of the Commission to recommend to the City Council 
an entity to serve as a service provider (the "Service Provider"), the form of an agreement 
between the City and the Service Provider for the provision of Special Services to the Area, and 
a line item budget to be included in the agreement between the City and the Service Provider; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Commission has been duly appointed and qualified and has heretofore 
prepared and transmitted to the Commissioner of the Department of Planning and Development 
(the "Commissioner") its recommendations to the City Council for a budget to provide the 
Special Services in the Area for the fiscal year commencing January 1, 2015, and an agreement 
with the Service Provider, with a one-year term, whose terms and conditions provide for the 
expenditure of the Services Tax for the provision of the Special Services for the fiscal year 
commencing January 1, 2015, in substantially the form attached; now, therefore. 
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Be It Ordained by the City Council of the City of Chicago: 

SECTION 1. Incorporation of Preambles. The preambles of this ordinance are hereby 
incorporated into this text as if set out herein in full. 

SECTION 2. Findings. The City Council finds and declares as follows: 

(a) The City Council adopted an ordinance on October 8, 2014 authorizing a public 
hearing (the "Public Hearing") to consider (i) the enlargement of the boundaries of 
the Original Area to the Area while keeping its designation as City of Chicago Special 
Service Area Number 38, (ii) the authorization of the Special Services distinct from 
the Original Special Services, (iii) the authorization of the increased amount of the 
Services Tax, and (iv) the authorization of the extended Levy Period; 

(b) Notice of the Public Hearing was given by publication at least once not less than 
fifteen days prior to the hearing in the Chicago Sun-Times, a newspaper published in 
and of general circulation within the City, and notice of the Public Hearing was also 
given by depositing said notice in the United States mail addressed to the person or 
persons in whose name the general taxes for the last preceding year were paid on 
each property lying within the Area, not less than ten days prior to the time set for the 
Public Hearing. For any properties for which taxes for the last preceding year were 
not paid, the notice was sent to the person last listed on the tax rolls prior to that year 
as the owner of the property; 

(c) The notice complied with all of the applicable provisions of the Act; 

(d) The Public Hearing was held on November 7, 2014 by the Committee on Finance 
of the City Council. All interested persons, including all persons owning real property 
located within the Area, were given an opportunity to be heard at the Public Hearing 
regarding any issues embodied in the notice and have had an opportunity to file with 
the City Clerk of the City of Chicago (the "City Clerk") written objections on such 
issues; 

(e) The Committee on Finance of the City Council has heard and considered all of 
the comments, objections, protests and statements made at the Public Hearing with 
regard to the issues embodied in the notice and has determined to recommend to 
the City Council that it is in the public interest and in the interest of the City and the 
Area to authorize the Special Services and extend the Original Period and the levy of 
the Services Tax, all as provided in this ordinance; 

(f) The Public Hearing was finally adjourned on November 7, 2014; 

(g) The sixty day period as described in Section 27-55 of the Act, in which an 
objection petition to this ordinance may be filed, commenced on November 7, 2014; 
and 

(h) The City Council hereby finds and determines that it is in the best interests of the 
City to (i) authorize the enlargement of the boundaries of the Original Area to the 
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Area (ii) authorize certain Special Services in the Area distinct from the Original 
Special Services (iii) authorize an increase in the maximum annual rate of the 
Services Tax to provide the Special Services to an amount not to exceed 0.333% of 
the equalized assessed value of the taxable property within the Area and (iv) to 
authorize the extension of the time period for which the levy of the Services Tax is 
authorized within the Area from the Initial Period to a period from tax year 2014 
through and including tax year 2028. 

SECTION 3. Area Enlarged. The Original Area is hereby enlarged to the Area, which 
shall now encompass the territory consisting of Montrose Avenue on the north to Cornelia 
(west) and Addison (east) Avenues on the south; Western Avenue on the west and Lincoln 
Avenue on the east; with Irving Park in the middle between Western and Lincoln Avenues. A 
legal description ofthe Area is attached as Exhibit 1 hereto and hereby incorporated herein. A 
map of the Area is attached as Exhibit 2 hereto and hereby incorporated herein. A list of 
Permanent Index Numbers for the properties in the Area is attached hereto as Exhibit 3 and 
hereby incorporated herein. 

SECTION 4. Special Services Authorized. The Special Services authorized 
hereby include but are not limited to: customer attraction, public way aesthetics, 
sustainability and public place enhancements, economic/business development, safety 
programs, and other activities to promote commercial and economic development. The 
Special Services shall be in addition to services provided to and by the City of Chicago 
generally. 

SECTION 5. Authorization of Levy. There is hereby authorized to be levied in each 
year beginning in 2014 through and including 2028 the Services Tax upon the taxable property 
within the Area to produce revenues required to provide the Special Services, said Services Tax 
not to exceed an annual rate of 0.333% of the equalized assessed value of the taxable property 
within the Area. The Services Tax shall be in addition to all other taxes provided by law and 
shall be levied pursuant to the provisions of the Code. The levy of the Services Tax for each 
year shall be made by annual ordinance, commencing with this ordinance. 

SECTION 6. Appropriations. There is hereby appropriated the following sums in the 
amounts and for the purposes necessary to provide the Special Services in and for the Area, 
the estimated amounts of miscellaneous income and the amounts required to be raised by the 
levy of the Services Tax indicated as follows: 

NORTHCENTER SPECIAL SERVICE AREA COMMISSION 
SPECIAL SERVICE AREA BUDGET 

For the fiscal year commencing January 1, 2015 and ending December 31, 2015: 

EXPENDITURES 

Service Provider Agreement 
for the provision of Special 
Services $285,890 
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TOTAL BUDGET REQUEST $285,890 

SOURCE OF FUNDING 
Tax levy at an annual rate not to 
exceed 0.333% of the equalized 
assessed value, ofthe taxable property 

within Special Service Area Number 38 $243,705 

Carryover funds currently available 
from prior tax years $30,000 
Late collections received by the City of Chicago 
attributable to the levy of the Services Tax 
in prior tax years, along with interest income 
thereon, if any $12,185 

SECTION 7. Levy of Taxes. There is hereby levied pursuant to the provisions of Article 
Vll, Sections 6(a) and 6(l)(2) of the Constitution of the State of Illinois and pursuant to the 
provisions of the Act and pursuant to the provisions of this ordinance, the sum of $243,705 as 
the amount of the Services Tax for the tax year 2014. 

SECTION 8. Service Provider Agreement. The Commissioner, or a designee of the 
Commissioner, are each hereby authorized, subject to approval by the Corporation Counsel as 
to form and legality, to enter into, execute and deliver an agreement with Northcenter Chamber 
of Commerce, an Illinois not-for-profit corporation (the "Organization"), in substantially the form 
attached hereto as Exhibit 5 and hereby made a part hereof (the "Service Provider Agreement"), 
and such other supporting documents, if any, as may be necessary to carry out and comply with 
the provisions of the Service Provider Agreement, with such changes, deletions and insertions 
as shall be approved by the persons executing the Service Provider Agreement. 

SECTION 9. Protests And Obiections. If a petition of objection is filed with the Office of 
the City Clerk signed by at least fifty-one percent (51%) of the electors residing within the 
boundaries of the Area and by at least fifty-one percent (51%) of the owners of record of the 
property included within the boundaries of the Area within sixty (60) days following the 
adjournment of the Public Hearing, all as provided for in Section 27-55 of the Act, as a result of 
such filing the portions this ordinance which authorize (i) the enlargement of the boundaries of 
the Area, (ii) the Special Services distinct from the Original Special Services, (iii) the increase of 
the Services Tax, and (iv) the extension of the Original Period and the levy of the Services Tax, 
shall be deemed to be null and void, and such provisions shall not take effect. 

SECTION 10. Severability. If any provision of this ordinance or the application of any 
such provision to any person or circumstances shall be invalid, such invalidity shall not affect 
the provisions or application of this ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid 
provision or application, and to this end each provision of this ordinance is declared to be 
severable. 
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EXHIBIT 1 

Legal Description 

See attached pages. 

6 
S:\SHARED\Finance\SSAs\SSA-2014\Adam-28-2014, 35, 38-2014, 60\SSA38-
2014\Hearing\Levy Extension\2014SSA38-Levy Extension ORD.doc 



NORTHCENTER SPECIAL SERVICE AREA #38 

ALL THAT PART OF SECTIONS 13 AND 24, TOWNSHIP 40 NORTH, RANGE 13 
EAST AND SECTIONS 18 AND 19, TOWNSHIP 40 NORTH, RANGE 14 EAST OF 
THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, BEING BOUNDED AND DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: 

BEGINNING AT THE POINT OF INTERSECTION OF THE EAST LINE OF 
WESTERN AVENUE WITH THE NORTH LINE OF CORNELIA AVENUE IN THE 
WEST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 19, AND 
RUNNING; 

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF CORNELIA AVENUE TO THE 
WEST LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY EAST OF WESTERN AVENUE; 

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
EAST OF WESTERN AVENUE AND THE NORTHERLY EXTENSION THEREOF TO 
THE NORTH LINE OF ADDISON STREET; 

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF ADDISON STREET TO THE 
EAST LINE OF THE WEST 7 FEET OF LOT 5 IN SHELDON ESTATE SUBDIVISION 
OF BLOCK 23 IN EXECUTORS OF W.E. JONES SUBDIVISION; 

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 5 TO THE NORTH 
LINE THEREOF; 

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE SAID LOT 5 TO THE 
SOUTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE WEST LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
EAST OF WESTERN AVENUE; 

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE WEST 
LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY EAST OF WESTERN AVENUE AND THE WEST 
LINE THEREOF TO THE SOUTH LINE OF WAVELAND AVENUE; 

THENCE NORTH ALONG THE SOUTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE WEST 
LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY EAST OF WESTERN AVENUE AND THE WEST 
LINE THEREOF TO THE SOUTH LINE OF GRACE STREET; 

THENCE NORTH ALONG THE SOUTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE WEST 
LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY EAST OF WESTERN AVENUE AND THE WEST 
LINE THEREOF TO THE SOUTH LINE OF BYRON STREET; 

THENCE NORTH ALONG THE SOUTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE WEST 
LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY EAST OF WESTERN AVENUE AND THE WEST 
LINE THEREOF TO THE WESTERLY EXTENSION OF THE NORTH LINE OF THE 
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SOUTH 16 FEET OF LOT 43 IN THE SUBDIVISION OF BLOCK 9 OF EXECUTORS 
OF W.E. JONES SUBDIVISION IN SECTION 19; 

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID EXTENSION AND SAID NORTH LINE OF THE 
SOUTH 16 FEET OF LOT 43 IN SAID SUBDIVISION OF BLOCK 9 TO THE WEST 
LINE OF CLAREMONT AVENUE; 

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF CLAREMONT AVENUE TO 
THE WESTERLY EXTENSION OF THE SOUTH LINE OF LOT 8 IN THE 
SUBDIVISION OF BLOCK 9 (EXCEPT THE STREET) OF EXECUTORS OF W.E. 
JONES SUBDIVISION IN SECTION 19; 

THENCE EAST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF LOTS 8 THROUGH 1 IN SAID 
SUBDIVISION OF BLOCK 9 TO THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 1; 

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF LOT 1 IN SAID SUBDIVISION 
OF BLOCK 9 TO THE SOUTH LINE OF IRVING PARK ROAD; 

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF IRVING PARK ROAD TO THE 
EAST LINE OF OAKLEY AVENUE; 

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF OAKLEY AVENUE TO THE 
SOUTH LINE OF LOT 15 IN THE SUBDIVISION OF BLOCK 8 (EXCEPT THE WEST 
124 FEET OF THE EAST 157 OF THE NORTH 375 FEET) IN EXECUTORS OF W.E. 
JONES SUBDIVISION IN SECTION 19; 

THENCE EAST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF LOTS 15 THROUGH 6 IN SAID 
SUBDIVISION OF BLOCK 8 TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 6; 

THENCE EAST ALONG THE EASTERLY EXTENSION OF THE SOUTH LINE 
OF LOT 6 IN SAID SUBDIVISION OF BLOCK 8 TO THE EAST LINE OF BELL 
AVENUE; 

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF BELL AVENUE TO THE 
SOUTH LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE VACATED ALLEY SOUTH OF IRVING PARK 
ROAD; 

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE VACATED 
ALLEY SOUTH OF IRVING PARK ROAD AND THE EASTERLY EXTENSION 
THEREOF A LINE 124 FEET WEST OF THE WEST LINE OF LEAVITT STREET; 

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID LINE 124 FEET WEST OF THE WEST LINE 
OF LEAVITT STREET TO A LINE 375 FEET SOUTH OF THE SOUTH LINE OF 
IRVING PARK ROAD; 
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THENCE EAST ALONG SAID LINE 375 FEET SOUTH OF THE SOUTH LINE 
OF IRVING PARK ROAD TO THE WEST LINE OF LEAVITT STREET; 

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF LEAVITT STREET TO THE 
WESTERLY EXTENSION OF THE NORTH LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
SOUTH OF IRVING PARK ROAD; 

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
SOUTH OF IRVING PARK ROAD AND THE EASTERLY EXTENSION THEREOF TO 
THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 10 IN THE SUBDIVISION OF BLOCK 7 IN 
EXECUTORS OF W.E. JONES SUBDIVISION IN SECTION 19; 

THENCE EAST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF LOTS 10 THROUGH 1 IN SAID 
SUBDIVISION OF BLOCK 7 TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 1; 

THENCE EAST ALONG THE EASTERLY EXTENSION OF THE SOUTH LINE 
OF LOT 1 IN SAID SUBDIVISION OF BLOCK 7 TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF 
LOT 55 IN THE SUBDIVISION OF BLOCK 6 IN EXECUTORS OF W.E. JONES 
SUBDIVISION IN SECTION 19; 

THENCE EAST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF LOTS 55 THROUGH 46 IN SAID 
SUBDIVISION OF BLOCK 6 TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 46; 

THENCE EAST ALONG THE EASTERLY EXTENSION OF THE SOUTH LINE 
OF LOT 46 IN SAID SUBDIVISION OF BLOCK 6 TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF 
LOT 45 IN SAID SUBDIVISION OF BLOCK 6; 

THENCE EAST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF LOTS 45 THROUGH 41 AND 
THE EASTERLY EXTENSION OF THE SOUTH LINE OF LOT 41 TO THE EAST UNE 
OFTHE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY WEST OF DAMEN AVENUE; 

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
WEST OF DAMEN AVENUE TO THE SOUTH LINE OF LOT 18 IN SAID SUBDIVISION 
OF BLOCK 6; 

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF LOT 18 IN SAID SUBDIVISION 
OF BLOCK 6 AND THE EASTERLY EXTENSION THEREOF TO THE EAST LINE OF 
DAMEN AVENUE; 

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF DAMEN AVENUE TO THE 
NORTH LINE OF BYRON STREET; 

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF BYRON STREET TO THE 
NORTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE EAST LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
EAST OF DAMEN AVENUE; 
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THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID NORTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE EAST 
LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY EAST OF DAMEN AVENUE AND THE EAST 
LINE THEREOF TO THE SOUTH LINE OF LOT 26 IN BLOCK 14 IN CHARLES J. 
FORD'S SUBDIVISION OF BLOCKS 3, 4, 5 AND LOTS 1, 2, 3 OF BLOCK 16 OF THE 
SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 19; 

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF LOT 26 IN BLOCK 14 IN SAID 
CHARLES J. FORD'S SUBDIVISION TO THE EAST LINE THEREOF; 

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF LOT 26 IN BLOCK 14 IN SAID 
CHARLES J. FORD'S SUBDIVISION TO THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF LOT 2 IN BLOCK 
14 IN SAID CHARLES J. FORD'S SUBDIVISION; 

THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY LINE OF LOT 2 IN 
BLOCK 14 IN SAID CHARLES J. FORD'S SUBDIVISION TO THE EASTERLY LINE 
OF THE 14 FOOT WIDE ALLEY SOUTHWESTERLY OF LINCOLN AVENUE; 

THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID EASTERLY LINE OF THE 14 FOOT 
WIDE ALLEY SOUTHWESTERLY OF LINCOLN AVENUE TO THE NORTHERLY LINE 
OF LOT 12 IN BLOCK 14 IN SAID CHARLES J. FORD'S SUBDIVISION; 

THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID NORTHERLY LINE OF LOT 12 IN 
BLOCK 14 IN SAID CHARLES J. FORD'S SUBDIVISION TO THE EAST LINE 
THEREOF; 

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF LOT 12 IN BLOCK 14 IN SAID 
CHARLES J. FORD'S SUBDIVISION TO THE NORTH LINE OF BERENICE AVENUE; 

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF BERENICE AVENUE TO THE 
NORTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE EAST LINE OF LOT 65 IN BLOCK 14 IN SAID 
CHARLES J. FORD'S SUBDIVISION; 

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID NORTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE EAST 
LINE OF LOT 65 IN BLOCK 14 IN SAID CHARLES J. FORD'S SUBDIVISION AND 
THE EAST LINE THEREOF TO THE EASTERLY LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE 
ALLEY SOUTHWESTERLY OF LINCOLN AVENUE; 

THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID EASTERLY LINE OF THE 16 FOOT 
WIDE ALLEY SOUTHWESTERLY OF LINCOLN AVENUE TO THE NORTHERLY LINE 
OF LOT 38 IN BLOCK 14 IN SAID CHARLES J. FORD'S SUBDIVISION; 

THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID NORTHERLY LINE OF LOT 38 IN 
BLOCK 14 IN SAID CHARLES J. FORD'S SUBDIVISION TO THE EAST LINE 
THEREOF; 
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THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF LOT 38 IN BLOCK 14 IN SAID 
CHARLES J. FORD'S SUBDIVISION TO THE NORTH LINE OF GRACE STREET; 

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF GRACE STREET TO THE 
WESTERLY LINE OF LINCOLN AVENUE; 

THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID WESTERLY LINE OF LINCOLN 
AVENUE TO THE EAST LINE OF WOLCOTT AVENUE; 

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF WOLCOTT AVENUE TO THE 
NORTH LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY NORTH OF WAVELAND AVENUE; 

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
NORTH OF WAVELAND AVENUE TO THE EASTERLY LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE 
ALLEY SOUTHWESTERLY OF LINCOLN AVENUE; 

THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID EASTERLY LINE OF THE 16 FOOT 
WIDE ALLEY SOUTHWESTERLY OF LINCOLN AVENUE TO THE NORTHERLY LINE 
OF LOT 17 IN BLOCK 1 IN JOHN TURNER'S HEIRS SUBDIVISION OF BLOCKS 1 
THROUGH 4 OF JOHN TURNER'S SUBDIVISION IN SECTION 19; 

THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID NORTHERLY LINE OF LOT 17 IN 
BLOCK 1 IN SAID JOHN TURNER'S HEIRS SUBDIVISION OF BLOCKS 1 THROUGH 
4 TO THE EAST UNE THEREOF; 

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF LOT 17 IN BLOCK 1 IN SAID 
JOHN TURNER'S HEIRS SUBDIVISION TO THE NORTH LINE OF WAVELAND 
AVENUE; 

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF WAVELAND AVENUE TO THE 
NORTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE EAST LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
EAST OF WOLCOTT AVENUE; 

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID NORTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE EAST 
LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY EAST OF WOLCOTT AVENUE AND THE EAST 
LINE THEREOF TO THE EASTERLY LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
SOUTHWESTERLY OF LINCOLN AVENUE; 

THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID EASTERLY LINE OF THE 16 FOOT 
WIDE ALLEY SOUTHWESTERLY OF LINCOLN AVENUE AND THE 
SOUTHEASTERLY EXTENSION THEREOF TO THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF 
PATTERSON AVENUE; 

THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG THE EASTERLY LINE OF THE 16 FOOT 
WIDE ALLEY SOUTHWESTERLY OF LINCOLN AVENUE TO THE SOUTHERLY LINE 
OF LOT 9 IN BLOCK 3 IN SAID JOHN TURNER'S HEIRS SUBDIVISION OF BLOCKS 
1 THROUGH 4; 
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THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY UNE OF LOT 9 IN 
BLOCK 3 IN SAID JOHN TURNER'S HEIRS SUBDIVISION OF BLOCKS 1 THROUGH 
4 TO A POINT ON SAID SOUTHERLY LINE 44.3 FEET SOUTHWESTERLY OF, AS 
MEASURED ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY LINE, THE SOUTHWEST LINE OF LINCOLN 
AVENUE; 

THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 10 IN 
SAID SUBDIVISION; 

THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY 14 FEET ALONG THE SOUTHWEST 
EXTENSION OF THE NORTH LINE OF SAID LOT 10; 

THENCE SOUTH 22.35 FEET TO A LINE 49.54 FEET NORTH OF, AS 
MEASURED PERPENDICULARLY TO, THE NORTH LINE OF ADDISON STREET; 

THENCE EAST 7.33 FEET ALONG SAID LINE 49.54 FEET NORTH OF, AS 
MEASURED PERPENDICULARLY TO, THE NORTH LINE OF ADDISON STREET TO 
THE EAST LINE OF THE WEST 0.87 FEET OF SAID LOT 10; 

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST UNE OF THE WEST 0.87 FEET OF 
SAID LOT 10 TO THE NORTH LINE OF ADDISON STREET; 

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF ADDISON STREET TO THE 
WEST LINE OF RAVENSWOOD AVENUE; 

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF RAVENSWOOD AVENUE TO 
THE WESTERLY LINE OF LINCOLN AVENUE; 

THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID WESTERLY LINE OF LINCOLN 
AVENUE TO A LINE 355.64 FEET SOUTH OF, AS MEASURED PERPENDICULARLY 
TO, THE NORTH LINE OF GRACE STREET; 

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID LINE 355.64 FEET SOUTH OF, AS MEASURED 
PERPENDICULARLY TO, THE NORTH LINE OF GRACE STREET TO A UNE 60 
FEET WEST OF, AS MEASURED PERPENDICULARLY TO, THE WEST LINE OF 
THE C.T.A. RIGHT OF WAY; 

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID UNE 60 FEET WEST OF, AS MEASURED 
PERPENDICULARLY TO, THE WEST UNE OF THE C.T.A. RIGHT OF WAY TO A 
LINE 312.64 FEET SOUTH OF, AS MEASURED PERPENDICULARLY TO, THE 
NORTH LINE OF GRACE STREET; 

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID LINE 312.64 FEET SOUTH OF, AS MEASURED 
PERPENDICULARLY TO, THE NORTH LINE OF GRACE STREET TO THE WEST 
LINE OF THE C.T.A. RIGHT OF WAY; 
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THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE TO THE NORTH LINE OF GRACE 
STREET; 

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF GRACE STREET TO THE 
WEST LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY WEST OF RAVENSWOOD AVENUE; 

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
WEST OF RAVENSWOOD AVENUE TO THE WESTERLY LINE OF THE 16 FOOT 
WIDE ALLEY NORTHEASTERLY OF LINCOLN AVENUE; 

THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID WESTERLY LINE OF THE 16 
FOOT WIDE ALLEY NORTHEASTERLY OF LINCOLN AVENUE TO AN ANGLE 
POINT ON THE EASTERLY LINE OF LOT 25 IN BLOCK 16 IN CHARLES J. FORD'S 
SUBDIVISION OF BLOCKS 3, 4, 5 AND LOTS 1, 2, 3 OF BLOCK 16 OF THE 
SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 19; 

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID EASTERLY LINE OF LOT 25 IN BLOCK 16 IN 
SAID CHARLES J. FORD'S SUBDIVISION TO THE NORTHERLY LINE THEREOF; 

THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID NORTHERLY LINE OF LOT 25 IN 
BLOCK 16 IN SAID CHARLES J. FORD'S SUBDIVISION TO THE EAST UNE OF LOT 
21 IN BLOCK 16 IN SAID CHARLES J. FORD'S SUBDIVISION; 

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID EAST UNE OF LOT 21 IN BLOCK 16 IN SAID 
CHARLES J. FORD'S SUBDIVISION TO THE SOUTH LINE OF BERENICE AVENUE; 

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF BERENICE AVENUE TO THE 
SOUTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE WEST LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
WEST OF RAVENSWOOD AVENUE; 

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE WEST 
LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY WEST OF RAVENSWOOD AVENUE AND THE 
WEST LINE THEREOF TO THE WESTERLY LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
NORTHEASTERLY OF LINCOLN AVENUE; 

THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID WESTERLY LINE OF THE 16 
FOOT WIDE ALLEY NORTHEASTERLY OF LINCOLN AVENUE TO THE EAST LINE 
OF LOT 27 IN BLOCK 15 IN SAID CHARLES J. FORD'S SUBDIVISION; 

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF LOT 27 IN BLOCK 15 IN SAID 
CHARLES J. FORD'S SUBDIVISION TO THE SOUTH LINE OF BYRON AVENUE; 

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF BYRON AVENUE TO THE 
SOUTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE WEST UNE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
WEST OF WOLCOTT AVENUE; 
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THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE WEST 
LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY WEST OF WOLCOTT AVENUE AND THE 
WEST LINE THEREOF TO THE WESTERLY LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
NORTHEASTERLY OF LINCOLN AVENUE; 

THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID WESTERLY LINE OF THE 16 
FOOT WIDE ALLEY NORTHEASTERLY OF LINCOLN AVENUE TO THE 
SOUTHERLY UNE OF LOT 49 IN BLOCK 4 IN SAID CHARLES J. FORD'S 
SUBDIVISION; 

THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY UNE OF LOT 49 IN 
BLOCK 4 IN SAID CHARLES J. FORD'S SUBDIVISION TO THE WEST LINE 
THEREOF; 

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF LOT 49 IN BLOCK 4 IN SAID 
CHARLES J. FORD'S SUBDIVISION TO THE SOUTH LINE OF LARCHMONT 
STREET; 

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF LARCHMONT STREET TO 
THE SOUTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE WEST LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
WEST OF WOLCOTT AVENUE; 

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE WEST 
UNE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY WEST OF WOLCOTT AVENUE TO THE 
WESTERLY LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY NORTHEASTERLY OF LINCOLN 
AVENUE; 

THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID WESTERLY LINE OF THE 16 
FOOT WIDE ALLEY NORTHEASTERLY OF LINCOLN AVENUE TO THE WESTERLY 
EXTENSION OF THE NORTH LINE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY SOUTH OF IRVING PARK 
ROAD; 

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID WESTERLY EXTENSION OF THE NORTH LINE 
16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY SOUTH OF IRVING PARK ROAD AND THE NORTH LINE 
THEREOF TO THE WEST LINE OF WOLCOTT AVENUE; 

THENCE EAST ALONG THE EASTERLY EXTENSION OF THE NORTH LINE 
16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY SOUTH OF IRVING PARK ROAD TO THE SOUTHWEST 
CORNER OF LOT 21 IN BLOCK 3 IN SAID CHARLES J. FORD'S SUBDIVISION; 

THENCE EAST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF LOTS 21 THROUGH 8 IN 
BLOCK 3 IN SAID CHARLES J. FORD'S SUBDIVISION TO THE WEST LINE OF THE 
C.T.A. RIGHT OF WAY; 

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF THE C.T.A. RIGHT OF WAY 
TO THE SOUTH LINE OF IRVING PARK ROAD; 
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THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF IRVING PARK ROAD TO THE 
SOUTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE WEST UNE OF THE EAST 7 FEET OF LOT 34 IN 
BLOCK 4 OF CUYLER'S ADDITION TO RAVENSWOOD SUBDIVISION; 

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE WEST 
LINE OF THE EAST 7 FEET OF LOT 34 AND SAID WEST LINE TO THE SOUTH LINE 
OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY NORTH OF IRVING PARK ROAD; 

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
NORTH OF IRVING PARK ROAD AND THE WESTERLY EXTENSION THEREOF TO 
THE WEST LINE OF WOLCOTT AVENUE; 

THENCE WEST ALONG THE SOUTH UNE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
NORTH OF IRVING PARK ROAD TO THE SOUTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE WEST 
LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY EAST OF DAMEN AVENUE; 

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE WEST 
LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY EAST OF DAMEN AVENUE AND THE WEST 
LINE THEREOF TO THE SOUTH LINE OF CUYLER AVENUE; 

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF CUYLER AVENUE AND THE 
WESTERLY EXTENSION THEREOF TO THE WEST UNE OF DAMEN AVENUE; 

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF DAMEN AVENUE TO THE 
NORTH UNE OF LOT 159 OF RUDOLPH'S SUBDIVISION OF BLOCKS 4 AND 5 OF 
W.B. OGDEN'S SUBDIVISION; 

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF LOT 159 AND ITS WEST 
EXTENSION TO THE WESTERLY LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
NORTHEASTERLY OF LINCOLN AVENUE; 

THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID WESTERLY LINE OF THE 16 
FOOT WIDE ALLEY NORTHEASTERLY OF LINCOLN AVENUE TO THE SOUTH 
LINE OF WARNER AVENUE; 

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF WARNER AVENUE TO THE 
SOUTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE WEST LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
EAST OF LINCOLN AVENUE; 

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE WEST 
LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY EAST OF LINCOLN AVENUE AND THE WEST 
LINE THEREOF TO THE WESTERLY LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
NORTHEASTERLY OF LINCOLN AVENUE; 
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THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID WESTERLY LINE OF THE 16 
FOOT WIDE ALLEY NORTHEASTERLY OF LINCOLN AVENUE TO THE SOUTH 
LINE OF BERTEAU AVENUE; 

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF BERTEAU AVENUE TO THE 
SOUTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE WEST LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
EAST OF LINCOLN AVENUE; 

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE WEST 
LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY EAST OF LINCOLN AVENUE AND THE WEST 
LINE THEREOF TO THE WESTERLY LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
NORTHEASTERLY OF LINCOLN AVENUE; 

THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID WESTERLY LINE OF THE 16 
FOOT WIDE ALLEY NORTHEASTERLY OF LINCOLN AVENUE TO THE SOUTH 
UNE OF HUTCHINSON STREET; 

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF HUTCHINSON STREET TO 
THE SOUTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE WEST LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
EAST OF LINCOLN AVENUE; 

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE WEST 
LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY EAST OF LINCOLN AVENUE AND THE WEST 
LINE THEREOF TO THE WESTERLY LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
NORTHEASTERLY OF LINCOLN AVENUE; 

THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID WESTERLY LINE OF THE 16 
FOOT WIDE ALLEY NORTHEASTERLY OF LINCOLN AVENUE TO THE SOUTH 
LINE OF CULLOM AVENUE; 

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF CULLOM AVENUE TO THE 
SOUTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE WEST LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
WEST OF HOYNE AVENUE; 

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE WEST 
LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY WEST OF HOYNE AVENUE AND THE WEST 
LINE THEREOF TO THE WESTERLY LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
NORTHEASTERLY OF LINCOLN AVENUE; 

THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID WESTERLY LINE OF THE 16 
FOOT WIDE ALLEY NORTHEASTERLY OF LINCOLN AVENUE TO THE SOUTH 
UNE OF PENSACOLA AVENUE; 

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF PENSACOLA AVENUE TO 
THE SOUTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE WEST LINE OF LOT 64 IN ELIZABETH 
NASHLUND'S ADDITION TO CHICAGO IN SECTION 18; 

Page 10 of 18 



THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE WEST 
UNE OF LOT 64 IN SAID ELIZABETH NASHLUND'S ADDITION TO CHICAGO AND 
THE WEST LINE THEREOF TO THE NORTHERLY LINE THEREOF; 

THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID NORTHERLY LINE OF LOT 64 IN 
SAID ELIZABETH NASHLUND'S ADDITION TO CHICAGO TO THE WESTERLY LINE 
OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY NORTHEASTERLY OF LINCOLN AVENUE; 

THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID WESTERLY LINE OF THE 16 
FOOT WIDE ALLEY NORTHEASTERLY OF LINCOLN AVENUE TO THE SOUTH 
UNE OF MONTROSE AVENUE; 

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF MONTROSE AVENUE TO 
THE NORTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE EAST LINE OF LEAVITT STREET; 

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID NORTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE EAST LINE OF 
LEAVITT STREET AND THE EAST LINE THEREOF TO THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 8 
IN GRANT PARK ADDITION IN SECTION 18; 

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF LOT 8 IN SAID GRANT PARK 
ADDITION 57.96 FEET; 

THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ON A STRAIGHT LINE TO THE NORTHEAST 
CORNER OF LOT 9 IN SAID GRANT PARK ADDITION; 

THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG THE EASTERLY LINE OF LOT 9 IN SAID 
GRANT PARK ADDITION TO THE SOUTH UNE THEREOF; 

THENCE SOUTH ALONG THE EAST LINE OF LOT 12 IN SAID GRANT PARK 
ADDITION TO THE NORTH LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY NORTH OF 
CULLOM AVENUE; 

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
NORTH OF CULLOM AVENUE TO THE EAST LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
EAST OF LEAVITT STREET; 

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
EAST OF LEAVITT STREET TO THE NORTH LINE OF CULLOM AVENUE; 

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF CULLOM AVENUE TO THE 
NORTH EXTENSION OF THE EAST LINE OF THE WEST 29 FEET OF LOT 132 IN 
RUDOLPH AND BROWN'S SUBDIVISION OF LOT 2 OF BLOCK 1 OF W.B. OGDEN'S 
SUBDIVISION IN SECTION 18; 
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THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF THE WEST 29 FEET OF LOT 
132 TO A LINE 19.11 FEET NORTHWESTERLY OF, AS MEASURED 
PERPENDICULARLY TO, THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF SAID LOT 132; 

THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG A STRAIGHT LINE TO A POINT ON THE 
NORTHERLY UNE OF LOT 133 IN RUDOLPH AND BROWN'S SUBDIVISION OF LOT 
2 OF BLOCK 1 OF W.B. OGDEN'S SUBDIVISION IN SECTION 18, SAID POINT 
BEING 47.42 FEET NORTHEASTERLY OF THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 
LOT 133; 

THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID NORTHERLY LINE OF LOT 133 IN 
SAID RUDOLPH AND BROWN'S SUBDIVISION TO THE EAST LINE OF LOT 131 IN 
SAID RUDOLPH AND BROWN'S SUBDIVISION; 

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST UNE OF LOT 131 IN SAID RUDOLPH 
AND BROWN'S SUBDIVISION AND THE SOUTHERLY EXTENSION THEREOF TO 
THE NORTHERLY LINE OF LOT 142 IN SAID RUDOLPH AND BROWN'S 
SUBDIVISION; 

THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID NORTHERLY LINE OF LOT 142 IN 
SAID RUDOLPH AND BROWN'S SUBDIVISION TO THE EAST LINE OF THE 16 
FOOT WIDE ALLEY EAST OF LEAVITT STREET; 

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST UNE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
EAST OF LEAVITT STREET TO THE NORTH LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
NORTH OF BERTEAU AVENUE; 

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
NORTH OF BERTEAU AVENUE TO THE EASTERLY LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE 
ALLEY SOUTHWESTERLY OF LINCOLN AVENUE; 

THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID EASTERLY LINE OF THE 16 FOOT 
WIDE ALLEY SOUTHWESTERLY OF LINCOLN AVENUE TO THE NORTH LINE OF 
BERTEAU AVENUE; 

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF BERTEAU AVENUE TO THE 
NORTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE EAST UNE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
EAST OF LEAVITT STREET; 

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID NORTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE EAST LINE OF 
THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY EAST OF LEAVITT STREET AND THE EAST LINE 
THEREOF TO THE EASTERLY LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
SOUTHWESTERLY OF LINCOLN AVENUE; 
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THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID EASTERLY LINE OF THE 16 FOOT 
WIDE ALLEY SOUTHWESTERLY OF LINCOLN AVENUE TO THE NORTH LINE OF 
WARNER AVENUE; 

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF WARNER AVENUE TO THE 
NORTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE EAST LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
EAST OF LEAVITT STREET; 

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID NORTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE EAST 
LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY EAST OF LEAVITT STREET AND THE EAST 
LINE THEREOF TO THE EASTERLY LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
SOUTHWESTERLY OF LINCOLN AVENUE; 

THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID EASTERLY LINE OF THE 16 FOOT 
WIDE ALLEY SOUTHWESTERLY OF LINCOLN AVENUE TO THE NORTH LINE OF 
BELLE PLAINE AVENUE; 

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF BELLE PLAINE AVENUE TO 
THE NORTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE EAST LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
EAST OF HOYNE AVENUE; 

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID NORTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE EAST 
LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY EAST OF HOYNE AVENUE AND THE EAST 
LINE THEREOF TO THE EASTERLY LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
SOUTHWESTERLY OF LINCOLN AVENUE; 

THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID EASTERLY LINE OF THE 16 FOOT 
WIDE ALLEY SOUTHWESTERLY OF LINCOLN AVENUE TO THE NORTH LINE OF 
CUYLER AVENUE; 
THENCE EAST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF CUYLER AVENUE TO THE 
NORTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE EAST LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
EAST OF HOYNE AVENUE; 

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID NORTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE EAST 
LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY EAST OF HOYNE AVENUE AND THE EAST 
LINE THEREOF TO THE EASTERLY LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
SOUTHWESTERLY OF LINCOLN AVENUE; 

THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID EASTERLY LINE OF THE 16 FOOT 
WIDE ALLEY SOUTHWESTERLY OF LINCOLN AVENUE TO THE EASTERLY 
EXTENSION OF THE SOUTH UNE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY NORTH OF 
IRVING PARK ROAD; 

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID EASTERLY EXTENSION OF THE SOUTH LINE 
OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY NORTH OF IRVING PARK ROAD AND THE SOUTH 
LINE THEREOF TO THE EAST LINE OF HOYNE AVENUE; 
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THENCE WEST ALONG THE EASTERLY EXTENSION OF THE SOUTH LINE 
OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY NORTH OF IRVING PARK ROAD AND THE SOUTH 
LINE THEREOF TO THE EAST LINE OF LEAVITT STREET; 

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF LEAVITT STREET TO THE 
EASTERLY EXTENSION OF THE SOUTH LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
NORTH OF IRVING PARK ROAD; 

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID EASTERLY EXTENSION OF THE SOUTH LINE 
OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY NORTH OF IRVING PARK ROAD AND THE SOUTH 
LINE THEREOF TO THE EAST LINE OF OAKLEY AVENUE; 

THENCE WEST ALONG THE WESTERLY EXTENSION OF THE SOUTH LINE 
OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY NORTH OF IRVING PARK ROAD TO THE WEST 
LINE OF OAKLEY AVENUE; 

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF OAKLEY AVENUE TO THE 
SOUTH UNE OF BELLE PLAINE AVENUE; 

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF BELLE PLAINE AVENUE TO 
THE SOUTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE WEST LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
EAST OF WESTERN AVENUE; 

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE WEST 
LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY EAST OF WESTERN AVENUE AND THE WEST 
LINE THEREOF TO THE SOUTH LINE OF BERTEAU AVENUE; 

THENCE NORTH ALONG THE NORTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE WEST 
LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY EAST OF WESTERN AVENUE TO THE NORTH 
LINE OF BERTEAU AVENUE; 

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF BERTEAU AVENUE TO THE 
WEST LINE OF LOT 29 IN OAKLEY GARDENS IN SECTION 18; 

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF LOT 29 IN SAID OAKLEY 
GARDENS TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 11 IN SAID OAKLEY 
GARDENS; 

THENCE NORTH ALONG THE WEST LINES OF LOTS 11 THROUGH 8 IN 
SAID OAKLEY GARDENS TO THE SOUTH LINE OF LOT 66 IN RUDOLPH AND 
BROWN'S SUBDIVISION OF LOT 2 OF BLOCK 1 OF W.B. OGDEN'S SUBDIVISION 
IN SECTION 18; 
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THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF LOT 66 IN SAID RUDOLPH 
AND BROWN'S SUBDIVISION AND THE WESTERLY EXTENSION THEREOF TO 
THE WEST LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY WEST OF CLAREMONT AVENUE; 

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
WEST OF CLAREMONT AVENUE TO THE SOUTH LINE OF CULLOM AVENUE; 

THENCE NORTH ALONG THE SOUTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE WEST 
UNE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY WEST OF CLAREMONT AVENUE AND THE 
WEST LINE THEREOF TO THE SOUTH LINE OF MONTROSE AVENUE; 

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF MONTROSE AVENUE TO 
THE EAST LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY WEST OF WESTERN AVENUE; 

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
WEST OF WESTERN AVENUE AND THE SOUTHERLY EXTENSION THEREOF TO 
THE SOUTH UNE OF PENSACOLA AVENUE; 

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST UNE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
WEST OF WESTERN AVENUE AND THE SOUTHERLY EXTENSION THEREOF TO 
THE SOUTH LINE OF CULLOM AVENUE; 

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST UNE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
WEST OF WESTERN AVENUE AND THE SOUTHERLY EXTENSION THEREOF TO 
THE SOUTH LINE OF HUTCHINSON STREET; 

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST UNE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY WEST 
OF WESTERN AVENUE AND THE SOUTHERLY EXTENSION THEREOF TO THE 
SOUTH LINE OF BERTEAU AVENUE; 

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
WEST OF WESTERN AVENUE AND THE SOUTHERLY EXTENSION THEREOF TO 
THE SOUTH LINE OF WARNER AVENUE; 

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
WEST OF WESTERN AVENUE AND THE SOUTHERLY EXTENSION THEREOF TO 
THE SOUTH UNE OF BELLE PLAINE AVENUE; 

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
WEST OF WESTERN AVENUE AND THE SOUTHERLY EXTENSION THEREOF TO 
THE EAST EXTENSION OF THE SOUTH LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST NORTH OF 
IRVING PARK ROAD BETWEEN WESTERN AVENUE AND CAMPBELL AVENUE; 

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID EXTENSION, SAID SOUTH LINE, AND ITS 
WEST EXTENSION TO THE WEST LINE OF CAMPBELL AVENUE; 
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THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF CAMPBELL AVENUE TO THE 
NORTH LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST NORTH OF IRVING PARK ROAD BETWEEN 
MAPLEWOOD AND CAMPBELL AVENUE; 

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST NORTH 
OF IRVING PARK ROAD BETWEEN MAPLEWOOD AND CAMPBELL AVENUE AND 
ITS WEST EXTENSION TO THE EAST LINE OF THE RIGHT OF WAY OF THE 
SANITARY DISTRICT OF CHICAGO; 

THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF THE RIGHT OF 
WAY OF THE SANITARY DISTRICT OF CHICAGO TO THE SOUTH LINE OF BLOCK 
3 IN KINZIE'S SUBDIVISION OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 24, 
TOWNSHIP 40, RANGE 13, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN; 

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF BLOCK 3 AND ITS EAST 
EXTENSION TO THE WEST LINE OF CAMPBELL AVENUE; 

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF CAMPBELL AVENUE TO THE 
WEST EXTENSION OF THE NORTH LINE OF THE 16 FOOT ALLEY SOUTH OF 
IRVING PARK ROAD; 

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID WEST EXTENSION AND SAID NORTH LINE OF 
THE 16 FOOT ALLEY SOUTH OF IRVING PARK ROAD TO THE EAST LINE OF THE 
16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY WEST OF WESTERN AVENUE; 

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
WEST OF WESTERN AVENUE AND THE SOUTHERLY EXTENSION THEREOF TO 
THE SOUTH LINE OF DAKIN STREET; 

THENCE SOUTH ALONG THE EAST LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
WEST OF WESTERN AVENUE AND THE SOUTHERLY EXTENSION THEREOF TO 
THE SOUTH LINE OF BYRON STREET; 

THENCE SOUTH ALONG THE EAST LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
WEST OF WESTERN AVENUE AND THE SOUTHERLY EXTENSION THEREOF TO 
THE SOUTH UNE OF BERENICE AVENUE; 

THENCE SOUTH ALONG THE EAST LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY 
WEST OF WESTERN AVENUE AND THE SOUTHERLY EXTENSION THEREOF TO 
THE SOUTH LINE OF GRACE STREET; 

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF GRACE STREET TO A LINE 
279.79 FEET WEST OF, AS MEASURED PERPENDICULARLY TO, THE WEST UNE 
OF WESTERN AVENUE; 
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THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID UNE 279.79 FEET WEST OF, AS MEASURED 
PERPENDICULARLY TO, THE WEST LINE OF WESTERN AVENUE TO THE NORTH 
LINE OF WAVELAND AVENUE; 

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF WAVELAND AVENUE 
TO THE NORTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE EAST LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE 
ALLEY WEST OF WESTERN AVENUE; 

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID NORTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE EAST 
LINE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY WEST OF WESTERN AVENUE AND THE EAST 
LINE THEREOF TO THE NORTH LINE OF ADDISON STREET; 

THENCE SOUTH ALONG THE SOUTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE EAST LINE 
OF THE 16 FOOT WIDE ALLEY WEST OF WESTERN AVENUE TO THE SOUTH 
LINE OF ADDISON STREET; 

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF ADDISON STREET TO THE 
WEST UNE OF LOT 1 IN COUNTY CLERK'S DIVISION OF UNSUBDIVIDED LANDS 
IN THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 24; 

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF LOT 1 IN SAID COUNTY 
CLERK'S DIVISION OF UNSUBDIVIDED LANDS TO THE SOUTH UNE THEREOF; 

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF LOT 1 IN SAID COUNTY 
CLERK'S DIVISION OF UNSUBDIVIDED LANDS TO THE NORTH EXTENSION OF 
THE WEST LINE OF CAMPBELL AVENUE; 

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID NORTH EXTENSION OF THE WEST LINE OF 
CAMPBELL AVENUE TO A POINT ON THE WEST LINE OF CAMPBELL AVENUE, 
SAID POINT BEING THE POINT OF INTERSECTION OF THE WEST LINE OF 
CAMPBELL AVENUE WITH A 183-FOOT RADIUS CURVE CONCAVE TO THE 
SOUTHEAST; 

THENCE EAST ON A LINE PERPENDICULAR TO THE WEST LINE OF 
CAMPBELL AVENUE A DISTANCE OF 66 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EAST LINE OF 
CAMPBELL AVENUE; 

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST UNE OF CAMPBELL AVENUE TO THE 
SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH 132 FEET OF LOTS 10 AND 9 IN SAID COUNTY 
CLERK'S DIVISION OF UNSUBDIVIDED LANDS; 

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH 132 FEET OF 
LOTS 10 AND 9 IN SAID COUNTY CLERK'S DIVISION OF UNSUBDIVIDED LANDS 
TO THE WEST LINE OF LOT 23 IN NORTH CHICAGO SHARPSHOOTER'S 
ADDITION TO CHICAGO IN THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 24; 
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THENCE SOUTH ALONG THE WEST LINE OF LOTS 23 THROUGH 43 TO 
THE NORTH LINE OF BELMONT AVENUE; 

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF BELMONT AVENUE TO THE 
WEST LINE OF WESTERN AVENUE; 

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF WESTERN AVENUE TO THE 
WESTERLY EXTENSION OF THE NORTH UNE OF CORNELIA AVENUE; 

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID WESTERLY EXTENSION OF THE NORTH LINE 
OF CORNELIA AVENUE TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AT THE EAST LINE OF 
WESTERN AVENUE, ALL IN THE CITY OF CHICAGO, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 
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EXHIBIT 2 

Map 

See attached. 
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Permanent Index Numbers 

See attached pages. 
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SPECIAL SERVICE AREA #38 NORTHCENTER - LIST OF PINs 

13134020480000 13134130411011 13134170481010 13134190250000 13242040290000 

13134020490000 13134130411012 13134170481011 13134190260000 13242040300000 

13134020500000 13134130411013 13134170481012 13134190270000 13242040310000 

13134020530000 13134130411014 13134170481013 13134190280000 13242040320000 

13134040470000 13134130411015 13134170481014 13134190290000 13242040330000 

13134040480000 13134130411016 13134170481015 13134190300000 13242040340000 

13134040490000 13134140350000 13134170481016 13134190310000 13242040350000 

13134040500000 13134140360000 13134170481017 13134190320000 13242040360000 

13134040510000 13134140370000 13134170481018 13134190330000 13242040370000 

13134040520000 13134140430000 13134170481019 13134190340000 13242050280000 

13134040530000 13134140440000 13134170481020 13134190350000 13242050290000 

13134040540000 13134140451001 13134170481021 13134190360000 13242050300000 

13134060540000 13134140451002 13134170481022 13134190370000 13242050310000 

13134060550000 13134140451003 13134170481023 13242000290000 13242050320000 

13134060560000 13134140451004 13134170481024 13242010010000 13242050340000 

13134060570000 13134140451005 13134170481025 13242010020000 13242050350000 

13134060580000 13134140451006 13134170481026 13242020040000 13242070140000 

13134080510000 13134140451007 13134170481027 13242020050000 13242070180000 

13134080520000 13134140461001 13134170481028 13242020060000 13242090230000 

13134080530000 13134140461002 13134170481029 13242020070000 13242090240000 

13134080540000 13134140461003 13134170481030 13242020080000 13242090250000 

13134080550000 13134140461004 13134170490000 13242020090000 13242090260000 

13134080560000 13134140461005 13134170500000 13242020100000 13242090270000 

13134080570000 13134140461006 13134170510000 13242020110000 13242090280000 

13134080580000 13134140461007 13134170520000 13242020120000 13242090290000 

13134080590000 13134140471001 13134170530000 13242020130000 13242090300000 

13134080600000 13134140471002 13134170540000 13242020310000 13242090310000 

13134130330000 13134140471003 13134180350000 13242020320000 13242090320000 

13134130340000 13134140471004 13134180360000 13242020330000 13242090330000 

13134130350000 13134150150000 13134180370000 13242020340000 13242090340000 

13134130360000 13134160220000 13134180380000 13242020370000 13242090350000 

13134130370000 13134160230000 13134180390000 13242020380000 13242090360000 

13134130380000 13134160270000 13134180400000 13242020390000 13242090370000 

13134130411001 13134160290000 13134180410000 13242020400000 13242090380000 

13134130411002 13134170481001 13134180420000 13242020410000 13242090390000 

13134130411003 13134170481002 13134180430000 13242020420000 13242090400000 

13134130411004 13134170481003 13134180440000 13242030340000 13244020060000 

13134130411005 13134170481004 13134190190000 13242030350000 13244020180000 

13134130411006 13134170481005 13134190200000 13242030360000 13244020280000 

13134130411007 13134170481006 13134190210000 13242030370000 13244020290000 

13134130411008 13134170481007 13134190220000 13242030380000 13244020300000 

13134130411009 13134170481008 13134190230000 13242030390000 13244030010000 

13134130411010 13134170481009 13134190240000 13242030400000 13244070070000 



SPECIAL SERVICE AREA #38 NORTHCENTER - LIST OF PINs 

14183000020000 14183040020000 14183070010000 14183120471002 14183150240000 

14183000030000 14183040030000 14183070020000 14183120471003 14183150491001 

14183000040000 14183040040000 14183070030000 14183120471004 14183150491002 

14183000060000 14183040050000 14183070040000 14183120471005 14183150491003 

14183000070000 14183040060000 14183070190000 14183120471006 14183190400000 

14183000080000 14183040070000 14183070201001 14183130010000 14183190410000 

14183000090000 14183040100000 14183070201002 14183130020000 14183190420000 

14183000100000 14183040170000 14183070201003 14183130030000 14183190460000 

14183000110000 14183040180000 14183070201004 14183130040000 14183190471001 

14183000120000 14183040200000 14183070201005 14183130060000 14183190471002 

14183000130000 14183040210000 14183070201006 14183130070000 14183190471003 

14183000140000 14183040220000 14183070201007 14183130511001 14183190481001 

14183000160000 14183040240000 14183070201008 14183130511002 14183190481002 

14183000170000 14183040250000 14183070201009 14183130511003 14183190481003 

14183000180000 14183040260000 14183090010000 14183130511004 14183190481004 

14183000190000 14183040281001 14183090020000 14183140030000 14183190481005 

14183000410000 14183040281002 14183090030000 14183140040000 14183190481006 

14183000420000 14183040281003 14183090040000 14183140430000 14183190481007 

14183000461001 14183040281004 14183090050000 14183140440000 14183190481008 

14183000461002 14183050010000 14183090060000 14183140450000 14183190481009 

14183000461003 14183050030000 14183090070000 14183140460000 14183190490000 

14183000461004 14183050050000 14183090080000 14183150010000 14183190500000 

14183000461005 14183050060000 14183090090000 14183150030000 14183190510000 

14183000461006 14183050080000 14183090700000 14183150040000 14183190521001 

14183000461007 14183050090000 14183090710000 14183150050000 14183190521002 

14183000461008 14183050110000 14183090720000 14183150060000 14183190531001 

14183000461009 14183050361001 14183090730000 14183150070000 14183190531002 

14183000461010 14183050361002 14183120190000 14183150080000 14183190531003 

14183000461011 14183050361003 14183120210000 14183150090000 14183190531004 

14183000461012 14183050361004 14183120220000 14183150100000 14183190531005 

14183000461013 14183050361005 14183120230000 14183150110000 14183190531006 

14183000461014 14183050371001 14183120240000 14183150120000 14183190531007 

14183000461015 14183050371002 14183120250000 14183150130000 14183190531008 

14183000461016 14183050371003 14183120260000 14183150140000 14183190531009 

14183000461017 14183050371004 14183120270000 14183150150000 14183190531010 

14183000461018 14183050380000 14183120280000 14183150160000 14183190531011 

14183000461019 14183050391001 14183120290000 14183150170000 14183190531012 

14183000461020 14183050391002 14183120300000 14183150180000 14183200010000 

14183000461021 14183050391003 14183120320000 14183150190000 14183200020000 

14183000470000 14183050401001 14183120410000 14183150200000 14183200030000 

14183000481001 14183050401002 14183120461001 14183150210000 14183200040000 

14183000481002 14183050401003 14183120461002 14183150220000 14183200070000 

14183040010000 14183050401004 14183120471001 14183150230000 14183200401001 



SPECIAL SERVICE AREA #38 NORTHCENTER - LIST OF PINs 

14183200401002 14183210601004 14183210601047 14183220260000 14183230121029 

14183200401003 14183210601005 14183210601048 14183220270000 14183230121030 

14183200401004 14183210601006 14183210601049 14183220280000 14183230121031 

14183200401005 14183210601007 14183210601050 14183220290000 14183230121032 

14183200401006 14183210601008 14183210601051 14183220300000 14183230121033 

14183200401007 14183210601009 14183210601052 14183220310000 14183230121034 

14183200401008 14183210601010 14183210601053 14183220331001 14183230121035 

14183200401009 14183210601011 14183210601054 14183220331002 14183230121036 

14183200401010 14183210601012 14183210601055 14183220331003 14183230121037 

14183200401011 14183210601013 14183210601056 14183220331004 14183230121038 

14183200401012 14183210601014 14183210601057 14183230060000 14183230121039 

14183200401013 14183210601015 14183210601058 14183230070000 14183230121040 

14183200401014 14183210601016 14183210601059 14183230080000 14183230121041 

14183200401015 14183210601017 14183210601060 14183230090000 14183230121042 

14183200401016 14183210601018 14183210601061 14183230110000 14183230121043 

14183200401017 14183210601019 14183210601062 14183230121001 14183230121044 

14183200401018 14183210601020 14183210601063 14183230121002 14183230121045 

14183200401019 14183210601021 14183210601064 14183230121003 14183230121046 

14183200401020 14183210601022 14183210601065 14183230121004 14183230121047 

14183200401021 14183210601023 14183210601066 14183230121005 14183230121048 

14183200401022 14183210601024 14183210601067 14183230121006 14183230121049 

14183200401023 14183210601025 14183210610000 14183230121007 14183230121050 

14183200401024 14183210601026 14183210620000 14183230121008 14183230121051 

14183200401025 14183210601027 14183210630000 14183230121009 14183230121052 

14183200401026 14183210601028 14183210640000 14183230121010 14183230121053 

14183200401027 14183210601029 14183210651001 14183230121011 14183230121054 

14183200401028 14183210601030 14183210651002 14183230121012 14183230121055 

14183200401029 14183210601031 14183210651003 14183230121013 14183230121056 

14183200401030 14183210601032 14183210651004 14183230121014 14183230121057 

14183200401031 14183210601033 14183210661001 14183230121015 14183230121058 

14183200411001 14183210601034 14183210661002 14183230121016 14183230121059 

14183200411002 14183210601035 14183210661003 14183230121017 14183230121060 

14183200411003 14183210601036 14183210661004 14183230121018 14183230121061 

14183200411004 14183210601037 14183220020000 14183230121019 14183230121062 

14183200421001 14183210601038 14183220030000 14183230121020 14183230121063 

14183200421002 14183210601039 14183220040000 14183230121021 14183230121064 

14183200421003 14183210601040 14183220050000 14183230121022 14183230121065 

14183200421004 14183210601041 14183220070000 14183230121023 14183230121066 

14183210540000 14183210601042 14183220080000 14183230121024 14183230121067 

14183210590000 14183210601043 14183220200000 14183230121025 14183230121068 

14183210601001 14183210601044 14183220210000 14183230121026 14183230121069 

14183210601002 14183210601045 14183220240000 14183230121027 14183230121070 

14183210601003 14183210601046 14183220250000 14183230121028 14183230121071 



SPECIAL SERVICE AREA #38 NORTHCENTER - LIST OF PINs 

14183230121072 14183270170000 14183270271036 14183280031039 14183280031082 

14183230121073 14183270180000 14183270271037 14183280031040 14183280031083 

14183230121074 14183270190000 14183270271038 14183280031041 14183280031084 

14183230121075 14183270220000 14183270271039 14183280031042 14183280031085 

14183230121076 14183270230000 14183280010000 14183280031043 14183290250000 

14183230121077 14183270240000 14183280031001 14183280031044 14183290280000 

14183230121078 14183270250000 14183280031002 14183280031045 14183290290000 

14183230121079 14183270260000 14183280031003 14183280031046 14183290300000 

14183230121080 14183270271001 14183280031004 14183280031047 14183290340000 

14183230121081 14183270271002 14183280031005 14183280031048 14183290350000 

14183230121082 14183270271003 14183280031006 14183280031049 14183290360000 

14183230121083 14183270271004 14183280031007 14183280031050 14183290370000 

14183230121084 14183270271005 14183280031008 14183280031051 14183290380000 

14183230121085 14183270271006 14183280031009 14183280031052 14183290390000 

14183230121086 14183270271007 14183280031010 14183280031053 14183290400000 

14183230121087 14183270271008 14183280031011 14183280031054 14183290410000 

14183230121088 14183270271009 14183280031012 14183280031055 14183290420000 

14183230121089 14183270271010 14183280031013 14183280031056 14183290440000 

14183230121090 14183270271011 14183280031014 14183280031057 14183290450000 

14183230121091 14183270271012 14183280031015 14183280031058 14183290460000 

14183230121092 14183270271013 14183280031016 14183280031059 14183290470000 

14183240350000 14183270271014 14183280031017 14183280031060 14183290480000 

14183240360000 14183270271015 14183280031018 14183280031061 14183290490000 

14183240370000 14183270271016 14183280031019 14183280031062 14183290501001 

14183240380000 14183270271017 14183280031020 14183280031063 14183290501002 

14183240390000 14183270271018 14183280031021 14183280031064 14183290501003 

14183240400000 14183270271019 14183280031022 14183280031065 14183290501004 

14183240420000 14183270271020 14183280031023 14183280031066 14183290501005 

14183240430000 14183270271021 14183280031024 14183280031067 14183290501006 

14183240440000 14183270271022 14183280031025 14183280031068 14183290501007 

14183240471001 14183270271023 14183280031026 14183280031069 14183290501008 

14183240471002 14183270271024 14183280031027 14183280031070 14183290501009 

14183250030000 14183270271025 14183280031028 14183280031071 14183300120000 

14183250040000 14183270271026 14183280031029 14183280031072 14183300130000 

14183250050000 14183270271027 14183280031030 14183280031073 14183300140000 

14183250060000 14183270271028 14183280031031 14183280031074 14183300150000 

14183250070000 14183270271029 14183280031032 14183280031075 14183300160000 

14183250080000 14183270271030 14183280031033 14183280031076 14183300170000 

14183250090000 14183270271031 14183280031034 14183280031077 14183300180000 

14183250100000 14183270271032 14183280031035 14183280031078 14183300190000 

14183250110000 14183270271033 14183280031036 14183280031079 14183300200000 

14183250120000 14183270271034 14183280031037 14183280031080 14183300220000 

14183270160000 14183270271035 14183280031038 14183280031081 14183300230000 



SPECIAL SERVICE AREA #38 NORTHCENTER - LIST OF PINs 

14183300240000 14184230451013 14184240381004 14191000351022 14191010050000 

14183300250000 14184230451014 14184240381005 14191000351023 14191010060000 

14183300260000 14184230451015 14184240381006 14191000351024 14191010070000 

14183300270000 14184230451016 14184240381007 14191000351025 14191010080000 

14183300280000 14184230451017 14184240381008 14191000361001 14191020010000 

14183300310000 14184230451018 14184240381009 14191000361002 14191020040000 

14183300320000 14184230451019 14184240381010 14191000361003 14191020070000 

14183300330000 14184230451020 14184240381011 14191000361004 14191020371001 

14183300340000 14184230451021 14184240381012 14191000361005 14191020371002 

14183300350000 14184230451022 14184240381013 14191000361006 14191020371003 

14183300361001 14184230451023 14184240381014 14191000361007 14191020371004 

14183300361002 14184230451024 14184240381015 14191000361008 14191020381001 

14183300361003 14184230451025 14184240381016 14191000361009 14191020381002 

14184230010000 14184230451026 14185000600000 14191000361010 14191020381003 

14184230020000 14184230451027 14191000010000 14191000361011 14191020381004 

14184230030000 14184230451028 14191000020000 14191000361012 14191020391001 

14184230040000 14184230451029 14191000030000 14191000361013 14191020391002 

14184230200000 14184230451030 14191000130000 14191000361014 14191020391003 

14184230210000 14184230460000 14191000290000 14191000361015 14191020391004 

14184230250000 14184230470000 14191000300000 14191000361016 14191020391005 

14184230260000 14184230480000 14191000310000 14191000361017 14191020391006 

14184230270000 14184230490000 14191000320000 14191000370000 14191020391007 

14184230280000 14184240210000 14191000351001 14191000381001 14191020391008 

14184230290000 14184240280000 14191000351002 14191000381002 14191020391009 

14184230320000 14184240291001 14191000351003 14191000381003 14191030010000 

14184230330000 14184240291002 14191000351004 14191000381004 14191030160000 

14184230380000 14184240291003 14191000351005 14191000381005 14191040020000 

14184230390000 14184240291004 14191000351006 14191000381006 14191040030000 

14184230400000 14184240291005 14191000351007 14191000381007 14191040040000 

14184230420000 14184240291006 14191000351008 14191000381008 14191040330000 

14184230430000 14184240291007 14191000351009 14191000381009 14191040340000 

14184230451001 14184240291008 14191000351010 14191000381010 14191050010000 

14184230451002 14184240291009 14191000351011 14191000381011 14191050020000 

14184230451003 14184240291010 14191000351012 14191000381012 14191050030000 

14184230451004 14184240291011 14191000351013 14191000381013 14191050040000 

14184230451005 14184240291012 14191000351014 14191000381014 14191050050000 

14184230451006 14184240291013 14191000351015 14191000381015 14191060010000 

14184230451007 14184240310000 14191000351016 14191000381016 14191060020000 

14184230451008 14184240340000 14191000351017 14191000381017 14191060030000 

14184230451009 14184240350000 14191000351018 14191010010000 14191060040000 

14184230451010 14184240381001 14191000351019 14191010020000 14191060340000 

14184230451011 14184240381002 14191000351020 14191010030000 14191070010000 

14184230451012 14184240381003 14191000351021 14191010040000 14191070160000 



SPECIAL SERVICE AREA #38 NORTHCENTER - LIST OF PINs 

14191070170000 14191160120000 14192000321007 14192020141013 14192120451006 

14191070180000 14191160130000 14192000331001 14192030010000 14192120451007 

14191070220000 14191160140000 14192000331002 14192030020000 14192120451008 

14191070230000 14191160150000 14192000331003 14192030030000 14192120451009 

14191070250000 14191160160000 14192000331004 14192030040000 14192120451010 

14191080010000 14191160170000 14192000341001 14192030050000 14192120451011 

14191080020000 14191240010000 14192000341002 14192030060000 14192120451012 

14191080030000 14191240020000 14192000341003 14192030070000 14192120451013 

14191080050000 14191240030000 14192000341004 14192090100000 14192120451014 

14191080060000 14191240040000 14192010010000 14192090120000 14192120451015 

14191080070000 14191240050000 14192010020000 14192090130000 14192120451016 

14191080080000 14191240060000 14192010030000 14192090180000 14192120451017 

14191080090000 14191240070000 14192010040000 14192090190000 14192120451018 

14191080100000 14191240080000 14192010320000 14192090231001 14192120451019 

14191080110000 14191240090000 14192010370000 14192090231002 14192120451020 

14191080120000 14191240100000 14192010380000 14192090231003 14192120451021 

14191080130000 14191240110000 14192020010000 14192090231004 14192120451022 

14191080140000 14191240120000 14192020020000 14192100010000 14192120451023 

14191080150000 14191240270000 14192020030000 14192100020000 14192120451024 

14191080380000 14192000010000 14192020040000 14192100030000 14192120451025 

14191080401001 14192000020000 14192020050000 14192100040000 14192120451026 

14191080401002 14192000030000 14192020060000 14192100050000 14192120451027 

14191080401003 14192000040000 14192020070000 14192110260000 14192190030000 

14191080401004 14192000050000 14192020100000 14192110280000 14192190040000 

14191080401005 14192000060000 14192020110000 14192110290000 14192190050000 

14191080401006 14192000070000 14192020120000 14192110300000 14192190060000 

14191080401007 14192000080000 14192020131001 14192110320000 14192190120000 

14191080401008 14192000130000 14192020131002 14192110330000 14192190151001 

14191080401009 14192000140000 14192020131003 14192110340000 14192190151002 

14191080401010 14192000150000 14192020131004 14192110391001 14192190151003 

14191080401011 14192000160000 14192020131005 14192110391002 14192190151004 

14191080401012 14192000170000 14192020141001 14192110391003 14192190151005 

14191160010000 14192000180000 14192020141002 14192110391004 14192190151006 

14191160020000 14192000311001 14192020141003 14192120010000 14192190151007 

14191160030000 14192000311002 14192020141004 14192120060000 14192190151008 

14191160040000 14192000311003 14192020141005 14192120421001 14192190151009 

14191160050000 14192000311004 14192020141006 14192120421002 14192190151010 

14191160060000 14192000321001 14192020141007 14192120421003 14192190151011 

14191160070000 14192000321002 14192020141008 14192120451001 14192190151012 

14191160080000 14192000321003 14192020141009 14192120451002 14192190151013 

14191160090000 14192000321004 14192020141010 14192120451003 14192190151014 

14191160100000 14192000321005 14192020141011 14192120451004 14192190151015 

14191160110000 14192000321006 14192020141012 14192120451005 14192190151016 



SPECIAL SERVICE AREA #38 NORTHCENTER - LIST OF PINs 

14192190151017 14192190220000 

14192190151018 14192200120000 

14192190151019 14192260130000 

14192190151020 14192260140000 

14192190151021 14192260150000 

14192190151022 14192260160000 

14192190151023 14192260180000 

14192190151024 14192280240000 

14192190151025 14192280250000 

14192190151026 14192280260000 

14192190151027 14192280270000 

14192190151028 14192280280000 

14192190151029 14192280320000 

14192190151030 14192280360000 

14192190151031 14192280370000 

14192190151032 14193000010000 

14192190151033 14193000020000 

14192190151034 14193000030000 

14192190151035 14193000040000 

14192190151036 14193000050000 

14192190151037 14193000060000 

14192190151038 14193000070000 

14192190151039 14193000080000 

14192190151040 14193000090000 

14192190170000 14193000100000 

14192190181001 14193000110000 

14192190181002 14193000120000 

14192190181003 14193000130000 

14192190181004 14195000170000 

14192190181005 14195000480000 

14192190181006 

14192190181007 

14192190181008 

14192190190000 

14192190201001 

14192190201002 

14192190201003 

14192190201004 

14192190201005 

14192190201006 

14192190201007 

14192190201008 

14192190210000 



EXHIBIT 4 

Public Hearing Notice 

See attached pages 

S:\SHARED\Finance\SSAs\SSA-2014\Adam-28-2014, 35, 38-2014, 60\SSA38-
2014\Hearing\Levy Extension\2014SSA38-Levy Extension ORD.doc 



S ? r * ^ ? r r T ' ^ " ' " ° ' OO^^ERCE s u n T i m e s M e d i a 
SSA # J 8 -Northcenter 

ADORDERNUMBER: 0000860216-01 C h i c a g o S u n - T i i T i e s 

PONUMBER: SSA#38-Northcenter C e r t i f i c a t e o f P u b U c a t i o n 
AMOUNT: 1,958.40 

NO OF AFFIDAVITS: 1 State of Illinois - County of Cook 

Chicago Sun-Times, does hereby certify it has published the attached advertisments in 
the following secular newspapers. All newspapers meet Illinois Compiled Statue 
requirements for publication of Notices per Chapter 715 ILCS 5/0.01 et seq. R.S. 1874, 
P728 Sec 1, EPF. July 1, 1874. Amended by Laws 1959, PI494, EFF. July 17, 1959. 
Formerly III. Rev. StaL 1991, CH100, PI. 
Note: Notice appeared in the following checked positions. 

PUBLICATION DATE(S): 10/21/2014 

Chicago Sun-Times 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned, being duly authorized, has caused 
this Certificate to be signed and notarized 

By 

Jeremy Gates 

Account Manager - Public Legal Notices 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 21 st Day of October 2014 A.D. 

NORTHCENTER CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 
4054 N.LINCOLN AVENUE 
CHICAGO, IL 60618 



NORTHCENTER CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 
SSA 38 

0000860737-01 ADORDERNUMBER 

PO NUMBER 

AIMOUNT 

NO OF AFFIDAVITS 

SSA 38 

0.00 

1 

Sun Times Media 
Chicago Sun-Times 

Certificate of Publication 

state of Illinois - County of Cook 

Chicago Sun-Times, does hereby certify it has published the attached advertisments in 
the following secular newspapers. All newspapers meet Illinois Compiled Statue 
requirements for publication of Notices per Chapter 715 ILCS 5/0.01 et seq. R.S. 1874, 
P728 Sec 1, EFF. July 1, 1874. Amended by Laws 1959, P1494, EFF. July 17, 1959. 
Formerly III. Rev. Stat. 1991, CH100, PI. 
Note: Notice appeared In the following checked positions. 

PUBLICATION DATE(S): 10/21/2014 

Chicago Sun-Times 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned, being duly authorized, has caused 
this Certificate to be signed and notarized 

By 

Jeremy Gates 
Account Manager - Public Legal Notices 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 21st Day of October 2014 A D. 

NORTHCENTER CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 
4054 N.LINCOLN AVENUE 
CHICAGO, IL 60618 



NORTHCENTER CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 
SSA 38 

ADORDERNUMBER 

PO NUMBER 

AMOUNT: 

NO OF AFFIDAVITS 

0000860740-01 

SSA 38 

0.00 

1 

Sun Times Media 
Chicago Sun-Times 

Certificate of Publication 

state of Illinois - County of Cook 

Chicago Sun-Times, does hereby certify it has published the attached advertisments in 
the following secular newspapers. All newspapers meet Illinois Compiled Statue 
requirements for publication of Notices per Chapter 715 ILCS 5/0.01 et seq. R.S. 1874, 
P728 Sec 1, EFF. July 1, 1874. Amended by Laws 1959, PI494, EFF. July 17, 1959. 
Formerly III. Rev. Stat. 1991, CH100, PI. 
Note: Notice appeared in the following checked positions. 

PUBLICATION DATE(S): 10/21/2014 

Chicago Sun-Times 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned, being duly authorized, has caused 
this Certificate to be signed and notarized 

By 

Jeremy Gates 
Account Manager - Public Legal Notices 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 2lst Day of October 2014 A.D. 

NORTHCENTER CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 
4054 N.LINCOLN AVENUE 
CHICAGO, IL 60618 
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•Koila is herEfay.'cimi tt i i « '̂lQj6b ci'dQd[v'î .m r̂n'â ^̂ ^̂ ^ 
'City CouncilChandKrt;.City Hiti,',izi Norih'LaSatli'Slreet/Chicaso'lCinoa.'i piAlic heatirigvtn 
be heU'ty tlk Commtitee on'fuurice llu Or/ CQUDCJ of the C&y'ol Chicaoo to cbnsidtrceftain 
fflatteTt'wnh'rcspeci to'an' area iriihfci'tfie CCy of Chiaoo'known and designitsd a Sp^dil Service 
fita Humtcr 3i iuiti.ltii'*ill>-^iation,ct.ihe-ten of g tpedal xnnuil unto'tax pSB.'Scrricts 
lu^wtttui) tti!'Aru.tThe'miiten i tnl inctude cnliî ing the',bdtindarlei'el the ottginalipeoal 

Iserhde vt»<Myit keeping ttn'dctiiinalion as'Ct̂ r of Dngo îfwcbl Sevfco'Aru Vumiiier 38'(o 
itiitiire<l,*JhB'fArciT)/r>>] ssDuitiiV'certaa ttecbf'iervices'hi.tKe*A^'<ltsibKttnm M 
)«peaal ticrvkei iirthorcnl t i be prettied (DK hSpedal Services )̂;(iii) •i.-thdrtiiRg aniricrwa inIhs 
rmidnwrn nntul file of (he teyy to'prcvide Vie' Speclll Senrlces lo an aiiininl not eueed 0.333% 
ôf the equalized inesied valiie ot îa uabie |in)perty.n)ih)n the Area'(Ute Services lair), and (iv) 

lautharUng t!ie tidenslon et lAe trme'petiad lor wtudi W levy til tlie Services lax b wttnHted vitliLi 
'jhe Afib tonuphintf JncluiJnplaj yei/aiCJJi,-, j ^ f j ^ i j ^ ' • fS<i, -'̂  ̂ t'-^^-^ 
^g(>thc Sgvtcw'''ia' linder aiaij&aiiai'iiua beauSiortal'la be krM vviiiilv'iirisr'iujt'SOU 
Ithroiiah Bid kiduling 2028 f ti D» prpnstai ol Cie' Spedil SenkeL'-'Ihe'Puiiau'al the Smka lax'tSiil 
Ttxto pTDtlde the Sfxdd Senricti athto flK'Ana; irtddî najr fndn]e,-btii.are Ml timSMl tg. ctstotner 
/•t»di5n,'̂ |»^ '̂vay':aestheaci.iiL'stiaiaM^ 
ideydafnieni;ul.cty tKogniiu,*aad oM.adniUei to proinA ccmmeitial ttid ecoranuc dRcfoprnent. *. 
f̂''V;The.Scfviai'Tix:tC 'fae leviedjigiurat'liv.tTObî ^ 

h>rovi:ion'orthe''Spedar&ivlces'Sh3i;n3^ the jnnu3l!cate;oli0333%;ot ihe'.equalbed 
icsensd ntue of taubis proprtvwShin Lie A/ca.':'ni9'pnipcsed arnount of (he tax levy lot Spccbl 
; Scfvicu in tax jpev 2014 is SZ43,rOS;'nw Scnves Tax itiia be kiitddilion tb afl other UXK prtrnded 
m tin tnd thiM belcvied pu'rsuaiil to Bie'pmwisioits' of the FHojiiuty TA Code* 35 ILCS XXJn-t *£ 

.appmimate cticrl tootion of said tcrrtiorr.consias'ol WonirneiAvefflje on Uia nodti tb'Come'.ia 
l(wst) xM Addiun (e3Sl)'Avetiuei! oii the utitti; WestOTAutnue on the "nest arid Uncoln AwM ori 
i S i a t ^ »U) InbtQ ftrki) Uq midds r̂iMMn IM^dmjiid U r c ^ 
fOF-̂ Al thcpitbEc heacihc'anr'biterSsl peiton^ hchiding'aB persxtTcncnlni} taxa^ real propeny' 
'iocaisd artthb the'propMod Area,'fflected by (if Hie enltrQoncnl'bl Ihf fcdinKUrtes of the ortsktd 
i;«cl3l 'urvfcc'area to the'Aiea'wtine fistpma tha'deslonaUon aŝ Oŷ al Chicaijo'.Spe'cial Scnrlce 
I tm Ni0nber,M*O>).O)e authvicttion'of the spccta) Senricfes in Uie'Arej tJisltRCI from the orfolRal 
'ipuM iervves provided thereiri,*Ou> ItR'authorisitian of Ou increasi b .the maxfrruni aiimsl lite 
f d the teiy of DK Snvlces'.'bx (D pnMde'the Special Servlds'to'vi itirntnit not to tneed 0.333% 
'Ol the eqtiiSKtt ustteed value blthis'lanble praperty wfthln tfe'Aru.'and (iy) the lulhoria'Jan'of 
{the e*tt''isan'î .lfw Coie tKrtofor'oftUi'tta'lnyof th's'Senm aiiiSmadmiOia} ths'Arei 
Jrnn tt» VnSUpciiad tb the period fnmitny^ 2014 (hrBugh and fcicludirq bx year 202S, may'fiU 
ipth'jtii Qtf Certf Df the Cily of.QiaQo wiota objectnos to*and mty be heard oizSf i>th'resprct 
';1d'jiî ,niaiet'enibbdieil bi' lhli>atic«.'>Thi Cenmince'̂  o) tSi'city Covncil ol the Gvol' 
^Ctiiciob shal tor'sul dsteifninc'iB proledk'aiul objections a( nU hearingrand nU heaitn'o rpay be 
- )id)9tiined loarioAerttrte »tOibot lunhier notice other than • mbtion to be cntored upon the ninutes 

pfAionTslomf by,itifeJSl.inrrMe penmf(51%Kofttm'eletton'rtsidir4)y«^^ 
tbotrxtiriec d.ttt(''Anta'aD(l'bY « leal tUlytanc'pcnzrt (51%)'bl thetindowrBrf'-kckildi} VUiin 
ftha tiwntvles sf ttie'Ana tibSeeSag to'(i} itN'enBiDeniient ot the faoiaidaries ol Die oriond tpeaal 
fteivlce'^Vru'brthe.'Axa iihOe' keepyig.thefiletlffntian'iis dtyi'ol'Ctiickgb'Spccid. Servlce;'Area' 
I Number 38.^(1) the authoriiition ol (he SpetU Services biltte Area 6sHaa from Ihe orbnal ipeeiil 
iRfViccs pritmed lhereln,'(ti') the uOiortDHon'OI tie'fncrcau ki the iwlnium onimrrale of the 
. Iny of the'SencesJax lo provide the' Spetnl Service!! b an amount 'not Jo' exceed 0333%'o( the 
'.tijuabbif assKHd va^tedf the' tanbie pioperty wftfan'Uie Arei. andftir (M Iht'ajlterualioD'of tt« 
.edeision of the lime'pe>J0d la'ithJai the' Iny of Ihe ScrviDej.llor HwsOmad wUhai ihe Area pan 
lihe iDfiEri'pciidd lo ttwipe'riod frbrh tax war 2(n4 ih/oiigh and Indkifina tn ynr 2021L-li lUed with 
{the C-ty Clerti''a('Ihs'C!iy ol Chleaob'Mflhin s^]r,<EO)'dah.)<)<lo<*'^'theT^^ adioumffletA'ot Ifn 
public' hearing: theri ivtfi adloh cbgecitd to shalf rot be ipprtned oi autbditzed.'' - v-' .'iA'/t^-i- • 

; M 1 THAT Pj^f Of! SECTlOfjS 13 AM)'24:-1^ 
.11WD:1li;'TIMKSKII>«IIDRTK'>l<>ll£T4E«CT0n)<E-TH»0PRirralM^U^ 

liitjEEiiiiniiG Af.Ttif•iim,if,mmsccimii,mEsis[ imcof.vtsmm jtv»uE tmu 
iwt mmioBCf p)iWM'«vg»it w.iTiEiYigr.wif opTngsouTHVVBTinuim 

/WBiutMoiiHEiiognQiuGaaEKnnisiai^iil.THEi^^ 

•janes l i f l i l lL ' l l l I i " lT l l i i i l lW<(W>1" i " . " iT j r ' " " I l i T " 

WTHETUE-WniVI>]jOwrSATO^ 
iVinH UUy.EASTOfnESTERNWEIllE »ND,niE«tSt;UKE!T«EIiaif.TO THE SOUTH UfrtOf. 

J.'SSHOTSSomfl'Al.bjjff-tHElSOl^ OFTHEWtsr-UKE Of .THE!« fOOT 
[WDE UlEV EAST Of.WESTEin tVEKUC WD tHE'WEST UtIE JHEnEOF.TO THE SOUTH U?.'C 

«TI<ENCE'hmH'ALOIlS'TI£ jOinHEIUY.EXltlSnn«F,1HE WESTjLK OF<m^ 

KBamSmmim^mciSme^^ oFjHE'flwoT 
rWlOC'AU£Y:EAST;OFiWESIERM'WOnJErAia)ilHEtM5T.iJNE)THERa)f.>TDT^ 
CnBBI0li:0Fs1Hfri;0mH:ilNE0F^THE1CtnH>1CnEt:OfU>t:VU'M;THE''SU^ 
Mcj(fo(,raiuTDis.Of.M£."x:os(imv!SiiUMS^ 

:THei(CE EUfuONG'm'ExmiSIDIlVuiD^ Sr̂ IHESOUTH U FSI (KCOT 

4V(rHEI«mRIH«L0niiStlDE«STUI£KU!Ult<»ID^in0l^^^ 

iplfHEIJ&lASf«LaKG'£UD*am 

i;-.:.THENCESOUTH'AU).'JG SAID EAST LINE Cf.OAKLEY.AVEMUE TO.THE SOinHUNE 0F.L0T.1S 
IN THE SUBDtVlSION Of.BLilCK B (EXCEPT THE V/EST:124 f f ET Of.THE EAST.157 Of >T1£N0HTH 
S75 fEETl IN EXECUTORS 0^W£. JONES SUBDIVISION IN SECTION.IB;?;-;̂ ^ i'.rir.-r*t?-^«i/ 
?>;THENCE' wtAUiNG.THE^s6^^^^ UNE OF.lbf5Tl5:THROUGKi'tN SMD SUSOiv̂ ^̂  
BLOCKBTn THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF.SAID LOT 6: ^V!(:».;\^vft^^/.iV^^"^ 
.; P(EKttiEAST>wbHG^m£felW 
SUflOMSIO.1 Of SEOCN 8 TO THE EAST IfNf Of̂ fif LL*AVEKUE: V i X ' l " '"̂ > ̂ ' •: .V t , r 
tviTHENCE'MUtH.WONG'Siĵ  
FOOT WIDE VACATED AUJEVSOUTH OF.mvlBG PAtIK llOAD;fijt^TtP" '' ''^^'jSdSr^' 
- ; ^ . m i i a « S A i j b r a s « o M m 
IRVIIJG PARK ROAD AND.THE EASTERLY EXIEKSIOHaKEAEOF'ALINE.124 FEET.WESTiOF THE 
WESTiiKEofLEAVinsTnEET:*!''.-1jiVi.i:;;^ ^'"^j/'^i**.-.?-

. THEliCESOUTH ALONG SAID LlNE.i^ FEET WEST Of THE WEST LINE Of LEAVITT STREETTO 
A LINE 375 FEET SOUTH Of.THE SOUTH LINE OFJRVING PARK ROAD: ^>(.*itV ^^^^^k^K" 
^L îTlSKtt EACT Ai6aG"S«bVlfJE 
ID THE WEST UNE OF LE«nn,STH£ET.'inVMv;"!^-.SS-)fS-'wSSK 
•K:iWr7g«dRfB'AljDN0'S«DvSst:i)NE.<tf 
0F.T11E NORTH LINEOFiTHE-16 FOOTyflDE ALLEY SOUm Of IRVING PARK R0AO;'>^JtJ«!* 
:r̂ TteNttrEASt-ALONGSWD'NORTH UHE Of THE'Ve rddt.wiDEALlrV"SOUTH OfiiRVrfiG 
PARK ROAO AND THE EASIERLYEXTENSI0.1 THEREOFTO THE SOUIH'.VESI CORNER Of.UIT.-10 
IN THE SUBDIVISION 0F.BL0CX7.IN EXECUTORS OF WE. JONES SUBDIVISION IN SECnON.IS: :: 
s.'lfHENCE''EAST'MlbtjG iTHÊ SdinH U 
BLOCK 7iro THE SOUTHEASTTORNEROESAIO LOT/: V^^r'tJVS-i*^'-'^^^ 
PlTliNa!E>fiT:AL6NG:fHE:EASTEflU';EXTEfem^^ 
SUBOMSIOH'OE BL0CK7 T0'TI1E.S0UTHWE5T:C0RNER DF.LOT'SS IN-THE SU60IV1SIQH Of 
BIMK6 IN EXECUTORS Of W£ aONES SUBDIVISION IN SECTION 19:;;'.^•^, .r . V ftv ,• 
.-VTltNi* EASTALOKG THE SOUIHLIK̂ ^ Of iiOTS 55 THROUCH.is IN SAID SUBDIVISION Of 
ElOCKBTOTHE SOUIHEASTCORNER Of SAID L0T<6,'.::i.V V ' A i t ' : ."• ' ; . ' ^ " ; * ' i ' j >S 
nTHENCtTEAST.ALONG THE EASTERLV.EXIENSioH Of.fHE SOUTH LINE Of.ljOT «1N SAID 
SUBDIVISION Of-BUKK £ TOiTHE S0U1HWEST.C0RNER Of.LOT JS'IN SAID.SUBDIVISION Of 

: ilKENCE EACT.AlOfcVTHE^SbufH U>i£!Of;iOTS:45:™oUGH <i.*m^^ 
EXIEF.'SION Of THE SOUTH UNE Of lOI 41 TO-THE EAST LINE OfiTME 16'F00T:WIDE:AHEY 
VrtST0F.DAl!ENAVENUE:v3,-;<!jj|Vk:,i,'4tto 
a.IHEjlCt'sdoTH ALONG SAID EASTiUilÊ OFlVHE 16'HjOT.WI0£-ALLEY WEST,OF 0«Ua 
AVEMJE.TO THE SOUTH UNE Or,LOrjT8IMSA(OSU80IVISfO.YOf,BlOCK6:yf:i.V*\«?.̂ ;̂ ?: 
t^iHEMX EAST-ALinS S^^^ W'»b'SUBOlvKlON Of BLOCK B AND 
THE EASTERLY,EKTENSIOH TKEHEDf.TO THE EAST UNE 0FDA7JIEW AVEI)U£:i^.^?Vr-5i^v>' 
i'"T«NbEE0UiH>iOWG»V£A^ 
STREET:>^i~;v.ys::-;:i;i;»-v^!;;-VA!pSy^^ 
{i'.THEliCE EAST ALbUG SAID NORTH LINE Of BYROK STREET JO THE'NORniERLY.EXTENSION 
0HHEB>SIUNE0F,Tm.16JtmwlDEAli£iEAq,(50AMENAVEhat^ 
^rtHTNfct SOtflHVoNG SAID NOHIHdlL^ 
WIDE AlIEY.EASTOf DAMEN AVENUE AND .THE EAST UNE THEREOF.TTI IHE SOUTH LIfXOf L0t 
Ze IN BL0CK̂ 14 IH CHARLES-J.-FORÔ  SUBDIVISION OF CLOCKS 3N, 5 AND LOTS 1?2,̂ 3 OF 
BUJCK1S OF.IHtSUBBMSION OF.CECilOII lS;'f.^J^:; .'S^sKif '•' ^ . -SS** .*? ' 
I'THENK EAST MOWS SAiOn 

SOBDmSI0H!TOWEASTLINE,1H£RE0F:i«Il)j,f.y:;.::i;';,;Vj*>"iV'^ 
ÛTHEFJCEUOmH AiiOi.'G'SAiD EAST.LKE OfiOT 26 W BL0d(i4 IN SAID CHAALES-XTOflirS 

SUSOMSION.TO.THE SOUTNERir.'UNE OF LOr.2 IN SLOCK .IJ.'M 5AII7 CHAin£S'J.'fOIVrS 

t"'-rriEf.tE'NOmHEAStERLY.kONG SMD SOUTHS IN'SAIO 
CHABLES;j1F0RD'S:SUBDIVlSI0«.-.T0,THE;EASIERLV;LI!IE.0f.-THEi1< fOOTiVTIDElAllEY 
SOUTIIWESIEHLY Of UNCOLH AVENUE: ; . : i.J;^;.. 
t̂lHElXE'.'sdimiEASIERLY.'ALONii 

SOUTHWESTERLY Of UNCOUl AVENUE TO.THEliORIHERLVLINE.OF,U)Ti.B1N BL0CKjt4:IN 
SAID CHARIESXFORO'S SUBDIVISION; j,;^;S>3Pi 5('5S8'-<!&Si*-J'Sv''SSKtii-^' 
i.STHffiCEj.'OflTHEASIERiY AU»^ OflOT^IIJN BLOiX K'In SAIO 
CHARLES J.'FORD'S SUBOIVISIOIfTOTHE EAST LIHE THEREOF;--Jirr̂ î .-,-.; r-^^^V".-!: ' 
';y,tHEiCE'SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OELOTjIz IN BLOCK 14 m SAID OWRLESĴ  FORD'S 
SUBDIVISION TO THE NORTH LINtOF BERENICE AVE«UE;;;i 1 >i..«>;•. S';(;- . • ; ; * ;« ; - : i ' 
-̂î H^CEEACT ALONG SiUDiloMHUiiEOf 

0FTHrEASTUNE0FlOT6SWBLOCK.141NSAI0OtARL£5J.'R)R0:SSU3aM Î0rJ;iSM^ 
S iT i iSa SOUTH ALONG 
11M SAIO CHAOtS 'J.<fORira SUOOIVISION AKDiTHE EAST;UIIEiIHE!iai&10 JHE EASIBU 
LNEOF.WIt^OLWIDEAUEYSOlfTHWESIERLYffiUKOUIAVE^ 
I.'yiHBICETsOinHEASIHlLYTM^ 
SOUniWES!Bll.Y>OF.llliCOia AVENUE lo: 
SAiD1CHARi£si'fiiim susqiyeint^; 
Si*.4i6ffi»5»nHEAsreto.5iLii»^ 
'>wi^;'j.wnD:siueoivgiON^^^ 
pHaasliuTHMlj^^^ 
ilSW(lS10f4Jp,THEMmTHlINEJlMnAligg!ET;-JW ^ 
.'̂ THUnXTEAStlAUMG^MO'ill̂  

UWa^lWENlIil^ 

lo6T,vnOEAlJ£YM)RTHOf.WAVEUlNDAVENUt:'̂ ^:;J<^,:Sft!|S<w1V7J-.(j^ 
:THEHIXEAST.ALOilG »!D NORTH UNE OF THE 16 FOOT WIDEAUEY.KOmHOF.mVELAIlb 

AVENUE.TO'THE EASTERLT.UNEOFTHE 1G FWTWIOEALLEŶ SOUniWESIERLYOF UNCOLN 

5E™t?irisa':..-;ys>î *w-i<*'̂  
l,:..THEN(£(S0mHEASTERLYiAL0N0;SAID)EASIERiy.̂ UNEWWCt1G:IO0TiWIDEf̂ ^ 
SOlilHlVESIERLYJIF LINCOLN AVBIUE TD.TKE NORTHEflLY ONE 0F.LOT.17;IN BLOCK̂ I M JOHN 

'iDHN.TUnNER:SjpBSUBDIVISION<)f.ll(iOCai);THKqi(;H;<QigjHE^^ 
(î fn<EI«£l$bUTH'AuitlGTMb'EA^ 
HBRS suiotvisioN TojHE NORjH U K a j ! / t m j m j . w i i b : ' . ^ < i - i : i : . i ^ f ! f : T i g i 
:'^^aHBiOE{EASt>'Ai.W^blm 
tXIENSION O F ^ EIWT LINE.Of̂ THE.IS FOOTWIDEWIEY EAST Of.WOLCOn'AVEKUEltf̂ iq: 
î T r̂iitNccT^LrmvujdNG'sAm EAst.LmE v-riiEiis fodr 
rilDE ALLEYiEASTOF.WOLCOIT AVENUE AND IHE'EASTUNE THEREOf.TO.THE EASTEftLY UNE 
0f,JHE«fO0B«0EALlP(S0UmWESTERLY^0f.UNC0LNAVENUEjiS3 .̂\»l54^ 
'Ĵ . .iriENCEiSbUniEASltRLY^ALbNG ^.S^^ 
SOUTHWESTERLY Of UNCOLN AVENUE AND.THE SOUTHEASTERLY.EXTglSION THHIEOEJO THE 
SOU;\IERlY,UNEJ)F.PATIERSON ' ' ^ " ' ^ • f W > ' * l E ^ i f f l P P i T i T l T T T * ^ 
y i n o i t t ^ i m t A S ^ 

SOUTHWESTERLY OF UriCOLU AVDJUE'TO THE SOUTH£RLY:LINE OF.LOT 9TN BLOCK 3 IN SAID 
JOHN TURNERS HEIRS SUBOWISION Of BLOCKSJiIHnDUGH4.ji.^'^^^U1•3^'^•^i^';>^;: 
''jj^MNIX WRfte^TERLY'firQilG !̂̂ ^^ SDUirCRLYilNE OF LOTS Lt BLOCKS IN SAlb'JOHN 
TORIJER̂  HEIRS SUBDIVISION Of BLOCKS liTHROUGHATOAPOINTONSAIOSOUIHERLYLINE 
44 J fEET SOUTHWESTERLY Of: AS ilCASURED ALOT.'G SAID SOUTHERLYUNE,TKE SOUTHWEST -
LIKE Of LINCOLN AVENUE:i J i ' ^ ' , ' ' . . ̂  r r r i r i f t : V i ' ^ • ' ^ ^ ^ • • ^ r ' i y - J f ' ' 

TliENCE SOimCASTEHLr/TO THE NOHTHWEST COftMER 6^ LOT.IO IN SAjbSUSDIVISlbN:. r' 
•S:TKa'CE'S0U7HVI£ST̂ ^ 
OfSAipipriip;;V.5^s.i«S(j<gf 
•̂ THENCE SQU1HZ2J5 FEET JO ALINE 4954 FEnUORTH Of, AS UEASURED rERPENOiCULARLŶ  
TO;'THE NORTH lJNEOEADDISONSTR£n:Jl,fy,'Wĵ .lSVi.'.̂ .;̂ ;?k̂ ^ > 
i;'.-THElift: EAST'7 J3'?retTi ALONG ;SAID! 
FERPENDICUUVILY TO. THE NORTH LINE OF ADDISON STREETvTO.THE EAST UNE OF THE WEST 
aS7FEET0FSAI0L0T1D:v;VW.rV-.'-i-iT-";-' ' ^ 
V'imENCEiSOliiH ALONG SAIO.EASTUNE OF.IHE«ESi"0.B7 FE£T-0f:s«b;'LOtrro.T6,fHE' 
NORTH UlIE OF AODISON ST5£Er.;->[aS-SlK'7i?ltSW'-<«^^fr .V-JE^̂  ' 

'WlBIKcttiST^AUKiGJ MlbtiiORT^ 
RAVENSV/OOD AVEflUElft-Jffi^V . .•t;?yil»ra?<^^ 
.THEiiCE NORTH ALONG SAIO WEST LIF.'E OF RAVEIISWOOO AVENUE .10 THE WESTERLY LINE 
OF UNCOLN AVE)IUE;^'«iJi{f"i;;-;.;v.jy;iV;^J;>l/i\^7^0^ 
:i:-7HEWCE;N0miWEST£RLY:'ALt»ffi SAIDiWEIERLY/uiC'bfjLIWKW-AW A llilE. 
35S.04.FEET:SOUTH;OF."ASJ!EASURED PEnPEBDlCULARLY.TOf-THElNORIH.UNt Of .GRACE 

:>'1HENCE EAST AIDNG SAID.UUE 355 04 FEET.SOUTH OF/AS MEASURED PERPENDICULARLY 
10.̂ THE;NflRni UNE'OF.IGRACE STREETrjTOIAILINE'.GO.FEET.̂ WEST.OF.iASjMEASURED 
PERPENOlCUUHLYro.-THEWESTUNEOF.'IHECTA/RIGHr.OFWAY::::'' =• ;-;.V'-V<(;..v':: 
VTHENiX liORTH ALONG SAID UNE CD FEET WEST Of. AS UEASUliED PERFflJDICUlARlY 10,' 

THE WEST LINE Of THE CTA-̂ BIGHT OF.VJAYTO A LINE 312.64 T i n SOOTH Of. AS MEASURED 
PERPENOICUIARIY,TO,;THE NORTH LINE Of GRACE sTRffT."®,*'! i^-^ " i r i - : ' tS ivS' . : . 
'n'.THOiCE EASi'iljililG SATD LINE 3I2.G4'i{n'SOUTH OF.'AS MEASURED i=ERPEllOICULARLY: 
TO.THE NORTH LINE 0F6RACE STREET,TO.TKE WESTUNE OF THE C,TA-RI5HI,0F.y/AY;";''iJ.-:,' 
^'i'. TffiHCE NORTH ALONG SAiqwESt.Ll'FIET'OJHEHDP^ 
- '.IHEiicE WECT.ALlSG'SAib NOIHHlite'bFGRi^ 
F001WIOEALl£YWESrOF^RAVEHSYVOQDAVEHUE;f.'.̂ -iiĵ ;:i?;i,̂ jIj,.v,.v̂ ;î ^̂ ^̂ ^ 
i.:;;:THENCE NOmH'AUiriG 
AVaUE,TO.THE.tVESTERLY;UNE<IF..THE<16F0OTiWlDE'ALLEY.N0BTHEASlERLY Of .LINCOLN' 
i V E N U E : 4 . ; i r , ? i « a i i i S ^ ; f ^ « * » . i ^ ^ ^ 
/;'THE(<CE:N0BmWESTEflLY/AL0tJG'SAI0lWESTERLY:UNE!0fjTHE,'l6;F00I(W10E;ALl£Y.r 
NORTHEASTERLY OF.UIiCOLN AVEHUETO'AN'ANGIt POINT ONTKE EASIERLYLWE OF UZI2S: 
IHBLDCKiawCKARLESl'rOROS SUBDIVISION OF.BIOCKS3,̂ ;5ANO LOTS 1;2,30r:BL0CK: 
160JIll£SUBDIVISrapF.SECnON,19;;3|ifi}>.<S;-;^^ 
;':;^TH£NCE NORTH AiXn.'^SAiO EASTERLYi LINE Of LOT.25 JN DIOK,^iS'lN SA!^CKARL£s''J.-^ 
fOflO^ SUB0tVISI0!f;ro.1H£ lllllllll III IJ Illl Mil'II III itflLJft* Q j l l j [[t.'.L 
f7itiEiicE''a)'ijTHW^fEm.% 
CHARLES J.>FORErS SUBDMSION.TO.THE EASTUNE OFLDT 2t:W BLOCK 16 « SAIO CHARI£S* 
iF0R0'ssuB0^ISI0H.J((Bf*^.;•.'">S6;=•^v^^V:;'.^^^ 
f̂vTKNiX'libmH'ALbNG SAib EACTLINEOE^ 

SUBDIVISION TO THE SOUTH LINE Of BERENICE AVENUE: •.•'£ytj^X^"^:;; W i-i'?;' i 
'Iî liTiENCE VV;EST. Tuidrid .'SAib'soinii 
SnBISI0.Y or̂ TKE WEST.LI,'̂  Orj.TKE;,1E FOOT WIDE AL^Y WESTOf RAVENSVAIOD AVENUE: 
t̂HENCE'tibniH'ALONG'SMb SbUIHERLY'DTTEKStON df:TilE WE'ST LINEi'Ca=>THE.16'FO0t>' 

WIDE ALi£Y.WEST OFRAVENSWOOD AVENUE AND.THE Y,IEST LINE THEREOFTO THE WESTERLY.: 
LINE OFTHETB fOOT WIDE ALLEY N0HJHEAS1ERLY OF UNCOLN AVENUE; .tr^rt- ' j 'V*' , * 
.V ;THENCE •NORIWiKTERLY;ALbNa-:SAlb>.WES'rtRLYVû ^ 
NOFnHEASTERl.Y:OF.UNCOLll MCNUE'.TO'THEiEAST LINE:0f-LDTi27:IN BLOCKMS:iN SAID; 
CHARl£S•J.'FOR0^6ueolyBION;<^^<^i*^i^g;i:•:.|^j"!L^^ 
.^TfiSiS NdmHAloiib SAi'b"6ASTli;'lE OflbT??.* BlJCKIsKSAib CHARlES'i'fOROS! 

SUBDIVISION TO .nif SOUTH LIllEOf BYRON AVEHli'Siafc'.V'SS?!*^ 
r̂ itTHENCE'WESr'ALONC SAJb SOUTH UtiE^ 
Of .THE WEST LINE 0F.THET6 FOOT WIDE ALI,EY AVEST Of WOLCOn AVENUE; '"rA*^} :.T 
i:<THi«x'NomH'Aumb«iasbuTHEiiV:EX^ 
WIDE AUEY.WESTOF nOLCOTF AVENUE AIIDTHE WEST LINE THEREOF TDTHE WESIERUf UNE' 
OMllEilSFOOT.WOEALLEŶ NORl ' 
aUHEIiaWiaRIHU^EIILYjALi 
KORTUEASiatLY.OFiJKCOUl AVE „ _ . . . 

Wn<ENa!(buTHivtSlSiy)C)NG.5AD IN>BUXX'«m.iW): 
CHiiaBA-IWSSllB0IVIS10III0.JHE«EST.lIl6.TlIERffl 

... 3;fTHEtiixioRm«Lbwa^^ 
JO susoiwioi0Di>c!sunuiNEaE,CAitCHL!or(rî  
!V< aMciicRWEStfMiNGitAIDTcduiHf^ 
" CXJKIONORl^freSIJJKEOpiCjBIOOrWIDCAUnjt^ 

^^THEfEE-NORIH AIMG WlticbUIHERlItnEM OFifEVB HXt'. 
WIBFAU£Y.WESIOFWOLCBITJWtNUElS 
N0RIHEASlERLY0f,imC0OIAVEN!lE;'WS,„...^ 
^{lt<aiCEr«ORTmQTEnLYilu:iKi;:SAlS I ,. 
«mHEASTHILY.OF.UNC0LIIAVE«UE.1O.THE1l»EaEBLYEXlE«SION0fjTHE'.>ORTHUNE;16̂  
fOIT WDE ALIEY SOUTH Of.lRVlNG FW« flOAO'/#^*a.%\«>^^^ 
'SvTHEHCE'EASt ALWG SAID WESTERLY EXTENSION Of THE NORTH UNE 16 FOOT. WIDE AUJEY.' 
SOUTH OF.IRVItlG PARK ROAO AND THE NORTH UIE THEREOF TOTHE WEST LUtE OF WOLCOTT. 
AVENUE; f;:,';. ̂  :V KSKv! i i^ ' r ' ' .Sii^if l '" f ^ ^ ' i - Z i ' .H V.SiKJ ' ; i ' '•• 
'̂ T̂HENCE aST ALffilG THE EASTERLY.EXTEICION Of THE NORIH UNE.16 FOOT WlbE JIUEY. 
SOUTH 0F;IRVING PARK ROAO'.TO THE'S0UTHWEST.S0RNER OF.LOT 21 .M BLOCK 3TN SAID) 
CHMU^JMRpJSyroMS^ 
'&M<EtXEEA5T<£niGTHE5O(miUNEaF.l0IS2liTHROUeH8UBUXX3IISAIO'p^ 
gmRB^SOSOWSignmTIIEWESTUireOfiPIE.CTJL™ 
KiH3a'NonfH7LOi«i S i i b ^ ^ 

îiflHENCElWEST'VultlGjSAID.'SOVTH i . - ^ - J 
EXIl«SIOIfiOF;:.THE,*ltSnUNeOFsIHE; 
AODmON:TOnAVEnSWOOJ,SUBOIVISIOa;̂ ' 
: ;rjTH£MfE KOfflH ALWio SAID SOUliCRLYfXi — , . , 
0F.LOT>34 AID SAIO HESTiLIflE.TO.Dt SOUIW LIKE Of. TTC ft FOOTJHOE JUIWKWJH Of< 
!RyWi.p«iK(i.o«,)<a'a!V 
jt̂ THENCEV̂ TALONOGAlO SOUTH UNE DF.THE 1&FOOT.W10E AUfY.NOniH OF IRVING RARKr 
ROAO AND IHE WESTERLV̂ EljENSKWTHERW 
SJiiiENIXVIEST'AUtiGTOE 
ROAO..TDrTHE SOinHEn.Y.£XTENS;ON Of'JIEHflTEST.LlHE 0F..THE.I6 FOOT.WIOEALLEY.EAST̂  



'ÔsTOENCE i;0BTH'A1.0KG'SAI0S0imoU.Y EXTBBtOH OF.HtEWEST LItrt OF.IHE 1E FOOT 
iWlOE ALLEY.CASTOFOXMENAVENUE-AW-mEtmST LINE.TWREOf.TOTHE SOtTTH Lirrt OF 
;ClMEH«fEfflJE;fWii}V/;t-;^-';.-^:.''^f-^ •>^-^:i^:i^-----r:*-^ 
j:5jrTOEf̂ C£ WEST ALOrJG iswb SOim 
IIHEREOFJO THE WEST U'JE Df.OAMEN AVENUE; >•> ;iWiJSStV' -'-i^ 

ii;:!:.THEf{CE'RdnTH'>̂ ^̂  
;0f,RUH)LPK3 SUOOIVlSIOT Pf etOCKŜO AHD 5 OF.WBJQGDEN'S SUBDrv1SIQ»:̂ vi>>tt.|̂ ~ 
J-KPSNCT MJri'AL5j6:SAiD'M 
.•WESTERLyjJNEOF.,THE « FOOT WIDE AILEY.KOHTHEASTCTLŶ F UNCOLN AVCNUt ii'^'fj.'^-
?::iTHENCE' lOITTHWESTffiLY; ALOlfe • SAiD"WESTEHLY''LINF'.Of ;7H£".16 • KWÎ WIOE-AOir. 
:NORUIEASTERUr OF. LINCOLN AVBiUEITO.TllE SOUTH UNE OF,WAflNER AVErjyE;̂ .̂̂ ; , : jT^^ 
ŷ̂ JHENCEViSTALON̂ ^̂  

rCF.n(E WCTmt OfiTH&IS fOOT.WrOC AU£y EAST OF U/OTIA 
r*:̂ .THEKCE «bflm ALO:̂ ^̂ ^ Of jTHE WESt.Uii'E'OFVrHE ifi FOOT 
WIDE ALlfV tAST.Qf.liRCOUJ ftVENUE'AND THE V/EST LINE iTHEREOF TO.THE ¥/ESTERLY.LlNE 
iOf;THEl16 FOOT MOE ALLEY.KOflTHEASTERLY.OF. UKCOUJ AVENUE; ^'v•:^ii^^^•i^i^':y^l, 
.T^ -THENa libFiilHWESrtRLY/ALDffi 
' N̂ THEASTHILY O îlNCOLN AVENUE 70 .THE SOUTH Ur̂ E.OF BERTEAU Â a;NUE.̂ t l̂ -j 
^̂ (̂THENbE WEST>!LdliG Siu 
;?OFjTH£MSrUIffOF.IW.16fOCFr.y/mf ALLEtEASrOF.lJTOLNAlTNlJE;^^ 
SJhTfiEKCE'ijbRfH-Kô ^̂  SwsourfeiY.EJTOJsidNrb THE,I6 FOOT 
'WIOE'ALtEY EAST Of.UNCOLN AVENUE AND THE Vi-ESTUHEiTHEREOrTOTHE Vî STERLY.UKE 
iW.THE.16 FOOT WID£ ALlf Y. NOtTTHEASTERLY OF. LINCOLN AVENUE:;?; •": 'r:''̂ iT*:v-r 

i JHEHCi'liWTWiraW^^^^^ 
vN0lTTKEASTERLY.OF,Ut<C0LN AVD^UEĴ  THE SOUTH UfJE OF̂HUTCHtHSOT̂  STItEET; '-̂ 'UiX'-k. 
OitKaCEi'WTSf/^ 
•EXTEMStON OF-THE WEST.lWE OF TKE-16 FOOI.WiDE'AUiY EAST OF L(NC0Ul 'AVENUE;7/;i& 

jTHoibE >J0fifH'7ji re^^ 
.WIDE ALL£Y EAST OF.LtTJCOLN WENUE AND THE WESTiLltJE THEREOFlO THE WESTERLY.LVIE 
;:0FJHE16R)0T WIDEALIEŶ TOTHBASTERLY Or Û ICOLH AVENUE; 
4;WVl>iifSi'i KOnTffWKTEFaV îtdNG^Siu iWESTEBLVjlt'NEVdFitHEilfi; FOOTtWIDE- ALLEY 
-KOPTTHEASTERLY.O/̂LINCOLN AVCHU&iTOTHE SOUTH UKE OF.CULLOMAVEllUE:>Ki.r.>J)ij|({ 
f } ^ t i f s . v t s r jujoic SMD saiiTH u!(E OFCUUIGU AVEinjrniTvc SOUTHERLY BnEvsiOM 
0 tTHEWEST LIKE OFJHg 6 FOOT WIDE ALLEY-WESTjOF^HOVKE AVmjE^^/^lg^'i^-^^il 

fv^TTOW^rofmrALow; SAtoisouniraLYExrais^ roor 
:WDEALlEY.MST.OF.H0WEAVEMJE'AP)DTH£V.'EST;llN£-THEH£DF.TOTHe.WEr—" 
••0F;T>tt-16Htor.WIDEAlljEY.N0RTHEAmm.Y0FLmC0LII AVENUE. 

ŷ TH ;̂cE îim^ 
yk)RTH»5TERtytOT,LltJC0Ul)i;VEUUE^ 
svciHEficcVw^liuwGys^^ 
.•EKTEHSION OF̂ .PtEW 
IJWSECTIOtf.tfc'iS î. 
VilHE«CE; NORTH iALbm'_, , 
!SA1D:EUUBETH:MSHLUK0-S ADOrnON.TO CtUCAGOrAIlDJH£,V.€ST.i.WE:THERE0F:TO £̂ 
'̂ ORTHaqy^uNEiH^^^^ 
^.'WHEfjCE; hWHEASTERiy.'ALONG: SAIOTNORHCRLYTUNE^O^^ 
^HASHLUNirS 'ADOmOH iTO OilOtGOiTOiTfI£>y\TSTERLY>LINE'0^ 
MORTHEASTERLY.O^ LINCOLN f!iWJ£iff^^^y:.'~i,;^i^^l^ 
1 ^THEfiS fibRTHWESifmLVAL^^^ 
'NORTHEASTERLY.OF LINCOLN AVENUE TO THE SOUTH UNE OF.WmTIOSEAVEMUE:'. :-.:',<4-> 
:-!s™EKre-;*m''A£ONGI SAID' SOUTĤUNE 'Of .itOITOOSE'AVE HUEVTOiTlte'NORTHERLY 
iBCreHSlOIIOF..THEIASTUNE0F.LEAVTnsmEETVf*1S,?KSriî ^ 
^THENCESbUTlJlU]o^ 
>ND7TKE BOT:UNB7>ERE0F'T0,TH£'NORTH UNE'OfiLOT'B'IN'GRAt(T^X;^^ 
-T\?;THENCEEAST ALONG SAID NORTH UfJE OF.tOT S IH SAID GRAKT.P^ ADDITION SJS& FEET;̂  
) i?JH£Nix:SOinm^^ STMIGHT ilMEJD M TOflTwasr^ctwiRrottoTs'ffi 
i^UGRAIfTTA^^ 

QR1H UHC0FJ)̂ 6 FOOT/fflDeAllEYJIOnTH aFCULUW%NUE:|jtj^i^;{riiiiS^ 
feliSNlt'BCTViLCfcGlXlO^^^ 

SiniKC&s&mtiuiiiiiSuD^EAŜ  

....—^—„—,—,„•..„••.—•niHtnwrTif i rn. IIT 
•liSSfiEltCEiAsfitQiNi! 
JheUST LINE 0b1TE,MEST.291ST0l;ISril32 IN HUDOITH ANOOnOWHiaiBOIVISipN OF, 
i < n ^ j O f j u i X ; W j W & ' £ G D t t ( ; a ^ ^ 
iHBHTO^sbuin&Cbiffi'aib'BB 
METJNOmHWEngJ 'aSniaccist 

IWSiMEASUiEOiP 

.^DUIHEASTERLYlAUNGnrCnVUIWlUNlItDT^ 
;iWEIDf:iOT ,13341 IRUOOimiANDeROYJN îSUBOmSIONWLOTlIiOfACOCKUW'jV/.S 
.'OGDEN'S SUBDIVISION IN SECTIOHIB.'SAIO FDINTEEINGWe FEETNORIHEASIBILY.Of.IHE 
(NOIUHWETCORMR of̂ sAiD ipr'iafsm.j^^^^^^^ 
jilHTHEHCE<SOUtHWEStERLY;ALONG'SAID̂ ^ 
;AIJO;SRmwreSUMW^NJaJHE^H 

^SS!ni£NSr!»UTHT^^ 'SAlblRU^LPHT'US'fRDWTIS 
iSUBDIVISI0NAND.'THES0UTHERLYEXTENSI0H.THEREOf4TqjHEN0nTKERlXUNE0f.L0T;142 
!lNSA!D.TIUDOL^MIO,SOOWirSI llllllll I HIM I ". |l.1j(.")l.r I. CWtlLU I j V j 
^iiErK£!9iumvE5TEny^Aubim^^ 

^ m i p i K NORTH lJNEO&TKE3&£0OT.WI0EALLJEYJnRn̂ Ot̂ 6EHIEAU AVEHUE;4SP|}$ 
ifiniaCE.EASf-ALOtx'SAio.NO^^ 
fAVENUEiHI.THE«STERLY'.UNE0fiTHEi16FO0T;WIDEiAU.EYiSOUTHWESIEm.y.DfiLINCOUI 

.HTIIEfXE'̂ THEASIERLYilALONGlSUDlasTERLYJUNETom 
ÛTBVJESTtRLYiOf.LJHCOLM AVaUETO.THENORTH IJ«EDF,RFRTFAII AVEI.'tJE?^|f | \Jf^ 

afcHEraEXsiVLOliG WD NORTH UNEOEBfRta 
jO^TKEASUFNEjorjiEWoqî niDEJ^^ 
CaTHENCE'SOUWALONGSAID wORIHBIlY.EimiisiONlOKfHE EAS'fruiieOFjIHEIlfffOOT 
'WOE AaE«EAST.0i:a£AVIR:STREEr.AN0:1HE EAST UNE'THEREOriOTHE EASTERLY, UNEOF 
tTHEllS FO0T.WIDEMJ.EŶ .SaUTHWesfE;LY0F.imCOLN AVEffUEi^kSfM^ 
)9BTHai<x'somi«STmLYnii^ 
WUIH'.VESTBILY.OF.LIKCOUI AVENUElTO|piE NOpH CIHLOfiY^tFWERIA'jENUEajlffvIM 

r5{mW£ EASTALOflG w l o M ^ 
DfjTHE EAST LINE Of THE 16 FOOTYVIDE ALLEY EAST Of l£AVITT-STREET:i;̂ ^JCsIi;'Tr;̂ :>^ 
C'.THENa.'s'6ibH'ALbHG SSD ii'bRTW^^ 
WIDE ALLEY EAST OF LEAVITT.STREETAKO.IHE EAST LINE IHERtOF TO THE EASTERLY UNE Of. 
THE 16 fOOT WIDE All£Y.SOUTHV.ESTERLY«f.LIFKMLJI AVENUE; iiH^'f-^ii'^Ali^.-Xi^-^i^ 
S:iTSENS.-S0iTH£ASIERLY"̂ AlDNG'!siu6';E^̂  
SOUT»\TSTBU.Y Of.LINCOLN AVENUE:TO.THE NORIH UNE Of DEUEFUUNE AVENU£;g^< 
tVl1HiNCE'£ASt,>LON'GlSAiD'K0RTH 
EXTENSION OF;THE EAST LIHEOf.THEISFOOTWlDE ALIE^ EAST:Of HOYNE A'rtNUE;fiJ/;\;4l5 
;̂ t̂HENCE SOUTH-ALONG SWb̂ NORTHfftY EXTWSibN'bf.'TO^ FOOT 
WIDE ALlEY.EASr.Of HOYNE AVENUE'ANO THE EASTUNE THEREOF.TD.1HE EASTERLY LJNE OF 
1HE.16fDOI,WIO€AaEY;SOUTBWESTERLYOFLINCOUIAVE»UE;."î f'̂ 'f8V>̂ :ir.'-.;Tâ ^ 
jaJmsjCE'sburHMrEfiLW'ALaTO 
SOUTHWESTERLY Of LINCOLN AVENUEJTO THE JIORTH LINE Of CUYIER AVENUE;, ; : - ; j *kg{ j . 
r T̂HEiiCE EAST AIJ3.NG'SM1} NORIH 
Of;THEEAST,LINEOFTHE.16fO0T.W:0EALl£Y.EAST,0f,H0YN£ AVENUE;T.?t . '*;:'.'.i^^:;;|;i;r 
<':^tilEWI SOUTH'"ALONG SAID NORTlIEnLYW^ 
WIDE AUEY EAST:Of HOYIIE AVET.'UE AND THE'EAST'UNE THEREOF.TO.THE EASTERLY UNE Of 
THE 16 RIOLWIDE ALLEY SOUTH'.VESIERLYOf.UNCOLN AVENUE. l i ^ a H i i t ' ^ ! 
î TT"HEKC£;SbimiEMTE'RLY,'AlO'NG.'SAib̂  
SOUTHWESIERLY.Of UNCOLN AVENUE.TO THE EASTERLY EXTEHSnN Of TTft SOUTH LINEiOf. 
THE-ie FDOT.VHOE ALLEY NORTH Of.lRVING PARK ROAO; t j ; r̂ î ̂ l^iflp.*^y'il'.UVl'i vS^;* 
??JTHtNCE WESb'ALbfiS â b'̂ &SfERLYEXTENStO'N̂ Of.THE SO THEtie'fbOT 
WIDE ALLEY NORTH Of IRVING PARK ROAO A!JO THE SOUTH UNE.THEREOF.TO THE EAST UNE 
OFHOYNEAVENUE;ai:--^.,i!.v;l<j-.;?:'-,4v\'& t 'Jf• 'S' :; j tf-? 
FITHE'FICE'VI^'ALONG.THE EASTERIY EXTENSION Of.TKE SOUTH UNEOf :THE 16 fOOT.WlOE 
ALLEY.NORTH Of IRVING PAnK'ROAO'ANO JKE SOUTH LINE THEREqf.iTOiTHE'EASrLtNE'Of 

•••̂ IHENCESOUTH AUMG SAIO EAST.UNE Of l£AVITTiSIP.EErTO:THE EASTERLY.EKTEHSION 
OF.THE SOUTH LIHE Of THE 16 fOOT VflDE AaEYNORTH Of IRVING PARK R0AO;-> .'J-V'ijSf^ 
Ai.TKENCE'Ytefr'ALbNG S^̂ ^ 
WIDE AUEY.NORm Of IRVING PARK ROAO AND.THE SOUTH UNE;THEREOf.TOTHE EASf̂ LVIE 
ofiOAn£Y,AVEi!UE|J(frV;«.J^^^^^ 
'̂ TUBICE WEST ALONG THE WESTERLY EXTENSION Of.THE SOUTH LINE OFHHE16 FOOT WIDE 
ALLEY NORIH OfJHVING PARK HOADJO THE WEST.UHE 0(OAKLEY AVENUE;' .WiWSS^g} 
'r'TTOicE "HOFOH IWNG aub WEST VINE b 
HJMffiA«»uc;»iK-:::ii:s^i^ 
!:̂ HENCE VJEST;ALONO'SAIOSOUIH:LINE«F:Bai£'PLAINE AVENUÊTOiTHE SOUTHERLY 
EXTENSION OF̂ THEWEST.UNEO '̂lHEIErOOUVIOEAUEXEASr.OF̂ WESIERNAVEN̂  
rT'tmHCEVDmmbNO' SA^'sb i f f^ or ifHtftlSTrUNE Of .THEilS (DOT 
VnOEALL£¥.EAST:OF,.VJESTER.\'AVENUE'AHO;1HEiWEST;LINEfTH£REDfiTO.'TKLSOmH;LINE 
Of.BKTEAu'AVWUEiSivâ ^̂ ^̂ ^̂  
;;'»THE«CeH0mH;ALON6'THE NORTHERLY.EXIENSIDN Of..THE:WEST.USE'.Of.THE :i6 FOOT 
WDEAUfYWTO^^^^ 

SOUTHWEST COntlER or uiT.11 INSAI01aAKl£YGARDEliS;',^^ij^$j5^£;4l^lP/3!: 
iVvriS'NCE'NbRm'Aijb'NGiHE wtsi'iltire bf UJTS'I" H'HRDUOHI IN SAID OAKLEYGAROENS 
TO THE SOUTH UNE Of.LOT SoWRUOOUWANOBnOimSSUOOIVISIONOElOTJ.DfBLOatil. 
OF^WB: OGDEN'S BUBDIVISION IN SECTI0N18..;.̂ t>^?,̂ >....''̂ ::;̂ '̂ ;fA7^^^^^^ 
l';ilHaiCErwESflAUlNG:"SAi6iSb 
SOBOIVISION'AHDiTH£,WESTERLY;EXTENSION.ThER£Of/TD THE.V/EST.UNE Of>THE,16 TOOT 
VnDEALLCY,WEST,0F.ajU)EMO,-|TAVENUE;%'4^V<S>¥°/1viî ni!̂  
/S'lTieiicE iibnm ALONG'sAib SECT Uffiof !m^^ 
AVENUETO.THESOUTH LINE Of CULLOM AVENUE;=;iS'JjTi?- < ^ - S V l ^ < >''' ;*.<< 5"L 
^̂ '.rTHENOE NORTH-ALbNG THESOUTIIERLY"EXTENSION Of.THE'lA'Esti'UNE Or,THE:16VbOT 
WIDEAUIY.WEST OECLAREMOin AVENUE AND.THE VJESTLINE THEREOf.TO THE SOUTH LINE 
''Li.THENCE'WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF U0»TR0SE.AVENUEJ0,1HEEAST LINE OfJHE 
ISFOOTJIIOEAlIByAtSTflF.WESTERNAVEHUElSjfJvjf v S ^ ^ 
^ ÎHaiCE'SOimTAiflNG'SAibrEAST.B^ 
AVEiajCAND-.THEiS0UIHEnUiE>CrENSI0N:.1HS!Ê  

.c^SHEiiCFiSoimiALarajwoeAsî .of'iiHE'iim^ 
kl<NUE'AHD1HESOimmY,GnEIRI0«,THER£OF.TOS<ESa^ 
{SfiiaSSiIm'ALoiiG'MO e i ^ 
AVEMĵ ib"tTHE<50uineiiyitxiBS^ 
STREÊ^ i... — — 

'MON<SWD''SSTi(i!CtOFin<r]ClbOr,W'3̂  
^ "Avg i i i i i 

„ , —..iKWEsVERN 
AVENUEAN0fflES0(nHERLYEXTE)ISnNjniEnmF,1O3Î  
ICTHEicEEaiuiH'iUjouG'ŝ ^ 
WBIUEtWIOiTHEISOimiailYiEXT^ 
wfKuEina!i3Cl£'jt';.:»«'ai:t«^^ 
i>!THENCC;SOUIH ALOMG 'SAID EAST LUir Of THE 16 FOOT WlOE AUiY;WEST.0r.mS1ERN 
AVENUE AND.THE SOUTHERLY'EXIENSION .THEREOEiTOiTHE EASrEXTEHSlON Of THEISOUTH 
LINEOfTHE AUEYiRRSTiNORTH:Of.|RVIHGyARK.ROAD,BEIWEE(I.WtSIEHH.AVENUE;AND 
H r i ^ C E WEST ALONG SAID EXIENSION. SAID SOUTH'UNE.WIDJTS WESTiEXTENSION JO 
THE;WESr.LINEOf.CAi™LL>VENUE;(!ar;i«aB|t)S:^!!^i!^ 
JSTHENCCiibmH AUJKO sXiOWESir.'u'iE OfXAAIPBEU'̂  TO:THE HORtii LME a'.THE 
AU£lr riRSr NORTH OfilRVINa F«RK ROAD BETV«U UAPIBNOOD AijD CA3iUiBfU'niEniE:.« 
WHEiidEWESIALbNSSAibNb^ 
BETWEEN UAPLEWOOD.ANDCAMPSElirAVBIUE'ANO ITS WEST,BnEHSIOHTp.THE£ASrUNt 
DCTCBI8HT,X«»YJflfeliANIIARYPSTRItT.OECHIC>oaair'" _ ' " 
l9TI%N6E^UTHWESTERLY%blI6'»m 
DIS1RICT.'0f;CUICAG0'J01HeS0UTH'UFI£:0fiBL0CK'33NiKINZIFS!EV6DIVISI0N:0FATHE 
NORTHEAST QUARItROfiECO0N24;TO«NSHi?40.BAi;CE13jASI0aHETHiROPRI«ClRjU.' 

WHE^ICe EAST ALONG SAIOSOUTUUHE OF BL0CK3ANDnSEASrEXIENSI0N.T0THE.WEST. 

t̂ THENCE NORTH ALONG SAIO WESruNEOF.CAIAPBELL'imnjETO.THEWgTEXTBISIONgF 
i!WN0RTIIlINEba!IE,15f00TALlEr^0lf(H0f.IRVIf.'GPARKfta»0:a^^ 
HIHEigCETE^7AL0NG^UiD^Sf<EXtENSibfiW 
AlLiYSOUlH " " 
WcSIERNA 
filiHEiiCE' ..—, 
AVENUe Aj.;D THE SOUTHEflLY,EXTE«SIDN THglEOfjTD T̂H^OUTH LJflEOf̂ WIHSTRgTlpp) 

T}'.THENCE SdinHVOHG•THE;EASf LINE Of .THETls rOOf.WlOE'ALlEY.WEST.Of.MS^ 
AVENUE AND THE SOUTHERLY EXIEI.-SION THEHEOf'TOTHE SOUTH UNE Of BYPOM̂STREET;.;?": 
•Vf'niE'H'a'sburH 'ALOilQ ;THE"TAST LINE.bf'7'ilE 1̂6"'f'0bT:.WtbEfiu.l£Y" VJESr OF.WKTERN' 
AVENUr.AN0:THE;SOUIHERLY.EX1ENSI0N'JHEnE0f,;TO THE.«)UIH;LIIlF,'0f.'B£R£t7ICE' 
«« 'UE j r5 :S£" ; * *» i»5 i ' : . i , i s i ^^ 
.r:;THEl/CE SOUTH ALONG.THE EASTiUNE Of AHE:iB FOOT.WIOE'AUJEY.WEST OF.WESTERN 
AVENUE AND,THE SOUTHERIY. EXTENSION THEREOf JO THE SOUTH LIf.'E Of GRACE STREET; i^i', 
rV.iTHENCE'v̂ TALONGSMD'sb̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^ 
ASUEASUlSDftRPENDiCULARlYTO.THE>«ESIUNE0f,WESTERNAVENUE;">-(̂ StT'̂ ^̂  
'{THENCESOUIHALbNGSAl6LjNE279.73f̂  WEST Of, AS MEASURED fERPENDKULARl.'r'' 
TO: THE MESTiLINEbf WESTERN AVENUE 10 THE NORTH UNE Of WAVELAND AVENUE;.->:.; r-;-;;"/ 
;'.-'..fHEfibE(EAsfiALbNGrSAl"D"!:Nbmii; 
EXTENSION OF.THE EAST USE OJilHFTS FOOT WIDE ALL£Y WEŜ  OF.WESTERN AVEKl^'.J:;:."; 
:̂ tiTliENbE sbuTH ALbrlG SAID NdRTHERLYEXIENSlbN b̂f.'̂ ^ fObt. 
WIDE'ALIEY.W^ Of.WESTSlN AVENUE AM0;THE:EAST>UHE.THER£0F.T0,T1C NORTH LINE' 
Of ADDKON smEEi;;;;S3f « t j r : i : : ; « ^ 
; >THENCE SOUTH ALONG.THE SOUTHERLYEXTENSION Of THE EASELINE OF.THElGfOOT WIDE. 
ALLEY.WEST OF.WESTERII AVEHUETOTHESQUTH UNE OF ADDISON SlREET.'.tt̂ î l̂CSî '̂ -. 
lirtroiCE" WESi'AlbfiG'aOb'sOUIH ITO^OEAbbiSmi'SIREEi io'THE.MSr'liNE OfiLOt' 
TIN COUNTY.CLERKS'DIVISION Or.U..GUBD!VIOED LANDS IN.THESOUTHEASTIIUARTER OF' 
SEcmoB?4;"̂ i(i!S;? ' " " " " ' 
«THE>iCE'Gb(r •' 
UNSUBOIVIDED 
,:;TH£NCt EKT. AiDNO'SAiD SOUTH iJNE'OE.lOfiljUI'SAiO COOifiY ffi^ 

UNSUBOIVIDED LANDS 10 THE NORTH EXTENSION Ô JHE WEST UIIE Df.CAMPBEU.'AVENUE: 
•KiTHENasblhH'AUiNG'SAIDrNbRm 
T0'A!POINr;0N.THEiWESI!UNE.0f.CAMPKU'AVENUE.-SAID:P0INTiBElf;G:THE«INrj0f; 
aiIERS£CTIONjOf.:TH£ WEST.UNE OfiCAUPBEU.'AVENUÊ WITH A'.IU^OOT RADIUS CURVE:' 
COUCAVETO THE SOUniEAST:Jli,';;/;ii.Jafti;v»;.'>;S^^ ., j 
V;rTH£HCX!EASt.bN:'A''uNE''W1f%N0ICUlAR>TO'THE.WEST.L 
DISTANCE Of 66 fEn.TO ANOINT OHTHtEASTjUNE OFCAMPGEITAVENUE: ' r^ ;^t i t^ i i \ i i : f i 
'.̂ THEtiCE Sa"UTH'/Ubi4G"'SAlb'̂  
NORTH :H2,fEET;Ot.LOTS;10.AND.9.m:SAIO:COUinY.CLERKS.'OIVISI0«.<lf̂ UNSUBDIYI0EOl LANoâ iiistê isadsdgaRS.'̂ ^ 
'.'.TNEA'CE EAST ALOHCSVOSOImLJflEOfiTNEKOmHIS/EErOF.linsJDAflOBin SAID; 
COUHTY.CLERK'SOIVISIDN Of URSUBOMDS LANDS TO THE.WEST.LINE 0f.lj0T73 IN NORTH. 
CHICAGO SHARPSHO0TER:SApDniaN TO CHICAGO IN THE SOUIHEASIOUARTER Of SECTION! 

L'itHEKCÊ SOUTH AlONG,THE,1l«ESriUNftOfcl(nS 23,imOUGH,43;ip;IHEMnm UKE Of i 

':£THEWXrEAST7AL0NGBAffl<NDR1H<UNE;(^IVWT>^ 
»/ESlHlNAM«UE;»i;Vf*jg(B3(!Siil)*^EW^ 
L'.irTHENCE'NORTH 'ALONG'SAID WEST liNEOF WESTERN'AVENUE ID THE WESTHlljf EXTENSION: 
Of THE NORTH LINE Of.CORNaiA AVEkWTliaSri i ' ' ' ' ' ' 'S' '£*T'^ 

THENCCEAST ULONGlSAiOlW^^ 

1313402a466o«t:i3l34mhBwaft:i3l3402cj^^ 
13134O4046000O,.1313404(HgQ000;.13t34CHOS00QQO;.13I»O40510Gao;13134D4052000Q;).rĵ ' 
13134D40S3000O.131341}4054Q00O;>131340605400GQ:.13134QG0550000; 13134060SGOOOO:iV.;-; 
1313406QS7O00Q:13t34I16058Q(O0;il3t3406a5I00aQ;;i3I340ei)5200a0; 13134060530000; IC:;.̂  
1313<0aO54aD0O;;i3l34DSO5»(no,''13134OiBSEOQaO;:13l34Be057t(nOr,13134O60SB00O9:.7l 
131340305SDaaO:13134O606IXXia0;':i313413O3300a0; 13134130340000:1313413(1150000: 
.1313413Q360aIa;.131341̂ O3700QO::1313413O3flOaD0;131̂ 413O41100I;'.1313413O4110Q̂ ,•̂ .: 
13I34t3O4I10O3;.l3134f304f10IH::i3I3413O4IiailS::I3134I3O4110a6;13134l3O4II007;. U 
1313413O41100a;1313413O411009::i3134l3O411010;1313413O411011; 13134 13O411012;;;;L»*I' 
1313413O41IOt3;,1313413O411014:;i313413M1IOlS;1313413O4llOl6;1313414O35000Q;Î I-<' 
1313414Q360O00:.13t3414a370aa);i1313414O430QdO;!l313414a440a00-,.1319414O4$100t;SA.-?i 
1313414OIS100£<13l3414O4SI0O3:;l3l3414MSI0O4;43134MB4S10aS;l3134l4O(5100e;'vi.<:' 
.13134140451007; 13134l4O41!l0OI;'1313414O46I0Q2;T3l3414IME10O3;:1313414O4610O4;;ij:.; 
13t34l.<lAGia0S;;i3l3414O4S1D0E;UU414O46iao7:3ll3tt4O47)0Ol;3II34l4O47iai2T;<S'l 
13134140471003; l3tl414OI7ID04;Ut34150IS000O,J3134l60210000;331341(023(000; 
f]t341(O27[O0»,Ut341taiS(O0(L«I3<17W9IODIoUW)7D49im2;,U13fl;Pl>)ira;^^^^ 
l3mi7M10O4;13t34irO4BI0o£iU)34t7«B1ll06^3134t7O4B10D7:J3134l7^^ 
T3134171M5iaa9;.13i3417O4SIO1CLi131341704S1tt11>1313417O481O12;i13134ITO43IO13:iJ;'|.i 
t3134n04S1Ol4 îl3l3417DUlOl̂ SI313<!(7O4SI016)13<341704t1l>l̂ l̂3WÎ IWI0la:Qy^ 
O)941704ai01S-.UI341704ai0aM3l3linl4Slll21rfItl4>7Dll3U22;U1341704ai023;^^J 
:UI34170<8l02<:TI3134<704BI02a:,ai34170461ll26;U13<l7imit2»I13417m^ 
A3tS417O4ai029:;t3134l7O<>lD3a;H3l34l7geD000MI194l7D50000aa3t3417tEl(00O.L. 
13U417DS20000:.13134inSOaD(t<3l3<l70540000d313lt{03SOOOa^3l3<in)600^^ 
ai34in370DOa>3U4tEO3aoial:i13»4jn3IX[mj3>3'IBO<eOOOD;t3l34>SD4)0a£? 
OI34l60420000;,1I1341E0U000ai31341B0t40000;U1341901900a0;43l»l602(a»ti 
1313419021 OOOai3U4l90CDOOOjl3l34IB02300aO:̂ 3134ig024000ft;i3U4igOiSMIt; 
:i3134l9O260DaOnl3l3419a270O0a;tl313<l«2eOD0O:t313419D29000O:i1313419O30000a:L 
131341S0310C«l:;1313<19(S2aOOO:']]1Mt90330000f;i9n41B0340000;1>1341903S(n]0;f 
13134t903EOaOO;'l3134I«O370O0O; I32420nii90000; 13242010010000:13»2OI0O200ttt..-î  
13242020l>10000:it3243<tZD05aaoa;T3242D2006BOOO; 13242020070000; 132420000600(0; .'.>:,' 
13242029090000;'132e020ID000O.,1»2[̂  

.i '2^. 
13242O3OMdo0O;iia42O3035bobbij3242O3O3a]O(l>;i3242O» 
,1324»l3a39ao00̂ I3242030<a000O;13242O4o:SO00O:.13242O4O3ai00(t,l]242O10310(nO:y, ' 
.13242040320000̂ 13242040330000; 13242D4O340O0D:'13242O4O35O0QO-,13242O403E00a0;;'„ 
i3242O4037a00O;.13242Oia2B000O:.13242OSO2g0a00'„132!l2O5O3tnO0:,1324ai50310000;',Ĵ ^ 
13242050320000; 13M2OS03400(a.132<2DSO350g(ai32«iD7D14OO0â 1324tO7Oie00Cim? 
.133420aO23D000;;i3242O90e40000;;i3242Oai2S0CCO;,13247O9Ig6nTllt33242O9CZ7M0O:ĵ  
•t3a4Jfl9OB00fl(t.lS24?OHU^ML"1324iP90JD0P00h1P4209O310C0(t.'l324JUBU3J(IWGa 
13242Oa330OOO;i13242O9O34Ca0O;a3242OgO3SOO0Oal324a9O36000U.>.T324JlIMUj'/M00Ô }̂  
132420903BOODOri32420S0390(to,?U242090<0(nOO;132<4a200GOOO(C.132440201tOaOO;\̂ W 
.13244O2020O00O;:i32440202900a0:132440203000(<l:.132l4030010000t 13244070070011(1^̂ : 
141B3000020«»;141B3aa0030000;141BS000040QOO;341t30000EOOQO;14183000a7aXn:'̂ ''̂ .'̂  
,141B30D0aeaO0O:141DO00O9D(KO; ,141630001 aO00O:141B3DOOl10O0O;1<163O0OI2000O.' 
141B30001300a07l4lB3000140000:,141Ba00016(nKI:.l41S30D0170aO(t:i41a3000ISOOOO;i27̂  
141B3000I9D0aO;:i4lB30004l0000;341SU0042000O;l4IB3000461D01:'M1<3C0OI6t002:f>̂  
141S300O4510Q3,'i41B3O00441(K)4;,141B3OQO16tDO5:fl41B30OO4610a6;14IB300O4S1007̂ J 
.14183OOO4S10O8;;T41EIOQD461OOar141B3OOO1B10ta;il41B3a(»461011;if41«3a0O4CtOl̂ „ 
Ml>30CO46l013;.14lB300O4eiD14M4lB3IIOO4B1O15;'l4l63(nO4610l6;l4lt3OO046l0I7l̂ ;v 
,14IS30004610l&;'141530004610t9; 14163000461 Q20::i41BHaO461O21̂ 14163O0O47a00Î V,',̂ { 
14163000411 aO1;}14ia3D0O4ll0O2:'i41B3O40aiDO(n;141B3040a2O0D(t14ll3O40O]0O0O;Vj.''̂ ^ 
l41S304ao<OOOOSU1>30400SOOOO:VlS3040UOgOO:,l4IS30UOraoao.i141630401(OaO(tf̂ ^ 
lj41CO4OjrD00O;'14l«8O<O.I.6O0OO:ja»W°2°°°̂  
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•M 

WfeS.-.-,:̂ .-'..;* 

141S3O4aZ40000:141t3(MO2S0O0O:141ft3MO25a00Q; 141A3n02ai0ai, M1B3O4O2fl10O?: 
.14|S3O402aiCm;.14IS3M02S1O04.14113050010000; UlUOUOlOOOO; 141B3060050000: 
•i4ifl3ceoo6ooDct,i4iB30saiefiooa- uiuosoomioo: uissosotioooo; H I U O W S ^ X I . 
'•14189060361CXI2.14ia3OUQai0O3.1411305036) DM: 141830603B10(C: 14183050371001;. 
,14113050371002; 141S30S037I003:1410050371(104:14183060360000; 14l83OSO39l0O1,.v 
t14183CS039ia02;.1418305039l003.14183050*01001.14183050401002,14183050401003. • 
-141830SO4ai0O4;t4183070010000.141S3O7O0C0QOO; 141S3070030000; 14183070040000,:; 
'14183070)90000;,MIIWTOmOOl; M)83070?0100!. 14(£3070201003; M)a»7020tOM. 
'.14183070201005; 1411307020lOOG, 14(83070201007; 14IB307020100B; 14183070201009: 
;l4t83a90010000; 14183090020000:14183090O3000D: 14183090040000:141S30000SOOOO. < 
114113090060000; 1418309007DOOQ; 141B3090030000.14183OgO090000:.14183O9a7(a]00: 
>14l83aSO71O00O; 14183090770000:14163090730000:14183110190000..14183120210000; 
:i4l8312O2aUa0..t4tS3)2O23Oa0O;I4(S3l2SZ4Q0a0. f4tft3t2a2S000(};'(4rS312OZfta)a;.' 
'114183120270000; 14183120280000; .14183120290000; 14113120300000:1418312Q32000O,'-
1̂4183120410000,14183120461001; 14103120461002; 14183120471001; 14183120471002: 

.14183120471003;.141S3120471004,14183120471005,1418312O47100G; 14113130010000: ' 
1̂4183130020000; 14183130030000; 14183130040000:141B3130D60000.14183130070000; r 

il4183l30S11OO1,-1'4183l3O5t1002:,14f83130511003; 14183130511004; 14183140030000; . 
M 4183140040000;-14183140430000; 14183140440000; 1418314O4S000O:'14t8314O4600a0:'-' 
M41f31SOO100aO;'14183150O3O000; 14183150040000:14183150050000:14183150060000; 
tt41l3150O70O0O; I4183t500e0000,14183tS0090000;.14163150109000:14183150110D0O,v: 
'l4t8315O12D00O,141831S01300D0; 14183150140000:14183150150000; 1418315016000O.' 
.14183150170000:14183150180000:14113150190000.1418315O2DOO0a 14183150210000;. 
>14183tSOZ2000Q; l41S315O2)00OQ:-141«315aZ4OOOQ; 14183150491001; 14183150491002: •> 
{14183150491003; 1418310OU0000: t41B319041O00Q; 14I8319O420OOO-14183190460000. v 
fl4183190471001;'l41O19047l002:it4183190471003:.14t8318Dai0ai,1418319048l002;'j; 
fl4]B319O4810O3;:i41831PM8I0O4; 14183190481005;. 141 S3190481006: 14183190481007; 
:14183igO4l1008:.14t8)t9O4Bt0O9:14183190490000; 14183190500000.14183190610000: ' 
;i4l83igO521001:14183190521002: U IUI 9QU1001:14183190631002; 14183190531003. 
;i4ia319053t004:.141S3igOS31005:14113190531008; 14181190631007;141B3190531006,, 
•14183190531009; 14183190531010; 141K3t9aS3l011,14183190631012; 14183200010000:1; 
|f4t8£O00SOa0Q;-t4tS32DO030O0ft 141 B3?O0M00OO;.}4183200070000:14183200401001;;;. 
jl41832OO40ia02:141B32DO401003;-141832DO4D10O4;.141B3Z0O40100S; 14183200401006:<î  
1l418320O4O10O7;.141S320O401008:1418320O4O1009c 14183200401010:1418320040101 t:H. 
: i 4183200401012:U1832D04QI 013; 14183200401014; 14133200401015; 14183200401011,1;; 
4̂183200401017;:i41B3S00401018.-14183200401019:14ia320O40102O:.l4tS320O4Ot021;-v 

!l4If32a040t022; f4rS32a04afaZ3: MtSmCKOtOH: 14183200401025; 14(B32a04afa»-.-:. 
4̂183200401027; .14183200401028:14183200401029:14183200401030; 14183200401031 :.\.1 

jl4ia3aO41l0O1;:i4lS32aO41l002:U18S20O41l009;<141832OO41t0O4:l41832O0421OOl;:P 
;i41B3Z0O4210O2:;141l320O4210O3; 14183200421004; 14I83210MO0OO; 14183210590000:1;̂  
)f4l33210601001:14183210601002; 1418321 D6O10a3;.14183210CD10O4:14ia3210GO100S;-:̂  
{14133110601006:14183210601007; 1418C1060100gi;141832t069tOO9:141l3Zf0GOiai0iĴ  
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EXHIBITS 

Service Provider Agreement 

See attached pages. 
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AGREEMENT 

This Agreement for the management of Special Service Area Number 38 is entered into 
on , 2015 by and between Northcenter Chamber of Commerce an Illinois not-
for-profit corporation ("Contractor"), and the City of Chicago ("City"), a municipal corporation 
and home rule unit of local government existing under the Constitution of the State of Illinois, 
acting through the Special Service Area Commission at Chicago, Illinois. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, special service areas may be established pursuant to Article VII, §§6(1) and 
7(6) of the Constitution of the State of Illinois, and pursuant to the provisions of the Special 
Service Area Tax Law, 35 ILCS 200/27-5 et seq.; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Chicago ("City Council") has established a 
special service area known and designated as "Special Service Area Number 38" ("Area"), to 
provide special services in addition to those services provided generally by the City ("Special 
Services"). The City Council has further authorized the levy of an annual ad valorem real 
property tax in the Area sufficient to produce revenues required to provide those Special Services 
but not to exceed .333% of the equalized assessed value of all property within the Area ("Service 
Tax"), all as provided in the Establishment Ordinance (hereinafter defined); and 

WHEREAS, the City Council, on , 2014, authorized the levy of the 
Service Tax and appropriation of the funds therefrom for the Area for fiscal year 2015 for the 
provision of the Special Services in the Area, and the City wishes to provide that the Contractor, 
begiiming on January 1, 2015, and continuing until December 31, 2015, may use those funds to 
provide the Services, subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the Contractor and the City desire to enter into this Agreement to provide 
such Special Services in the Area and tlie Contractor is ready, willing and able to enter into this 
Agreement to provide the Special Services to the full satisfaction of the City; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained in this 
Agreement, the City and the Contractor agree as follows: 

ARTICLE 1 INCORPOIMTION OF RECITALS 

The recitals set forth above are incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein. 



ARTICLE 2 DEFINITIONS 

The following words and phrases shall have the following meanings for purposes of this 
Agreement: 

"Agreement" means this Special Service Area Agreement, including all exhibits attached 
to it and incorporated in it by reference, and all amendments, modifications or revisions made in 
accordance with its terms. 

"Commissioner" means the Commissioner of the Department of Planning and 
Development or a duly authorized representative of the Commissioner of the Department of 
Planning and Development. 

"Construction" means that work of a nature constituting "public works" as defined in 
820 ILCS 130/2, such as landscaping and building activities, including but not limited to, 
physical building improvements, installations and other fixed works, but does not include pre-
development work (design and preparation of specifications). 

"Days" means business days in accordance with the City of Chicago business calendar. 

"Department" means the City of Chicago Department of Planning and Development. 

"Establishment Ordinance" means the ordinance enacted by City Council on December 
7, 2005 as amended on December , 2014, and any subsequent amendments thereto authorizing 
imposition of the Service Tax and setting forth the Special Services to be provided in the Area. 

"Late Collections" means any tax revenue received by the City during the term of this 
Agreement attributable to the levy of the Service Tax in prior years in the SSA, along with any 
interest income on such revenue. 

"Risk Management Division" means the Risk Management Division of the Department 
of Finance which is under the direction of the Comptroller of the City and is charged with 
reviewing and analyzing insurance and related liability matters for the City. 

"Security Firm" means a business entity certified by the State of Illinois pursuant to the 
Private Detective, Private Alarm, Private Security, Fingerprint Vendor, and Locksmith Act of 
2004, 225 ILCS 447 et seq., and whose employees are licensed by the State of Illinois. 

"Services" means, collectively, the services, duties and responsibilities described in 
Article 3 and Exhibit 1 (Scope of Services & Budget) of this Agreement and any revisions 
thereof and any and all work necessary to complete them or carry them out fully and to the 
standard of performance required in this Agreement. 

"Service Tax Funds" means the amount actually collected pursuant to the Service Tax. 
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"Special Service Area Commission ('SSAC')" means the body established pursuant to 
the Establishment Ordinance to prepare the Budget, identify a Contractor and supervise the 
provision ofthe Special Services in the Area. 

"Subcontractor" means any person or entity with whom Contractor contracts to provide 
any part of the Services, including subcontractors of any tier, subconsultants of any tier, suppliers 
and materialmen, whether or not in privity with the Contractor. 

"Surplus Funds", also referred to as "Carry-Over Funds", means those Service Tax 
Funds already collected and disbursed to the Contractor in prior years for the provision of Special 
Services in the Area which remain unspent, including any interest earned thereon. 

ARTICLE 3 DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF CONTRACTOR 

3.01 Scope of Services 

The Services which the Contractor shall provide include, but are not limited to, those 
described in this Article 3 and in Exhibit 1 which is attached hereto and incorporated by 
reference as i f fully set forth here. The SSAC reserves the right to require the Contractor to 
perform revised services that are within the general scope of services of this Agreement and of 
the Special Services identified in the Establishment Ordinance subject to the same terms and 
conditions herein. Revised services are limited to changes or revisions to the line items in the 
Budget, do not affect the maximum compensation and require the prior written approval of the 
SSAC. The SSAC may, by written notice to the Department and the Contractor, delete or amend 
the figures contained and described in the Budget attached hereto as Exhibit 1 and incorporated 
by reference as if fully set forth herein. The Contractor shall provide the Services in accordance 
with the standards of performance set forth in Section 3.02. 

3.02 Standard of Performance 

The Contractor shall perform all Services required of it with that degree of skill, care and 
diligence normally shown by a contractor performing services of a scope, purpose and magnitude 
comparable with the nature of the Services to be provided hereunder. The Contractor shall at all 
times use every reasonable effort on behalf of the City to assure timely and satisfactory rendering 
and completion of its Services. 

The Contractor shall at all times act in the best interests of the City consistent with the 
professional obligations assumed by it in entering into this Agreement. The Contractor shall 
perform all Services in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and to the 
full satisfaction of the SSAC. The Contractor shall furnish efficient business administration and 
supervision to render and complete the Services at reasonable cost. 

The Contractor shall assure that all Services that require the exercise of professional skills 
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or judgment are accomplished by professionals qualified and competent in the applicable 
discipline and appropriately licensed, if required by law. The Contractor remains responsible for 
the professional and technical accuracy of all Services provided, whether by the Contractor or its 
Subcontractors or others on its behalf 

If the SSAC determines that the Contractor has failed to comply with the foregoing 
standards, the Contractor shall perform again, at its own expense, all Services required to be 
reperformed as a direct or indirect result of such failure. Any review, approval, acceptance or 
payment for any or all of the Services by the City does not relieve the Contractor of its 
responsibility for the professional and technical accuracy of its Services. This provision in no 
way limits the City's rights against Contractor, either under this Agreement, at law or in equity. 

3.03 Personnel 

A. Key Personnel 

The Contractor shall, immediately upon receiving a fully executed copy of this 
Agreement, assign and maintain during the tenn of this Agreement and any extension thereof an 
adequate staff of competent personnel, who are fiilly equipped, licensed as appropriate, available 
as needed, qualified and assigned to perform the Services. Contractor shall pay the salaries and 
wages due all its employees performing Services under this Agreement unconditionally and at 
least once a month without deduction or rebate on any account, except only for such payroll 
deductions as are mandatory by law or are permitted under applicable law and regulations. 

B. Prevailing Wages 

If the Contractor engages in Construction, it shall comply, and shall cause all of its 
Subcontractors to comply by inserting appropriate provisions in their contracts, with 820 ILCS 
130/0.01 et seq. regarding the payment of the general prevailing rate of hourly wage for all 
laborers, workers, and mechanics employed by or on behalf of the Contractor and all 
Subcontractors in connection with any and all Construction work. The prevailing rates of wages 
applicable at the time of execution of this Agreement are included in Exhibit 5 to this 
Agreement, which is incorporated by reference as though fully set forth herein. 

C. Illinois Workers, Veterans Preference and Steel Products 

If the Contractor engages in Construction, it shall comply, and shall cause all of its 
Subcontractors to comply by inserting appropriate provisions in their contracts, with the 
Employment of Illinois Workers on Public Works Act, 30 ILCS 570/0.01 et seq., the Veterans 
Preference Act, 330 ILCS 55/0.01 et seq., and the Steel Products Procurement Act, 30 ILCS 
30/565/1 et seq. 



3.04 Nondiscrimination 

A. Contractor 

(i) Federal Requirements 

Contractor must not engage in unlawful employment practices, such as (1) failing or 
refusing to hire or discharging any individual, or otherwise discriminating against any 
individual with respect to compensation or the terms, conditions or privileges of the 
individual's employment, because of the individual's race, color, religion, sex, age, 
handicap/disability or national origin; or (2) limiting, segregating or classifying 
Contractor's employees or applicants for employment in any way that would deprive or 
tend to deprive any individual of employment opportunities or otherwise adversely affect 
the individual's status as an employee, because of the individual's race, color, religion, 
sex, age, handicap/disability or national origin. 

Contractor must comply with, and the procedures Contractor utilizes and the Services 
Contractor provides under this Agreement must comply with, the Civil Rights Act of 
1964, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e et seq. (1981), as amended and the Civil Rights Act of 1991, 
P.L. 102-166. Attention is called to: Exec. Order No. 11246, 30 Fed. Reg. 12,319 
(1965), reprinted in 42 U.S.C. § 2000e note, as amended by Exec. Order No. 11375, 32 
Fed. Reg. 14,303 (1967) and by Exec. Order No. 12086, 43 Fed. Reg. 46,501 (1978); Age 
Discrimination Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 6101-6106 (1981); Age Discrimination in Employment 
Act, 29 U.S.C. §§ 621-34; Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S.C. §§ 793-794 (1981); 
Americans with Disabilities Act, 42 U.S.C. §12101 et seq.; 41 C.F.R. Part 60 et seq. 
(1990); and all other applicable federal statutes, regulations and other laws. 

(ii) State Requirements 

Contractor must comply with, and the procedures Contractor utilizes and the Services 
Contractor provides under this Agreement must comply with, the Illinois Human 
Rights Act, 775 ILCS 5/1-101 et seq.(1990), as amended and any rules and regulations 
promulgated in accordance with it, including the Equal Employment Opportunity Clause, 
44 111. Admin. Code § 750 Appendix A. Furthermore, Contractor must comply with the 
Public Works Employment Discrimination Act, 775 ILCS 10/0.01 et seq.(1990), as 
amended, and all other applicable state statues, regulations and other laws. 

(iii) City Requirements 

Contractor must comply with, and the procedures Contractor utilizes and the Services 
Contractor provides under this Agreement must comply with, the Chicago Human Rights 
Ordinance, ch. 2-160, Section 2-160-010 et seq. of the Municipal Code of Chicago 
(1990), as amended, and all other applicable City ordinances and rules. 



B. Subcontractors 

Contractor must incorporate all of this Section 3.04 by reference in all agreements entered 
into with any suppliers of materials, furnisher of services. Subcontractors of any tier, and labor 
organizations that furnish skilled, unskilled and craft union skilled labor, or that may provide any 
such materials, labor or services in connection with this Agreement. Further, Contractor must 
furnish and must cause each of its Subcontractor(s) to furnish such reports and information as 
requested by the federal, state and local agencies charged with enforcing such laws and 
regulations, including the Chicago Commission on Human Relations. 

3.05 Insurance 

The Contractor shall comply with the insurance provisions attached hereto as Exhibit 3 
and incorporated by reference as i f fiilly set forth herein, or such other insurance provisions as 
may be required in the reasonable judgment of the Risk Management Division. If the Contractor 
enters into a subcontract with a Security Firm such Security Firm shall comply with the insurance 
provisions attached hereto as Exhibit 4 and incorporated by reference as i f fully set forth herein, 
or such other insurance provisions as may be required in the reasonable judgment of the Risk 
Management Division. If the Contractor subcontracts with a Subcontractor other than a Security 
Firm, such Subcontractor shall comply with the Contractor insurance provisions attached hereto 
as Exhibit 3. 

The Risk Management Division may waive or reduce any of the insurance requirements 
set forth herein. 

3.06 IndemniHcation 

A. On written notice from the City of Losses the City believes are Losses Arising 
under this Agreement as defined in this Section 3.06, the Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and 
hold completely harmless the City Indemnitees from and against such Losses, regardless of 
whether Contractor challenges the City's belief The defense, indemnification and hold 
harmless obligations of the Contractor toward City Indemnitees remain an affirmative obligation 
of Contractor following the City's notice of Losses the City believes are Losses Arising under 
this Agreement, unless and until a court of competent jurisdiction finally determines otherwise 
and all opportunities for appeal have been exhausted or have lapsed. 

B. For purposes of this Section 3.06, 

"City Indemnitees" means, individually and collectively, the City of Chicago, its 
officials, agents, employees and SSAC members. 

"Losses" means, individually and collectively, all kinds of liabilities, losses, suits, 
claims, damages, judgments, fines, and demands, including all reasonable costs for investigation. 



reasonable attorneys' fees, court costs, and experts' fees, arising by reason of injury or death of 
any person, damage to property, patent or copyright infringement. 

"Arising under this Agreement" means (i) arising out of awarding this Agreement, (ii) 
arising out of the enforcement of this Agreement, including the enforcement of this 
indemnification provision; (iii) arising out of or in connection with Contractor's performance or 
non-performance of this Agreement (including the acts or omission of Contractor, its officers, 
agents, employees, consultants, subcontractors, licensees, or invitees), any breach by any of them 
of any warranty made under this Agreement, or any failure by any of them to meet any applicable 
standard of performance under this Agreement; or (iv) any combination of any of the foregoing. 

C. To the extent permissible by law. Contractor waives any limits on Contractor's 
liability that it would otherwise have by virtue of the Worker's Compensation Act or any other 
related law or judicial decision (such as Kotecki v. Cyclops Welding Corporation, 146 111. 2d 155 
(1991)). The City, however, does not waive any limitations it may have on its liability under the 
Worker's Compensation Act or under the Illinois Pension Code. 

D. The City has the right, at its option and at its own expense, to participate in the 
defense of any suit without relieving Contractor of any of its obligations under this indemnity 
provision. The requirements set forth in this indemnity provision are separate from and not 
limited by the amount of insurance Contractor is required to obtain under this Agreement or by 
its bonds pursuant to other provisions in this Agreement. Further, the indemnitees contained in 
this provision survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

3.07 Records and Audits 

The Contractor shall deliver or cause to be delivered all documents, data, studies, reports, 
findings or information to the SSAC promptly in accordance with the time limits prescribed 
herein and i f no time limit is specified, then upon reasonable demand therefore, or upon 
termination or completion of the Services hereunder. 

The Contractor agrees to adopt at its own expense such financial controls, including, 
without limitation, the employment of a fiscal agent approved by the Commissioner, as 
determined by the Commissioner in his sole discretion and communicated in writing to the 
Contractor after the date of execution of this Agreement, to ensure that the Contractor is fiilfilling 
the terms of this Agreement. 

The Contractor and any Subcontractors shall furnish the SSAC with semi-annual reports 
or provide such information as may be requested relative to the performance and cost of the 
Services. The Contractor shall maintain records showing actual time devoted and costs incurred. 
The Contractor shall keep books, documents, paper, records and accounts in connection with the 
Services open to inspection, copying, abstracting, transcription, and an independent audit by City 
employees or agents or third parties, and shall make these records available to the City and any 
other interested govermnental agency at reasonable times during the performance of its Services. 



Contractor must maintain any such records including Deliverables not delivered to the City or 
demanded by the City for a period that is the longer of (A) 5 years after the final payment made 
in connection with this Agreement (or, 6 years after the final payment made in connection with 
this Agreement, with respect to any records that are required to be maintained pursuant to the 
Contractor's obligations under the regulations implementing the Health Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) and the Health Information Technology for Economic and 
Clinical Health Act (HITECH), which was part of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act 
of 2009, specifically 45 C.F.R. § 164.530(j)), or (B) as directed by the Local Records Act (50 
ILCS 205) and relevant records retention schedule. Contractor must not dispose of such records 
following the expiration of the relevant period without notification of and written approval from 
the City in accordance with Article 10. 

In addition to the records to be stored by Contractor, all records that are possessed by 
Contractor in its service to the City to perform a govemmental function are public records of the 
City pursuant to the Illinois Freedom of Information Act ("FOIA"), unless the records are exempt 
under the Act. FOIA requires that the City produce records in a very short period of time. If the 
Contractor receives a request from the City to produce records, the Contractor shall do so within 
72 hours of the notice. 

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT COMMINGLE SERVICE TAX FUNDS WITH 
FUNDS FROM OTHER SOURCES, and to the extent that the Contractor conducts any business 
operations separate and apart from the Services hereimder using, for example, persoimel, 
equipment, supplies or facilities also used in connection with this Agreement, then the Contractor 
shall maintain and make similarly available to the City detailed records supporting the 
Contractor's allocation to this Agreement of the costs and expenses attributable to any such 
shared usages. 

The Contractor shall provide an annual audited financial statement (a "Third Party 
Audit") to the Department and the SSAC within 120 calendar days after the end of the calendar 
year, and the system of accounting shall be in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles and practices, consistently applied throughout. Contractor must comply with the 
requirements in Exhibit 8 with respect to any Third Party Audit. If any Third Party Audit shows 
that Contractor or any of its Subcontractors has overcharged the City in any period, the City will 
notify Contractor, and Contractor must then promptly reimburse the City for any amounts the 
City has paid Contractor due to the overcharges. Any failure to comply with the audit 
requirements set forth in Exhibit 8 of the Agreement shall constitute an event of default under the 
Agreement. I f such event of default is not corrected to the City's satisfaction within the cure 
period identified by the City, the City may incur costs to conduct any supplementary audit it 
deems necessary, and Contractor must then promptly reimburse the City for any such costs. No 
provision in this Agreement granting the City a right of access to records and documents is 
intended to impair, limit or affect any right of access to such records and documents that the City 
would have had in the absence of such provisions. 

The City may in its sole discretion audit the records of Contractor or its Subcontractors, 
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or both, at any time during the term of this Agreement or within five years after the Agreement 
ends, in cormection with the goods, work, or services provided under this Agreement. Each 
calendar year or partial calendar year is considered an "audited period." If, as a result of such an 
audit, it is determined that Contractor or any of its Subcontractors has overcharged the City in the 
audited period, the City will notify Contractor. Contractor must then promptly reimburse the 
City for any amounts the City has paid Contractor due to the overcharges and also some or all of 
the cost ofthe audit, as follows: 

A. If the audit has revealed overcharges to the City representing less than 5% of the 
total value, based on the Agreement prices, of the goods, work, or services provided in the 
audited period, then the Contractor must reimburse the City for 50% of the cost of the audit and 
50% of the cost of each subsequent audit that the City conducts; 

B. If, however, the audit has revealed overcharges to the City representing 5% or 
more of the total value, based on the Agreement prices, of the goods, work, or services provided 
in the audited period, then Contractor must reimburse the City for the full cost of the audit and of 
each subsequent audit. 

If the City is unable to make a determination regarding overcharges to City as a result of 
Contractor's not having maintained records as required under this Agreement, Contractor must 
promptly reimburse the City for some or all of the cost of the audit, as determined in the sole 
discretion of the City. Failure of Contractor to promptly reimburse the City in accordance with 
this Section 3.07 is an event of default under Section 7.01 of this Agreement, and Contractor will 
be liable for all of the City's costs of collection, including any court costs and attorneys' fees. 

3.08 Subcontracts and Assignments 

The Contractor shall not assign, delegate, subcontract or otherwise transfer all or any part 
of its rights or obligations under this Agreement or any part hereof, unless otherwise provided for 
herein or without the express written consent of the SSAC. The absence of such provision or 
written consent shall void the attempted assigrmient, delegation or transfer and shall be of no 
effect as to the Services or this Agreement. 

All subcontracts, all approvals of Subcontractors and any assignment to which the SSAC 
consents are, regardless of their form, deemed conditioned upon performance by the 
Subcontractor or assignee in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

If the Contractor subcontracts for security services, the Subcontractor shall be a Security 
Firm certified by the State of Illinois and the Security Firm's employees shall be licensed by the 
State of Illinois. The Contractor, upon entering into any subcontract with a Security Firm, shall 
furnish the SSAC and the Department with a copy of the subcontract for their approval. The City 
expressly reserves the right to approve all Security Firm subcontracts. 



3.09 License, Permits and Safety Considerations 

A. Licenses and Permits 

If the Contractor engages in Construction, it is responsible for and, in a timely marmer 
consistent with its obligations hereunder, shall secure and maintain at its expense such permits, 
licenses, authorizations and approvals as are necessary for it to engage Construction under this 
Agreement 

B. Safety Considerations 

If the Contractor engages in Construction, it shall at all times exercise reasonable care, 
shall comply with all applicable provisions of federal, state and local laws to prevent accidents or 
injuries, and shall take all appropriate precautions to avoid damage to and loss of City property 
and the property of third parties in cormection with the Construction. The Contractor shall erect 
and properly maintain at all times all necessary safeguards, barriers, flags and lights for the 
protection of its and its Subcontractors' employees. City employees and the public. 

If the Contractor engages in Construction, it shall report to the Department any damage 
on, about, under or adjacent to City property or the property of third persons resulting from its 
performance under this Agreement. The Contractor is responsible for any damage to City 
property and the property of third parties due, in whole or in part, to the Contractor's 
Construction activities under this Agreement, and the Contractor shall repair such damage to a 
reasonably acceptable standard. 

3.10 Performance Bond 

If the Contractor engages in Construction work where expenditures exceed $100,000, it 
shall, not later than the date the Contractor begins such work or executes a subcontract for such 
work, provide or cause to be provided to the Department a performance and payment bond in the 
amount allocated for the Construction work (but not including the amount allocated for design 
and preparation of specifications), by a surety or sureties acceptable to the City. The 
performance bond shall be in the form and to the effect of Exhibit 6 hereto, which is incorporated 
by reference as if fully set forth here. 

If any of the sureties on such bond at any time fail financially, or are deemed to be 
insufficient security for the penalty of the bond, then the City may, on giving 10 days notice 
thereof in writing, require the Contractor to furnish a new and additional bond with sureties 
satisfactory to the City, and, if so required. Contractor must promptly provide such bond. 

ARTICLE 4 TERM OF SERVICES 

This Agreement shall take effect as of January 1, 2015 ("Effective Date") and shall 
continue through December 31, 2015, or until the Agreement is terminated earlier in accordance 
with its terms. 
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ARTICLES COMPENSATION 

5.01 Basis of Payment 

The maximum compensation that the Contractor may be paid under this Agreement 
between January 1, 2015 and December 31, 2015 is the sum of (a) $243,705 or the total amount 
of Service Tax Funds actually collected, plus interest earned on those funds, for tax year 2014, 
whichever is less; (b) the total amount of Surplus Funds in the amount of $30,000 which are 
being carried over from previous program years and which contractor hereby acknowledges are 
in its possession; and (c) Late Collections in an amount not to exceed $12,185; the maximum 
compensation that the Contractor may be paid under this Agreement between January 1, 2015 
and December 31, 2015, therefore, shall not exceed $285,890. 

5.02 Budget for Services 

The Contractor in conjunction with the SSAC has prepared a Budget through December 
31, 2015, attached hereto as Exhibit 1 and incorporated by reference as i f fully set forth here, 
covering all services described in the Scope of Services. Subject to the restriction that the 
maximum amount that may be spent in calendar year 2015 may not exceed $285,890, the SSAC 
reserves the right to transfer fiinds between line items or make Budget revisions that do not affect 
the maximum compensation set forth in Section 5.01. The SSAC shall revise the Budget i f any 
part of the Contractor's Services is terminated. 

5.03 Method of Payment 

Pursuant to a schedule to be determined by the Commissioner, after the performance of 
Services pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, Contractor may submit invoices to the City to 
request reimbursement for such expenses. The Contractor must provide, along with the invoices, 
such additional documentation as the Commissioner requests to substantiate the Services. Upon 
the Commissioner's determination that the invoices are accurate, the City will process payment of 
the invoices. 

The Contractor shall establish a separate checking account ("Account") in a bank 
authorized to do business in the State of Illinois that is insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation. All Service Tax Funds that the Comptroller transfers to the Contractor shall be 
deposited in the Account and disbursements from the Account shall be pursuant to this 
Agreement. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR RECONCILING THE ACCOUNT 
MONTHLY AND ACCOUNTING FOR ALL SERVICE TAX FUNDS. THE CONTRACTOR 
MUST REQUIRE ITS AUDITOR TO REPORT ON THE ACTIVITIES THAT ARE 
SUPPORTED BY THESE FUNDS IN A SEPARATE AUDIT TO ACCOUNT FOR CURRENT 
AND PRIOR YEARS' SERVICE TAX FUNDS. 

The Contractor shall provide to the SSAC the signature card and sample check from the 
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bank which shows the signature(s) of the Contractor's authorized representative(s). The SSAC 
reserves the right to audit the account and require the Contractor to refund any funds that were 
not spent pursuant to the Budget or that were not approved by the SSAC. The name and address 
of the bank is and the wire transfer 
and the Account numbers are . 

All funds remaining in the Account at the expiration or early termination of this 
Agreement, including any interest earned, belong to the City for the benefit of the Area and shall 
be returned to the City to be used only for Special Services. 

5.04 Criteria for Payment 

The SSAC shall determine the reasonableness, allocability and allowability of any rates, 
costs and expenses charged or incurred by the Contractor. 

5.05 Funding 

Payments under this Agreement shall be made from Service Tax Funds in fund number 
and are subject to the availability of funds therein. 

5.06 Non-Appropriation 

In the event that no fimds or insufficient fiinds are appropriated and budgeted in any City 
fiscal period for payments to be made under this Agreement, then the City will notify the 
Contractor of such occurrence and this Agreement shall terminate on the earlier of the last day of 
the fiscal period for which sufficient appropriation was made or whenever the funds appropriated 
for payment under this Agreement are exhausted. No payments shall be made or due to the 
Contractor under this Agreement beyond those amounts appropriated and budgeted by the City to 
fund payments hereunder. 

ARTICLE 6 SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

6.01 Warranties and Representations 

In connection with the execution of this Agreement, the Contractor warrants and 
represents: 

A. That it is financially solvent; that it and each of its employees, agents, and 
Subcontractors are competent to perform the Services required; that it is legally authorized to 
execute and perform or cause to be performed this Agreement under the terms and conditions 
stated herein. 

B. That it shall not knowingly use the services of any ineligible Subcontractor for any 
purpose in the performance ofthe Services. 
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C. That it and its Subcontractors are not in default at the time of the execution of this 
Agreement, or deemed by the Department to have, within five years immediately preceding the 
date of this Agreement, been found to be in default on any contract awarded by the City. 

D. That it and, to the best of its knowledge, its Subcontractors are not in violation of 
the provisions of § 2-92-320 ofthe Municipal Code of Chicago, 720 ILCS 5/33E-1 et seq. of the 
Criminal Code of 1961, and 65 ILCS 5/11-42.1-1 ofthe fllinois Municipal Code. 

E. That it, all Subcontractors and their respective officers, directors, agents, partners, 
and employees shall cooperate with the Inspector General or Board of Ethics in any investigation 
or hearing undertaken pursuant to Chapters 2-56 or 2-156 of the Municipal Code of Chicago; that 
it understands and will abide by all provisions of Chapter 2-56 and 2-156 of the Municipal Code 
of Chicago and all subcontracts shall inform Subcontractors of such provision and require 
understanding and compliance therewith. 

F. That, except only for those representations, statements or promises expressly 
contained in this Agreement and any exhibits attached hereto, no representation, statement or 
promise, oral or written, or of any kind whatsoever, by the City, its officials, agents or 
employees, has induced the Contractor to enter into this Agreement. 

G. That the Contractor understands and agrees that any certification, affidavit or 
acknowledgment made imder oath in cormection with this Agreement is made under penalty of 
perjury and, i f false, is also cause for termination for default. 

H. That neither Contractor nor an Affiliate of Contractor (as defined below) appears 
on the Specially Designated Nationals List, the Denied Persons List, the unverified List, the 
Entity List or the Debarred List as maintained by the Office of Foreign Assets Control of the U.S. 
Department of the Treasury or by the Bureau of Industry and Security of the U.S. Department of 
Commerce (or their successors), or on any other list of persons or entities with which the City 
may not do business under any applicable law, rule, regulation, order or judgment. "Affiliate of 
Contractor" means a person or entity that directly (or indirectly through one or more 
intermediaries) controls, is controlled by or is under common control with Contractor. A person 
or entity will be deemed to be controlled by another person or entity i f it is controlled in any 
manner whatsoever that results in control in fact by that other person or entity (either acting 
individually or acting jointly or in concert with others) whether directly or indirectly and 
whether through share ownership, a trust, a contract or otherwise. 

I . Contractor will abide by any policies promulgated by the Department or other City 
departments. 

J. Contractor understands and will abide by, and will cause Subcontractors to abide 
by, the terms of Chapter 2-55 of the Municipal Code of Chicago pertaining to cooperation with 
the Office of the Legislative Inspector General. Contractor understands and will abide by the 
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terms of Section 2-154-020 of the Municipal Code of Chicago. Failure by the Contractor or any 
controlling person (as defined in Section 1-23-010 of the Municipal Code of Chicago) thereof to 
maintain eligibility to do business with the City of Chicago as required by Section 1-23-030 of 
the Municipal Code of Chicago shall be a default for which no cure is available and grounds for 
termination of this Agreement. 

6.02 Economic Disclosure Statement and Affidavit 

The Contractor has provided the City with an Economic Disclosure Statement (EDS) and 
Affidavit, "Familial Relationships with Elected City Officials and Department Heads," which is 
attached hereto as Exhibit 2 and incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein. Contractor 
shall apprise the Department promptly of any changes in the information provided in the EDS by 
completing and submitting a revised EDS. 

In addition, the Contractor shall provide the City with copies of its latest articles of 
incorporation, by-laws and resolutions, or partnership or joint venture agreement, as applicable, 
and evidence of its authority to do business in the State of Illinois, including without limitation, 
registrations of assumed names or limited partnerships and certifications of good standing with 
the Office of the Secretary of State of Illinois. 

6.03 Conflict of Interest 

Pursuant to Chapter 2-156 ofthe Municipal Code of Chicago, and 65 ILCS 5/3.1-55-10, 
no member of the governing body of the City or other unit of government, no other officer, 
employee, SSAC member, or agent of the City or other unit of government who exercises any 
functions or responsibilities in comiection with the Services to which this Agreement or any 
related subcontract pertain, and no relative of any SSAC member shall have any personal 
economic or financial interest, directly or indirectly, in this Agreement or any such subcontract 
except to the extent that such benefits are provided equally to all residents and/or business 
owners in the Area. Furthermore, no SSAC member, relative of any SSAC member. City 
official, agent or employee shall be a Subcontractor or have any financial interest in any 
Subcontractor, employee or shareholder of the Contractor or receive anything of value from the 
Contractor. 

No member of or delegate to the Congress of the United States or the Illinois General 
Assembly and no alderman of the City or City employee shall be admitted to any share or part of 
this Agreement or to any financial benefit to arise from it. The Contractor acknowledges that any 
agreement entered into, negotiated or performed in violation of any of the provisions of Chapter 
2-156 shall be voidable by the City. 

The Contractor covenants that it, its officers, directors and employees, and the officers, 
directors and employees of each of its members if a joint venture, and Subcontractors presently 
have no financial interest and shall acquire no interest, direct or indirect, in the Services 
undertaken by the Contractor pursuant to the Agreement that would conflict in any manner or 
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degree with the performance of the Services. The Contractor further covenants that in the 
performance of this Agreement no person having any such interest shall be employed. The 
Contractor agrees that if the Commissioner in his reasonable judgment determines that any of the 
Contractor's services for others conflict with the Services the Contractor is to provide for the City 
under this Agreement, the Contractor shall terminate such other services immediately upon 
request of the City. 

6.04 Non-liability of Public Officials 

No official, employee or agent of the City shall be charged personally by the Contractor, 
or by any assignee or Subcontractor of the Contractor, with any liability or expenses of defense or 
be held personally liable to them under any term or provision hereof, because of the City's 
execution or attempted execution hereof, or because of any breach hereof. 

6.05 Independent Contractor 

(a) The Contractor shall perform under this Agreement as an independent contractor to 
the City and not as a representative, employee, agent or partner of the City. 

(b) (i) The City is subject to June 24, 2011 the "City of Chicago Hiring Plan" (the 
"City Hiring Plan") entered in Shakman v. Democratic Organization of Cook County, 
Case No 69 C 2145 (United State District Court for the Northern District of Illinois). 
Among other things, the City Hiring Plan prohibits the City from hiring persons as 
govemmental employees in non-exempt positions on the basis of political reasons or 
factors. 

(ii) Contractor is aware that City policy prohibits City employees from directing 
any individual to apply for a position with Contractor, either as an employee or as a 
subcontractor, and from directing Contractor to hire an individual as an employee or as a 
subcontractor. Accordingly, Contractor must follow its own hiring and contracting 
procedures, without being influenced by City employees. Any and all personnel provided 
by Contractor under this Agreement are employees or subcontractors of Contractor, not 
employees of the City of Chicago. This Agreement is not intended to and does not 
constitute, create, give rise to, or otherwise recognize an employer-employee relationship 
of any kind between the City and any personnel provided by Contractor. 

(iii) Contractor will not condition, base, or knowingly prejudice or affect any term 
or aspect of the employment of any personnel provided under this Agreement, or offer 
employment to any individual to provide services under this Agreement, based upon or 
because of any political reason or factor, including, without limitation, any individual's 
political affiliation, membership in a political organization or party, political support or 
activity, political financial contributions, promises of such political support, activity or 
financial contributions, or such individual's political sponsorship or recommendation. For 
purposes of this Agreement, a political organization or party is an identifiable group or 
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entity that has as its primary purpose the support of or opposition to candidates for elected 
public office. Individual political activities are the activities of individual persons in 
support of or in opposition to political organizations or parties or candidates for elected 
public office. 

(iv) In the event of any communication to Contractor by a City employee or City 
official in violation of Section (ii) above, or advocating a violation of Section (iii) above, 
Contractor will, as soon as is reasonably practicable, report such communication to the 
Hiring Oversight Section of the City's Office of the Inspector General, and also to the 
head of the relevant City Department utilizing services provided under this Agreement. 
Contractor will also cooperate with any inquiries by OIG Hiring Oversight related to the 
contract. 

(c) The parties agree that this Contract is solely for the benefit of the parties and 
nothing herein is intended to create any third party beneficiary rights for subcontractors or 
other third parties. 

6.06 Business Relationships with Elected Officials 

Pursuant to MCC Sect. 2-156-030(b), it is illegal for any elected official, or any person 
acting at the direction of such official, to contact either orally or in writing any other City official 
or employee with respect to any matter involving any person with whom the elected official has 
any business relationship that creates a financial interest on the part of the official, or the 
domestic partner or spouse of the official, or from whom or which he has derived any income or 
compensation during the preceding twelve months or from whom or which he reasonably expects 
to derive any income or compensation in the following twelve months. In addition, no elected 
official may participate in any discussion in any City Council committee hearing or in any City 
Council meeting or vote on any matter involving the person with whom the elected official has 
any business relationship that creates a financial interest on the part of the official, or the 
domestic partner or spouse of the official, or from whom or which he has derived any income or 
compensation during the preceding twelve months or from whom or which he reasonably expects 
to derive any income or compensation in the following twelve months. 

Violation of MCC Sect. 2-156-030 by any elected official with respect to this contract 
will be grounds for temiination of this contract. The term financial interest is defined as set forth 
in MCC Chapter 2-156. 

6.07 Chicago "Living Wage" Ordinance 

(a) Section 2-92-610 of the Municipal Code of Chicago provides for a living 
wage for certain categories of workers employed in the performance of City contracts, 
specifically non-City employed security guards, parking attendants, day laborers, home and 
health care workers, cashiers, elevator operators, custodial workers and clerical workers 
("Covered Employees"). Accordingly, pursuant to Section 2-92-610 and regulations 
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promulgated under it: 

(i) If Contractor has 25 or more full-time employees, and 

(ii) If at any time during the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and/or 
any Subcontractor or any other entity that provides any portion of the Services 
(collectively "Performing Parties") uses 25 or more full-time security guards, or 
any number of other full-time Covered Employees, then 

(iii) Contractor must pay its Covered Employees, and must assure that 
all other Performing Parties pay their Covered Employees, not less than 
the minimum hourly rate as determined in accordance with this provision 
(the "Base Wage") for all Services performed under this Agreement. 

(b) Contractor's obligafion to pay, and to assure payment of, the Base Wage will 
begin at any time during the term of this Agreement when the conditions set forth in (a)(i) and 
(a)(ii) above are met, and will continue until the end ofthe term of this Agreement. 

(c) As of July 1, 2014, the Base Wage is $11.93 per hour, and each July 1 thereafter, 
the Base Wage will be adjusted, using the most recent federal poverty guidelines for a family of 
four as published annually by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, to constitute 
the following: the poverty guidelines for a family of four divided by 2000 hours or the current 
base wage, whichever is higher. At all times during the term of this Agreement, Contractor and 
all other Performing Parties must pay the Base Wage (as adjusted in accordance with the above). 
If the payment of prevailing wages is required for Services done under this Agreement, and the 
prevailing wages for Covered Employees are higher than the Base Wage, then Contractor and all 
other Performing Parties must pay the prevailing wage rates. 

(d) Contractor must include provisions in all subcontracts requiring its 
Subcontractors to pay the Base Wage to Covered Employees. Contractor agrees to provide the 
City with documentation acceptable to the Chief Procurement Officer demonstrating that all 
Covered Employees, whether employed by Contractor or by a Subcontractor, have been paid the 
Base Wage, upon the City's request for such documentation. The City may independently audit 
Contractor and/or Subcontractors to verify compliance with this section. Failure to comply with 
the requirements of this section will be an event of default under this Agreement, and further, 
failure to comply may result in ineligibility for any award of a City contract or subcontract for up 
to 3 years. 

(e) Not-for-Profit Corporations: If Contractor is a corporation having federal 
tax-exempt status under Section 501(c)(3) of the Intemal Revenue Code and is recognized under 
Illinois not-for-profit law, then the provisions of Sections (a) through (d) above do not apply. 
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6.08 Deemed Inclusion 

Provisions required by law, ordinances, rules, regulations or executive orders to be 
inserted in this Agreement are deemed inserted in this Agreement whether or not they appear in 
this Agreement or, upon application by either party, this Agreement will be amended to make the 
insertion; however, in no event will the failure to insert the provisions before or after this 
Agreement is signed prevent its enforcement. 

6.09 Environmental Warranties and Representations 

In accordance with Section 11-4-1600(e) of the Municipal Code of Chicago, Contractor 
warrants and represents that it, and to the best of its knowledge, its subcontractors have not 
violated and are not in violation of the following sections of the Code (collectively, the Waste 
Sections): 

7-28-390 Dumping on public way; 
7-28-440 Dumping on real estate without permit; 
11-4-1410 Disposal in waters prohibited; 
11-4-1420 Ballast tank, bilge tank or other discharge; 
11-4-1450 Gas manufacturing residue; 
11-4-1500 Treatment and disposal of solid or liquid waste; 
11-4-1530 Compliance with mles and regulations required; 
11-4-1550 Operational requirements; and 
11-4-1560 Screening requirements. 

During the period while this Agreement is executory. Contractor's or any subcontractor's 
violation of the Waste Sections, whether or not relating to the performance of this Agreement, 
constitutes a breach of and an event of default under this Agreement, for which the opportunity to 
cure, if curable, will be granted only at the sole designation of the Commissioner. Such breach 
and default entitles the City to all remedies under the Agreement, at law or in equity. 

This section does not limit Contractor's and its subcontractors' duty to comply with all 
applicable federal, state, county and municipal laws, statutes, ordinances and executive orders, in 
effect now or later, and whether or not they appear in this Agreement. 

Non-compliance with these terms and conditions may be used by the City as grounds for 
the termination of this Agreement, and may further affect Contractor's eligibility for future 
contract awards. 

6.10 EDS / Certification Regarding Suspension and Debarment 

Contractor certifies, as further evidenced in the EDS attached as Exhibit 2, by its 
acceptance of this Agreement that neither it nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, 
proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation in this 
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transaction by any federal department or agency. Contractor further agrees by executing this 
Agreement that it will include this clause without modification in all lower tier transactions, 
solicitations, proposals, contracts and subcontracts. If Contractor or any lower tier participant is 
unable to certify to this statement, it must attach an explanation to the Agreement. 

6.11 Ethics 

(a) In addition to other warranties and representations. Contractor warrants: 

(i) no officer, agent or employee of the City is employed by Contractor or has 
a financial interest directly or indirectly in this Agreement or the compensation to be paid under 
this Agreement except as may be permitted in writing by the Board of Ethics established under 
Chapter 2-156 ofthe Municipal Code . 

(ii) no payment, gratuity or offer of employment will be made in connection 
with this Agreement by or on behalf of any Subcontractors to Contractor or higher tier 
Subcontractors or anyone associated with them, as an inducement for the award of a subcontract 
or order. 

(b) Contractor must comply with Chapter 2-156 of the Municipal Code. Contractor 
acknowledges that any Agreement entered into, negotiated or performed in violation of any of the 
provisions of Chapter 2-156, including any contract entered into with any person who has 
retained or employed a non-registered lobbyist in violation of Section 2-156-305 of the 
Municipal Code is voidable as to the City. 

6.12 MacBride Ordinance 

The City of Chicago through the passage of the MacBride Principles Ordinance seeks to 
promote fair and equal employment opportunities and labor practices for religious minorities in 
Northern Ireland and provide a better working environment for all citizens in Northern Ireland. 

In accordance with Section 2-92-580 of the Municipal Code of the City of Chicago, i f 
Contractor conducts any business operations in Northern Ireland, the Contractor must make all 
reasonable and good faith efforts to conduct any business operations in Northern Ireland in 
accordance with the MacBride Principles for Northern Ireland as defined in Illinois Public Act 
85-1390(1988 111. Laws 3220). 

The provisions of this Section 6.12 do not apply to contracts for which the City receives 
funds administered by the United States Department of Transportation, except to the extent 
Congress has directed that the Department of Transportation not witlihold funds from states and 
localities that choose to implement selective purchasing policies based on agreement to comply 
with the MacBride Principles for Northern Ireland, or to the extent that such funds are not 
otherwise withheld by the Department of Transportation. 

19 



6.13 Duty to Report Corrupt or Unlawful Activity 

Pursuant to §2-156-018 of the Municipal Code, it is the duty of the Contractor to report to 
the Inspector General, directly and without undue delay, any and all information concerning 
conduct which it knows to involve corrupt activity. "Corrupt Activity" means any conduct set 
forth in Subparagraph (a)(1), (2) or (3) of §1-23-020 of the Municipal Code. Knowing failure to 
make such a report will be an event of default under this Agreement. Reports may be made to the 
Inspector General's toll free hotline, 866-IG-TIPLINE (866-448-4754). 

ARTICLE 7 EVENTS OF DEFAULT, REMEDIES, TERMINATION, RIGHT 
TO OFFSET, SUSPENSION 

7.01 Events of Default Defined 

The following constitute events of default: 

A. Any material misrepresentation, whether negligent or willful and whether in the 
inducement or in the performance, made by Contractor to the City. 

B. Contractor's material failure to perform any of its obligations under the Agreement 
including, but not limited to, the following: 

(1) failure to commence or ensure timely completion of the Services due to a 
reason or circumstance within Contractor's reasonable control; 

(2) failure to perform the Services in a manner satisfactory to the City; 

(3) failure to promptly re-perform within a reasonable time Services that were 
rejected as erroneous or unsatisfactory; 

(4) discontinuance of the Services for reasons within the Contractor's reasonable 
control; 

(5) failure to comply with a material term of this Agreement, including but not 
limited to the provisions conceming insurance and nondiscrimination; and 

(6) any other acts specifically and expressly stated in this Agreement as 
constituting an event of default. 

C. The Contractor's default under any other agreement it may presently have or may 
enter into with the City during the life of this Agreement. The Contractor acknowledges and 
agrees that in the event of a default under this Agreement the City may also declare a default 
under any such other agreements. 
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7.02 Remedies 

The occurrence of any event of default which , the Contractor fails to cure within 14 
calendar days after receipt of notice specifying such default or which, i f such event of default 
cannot reasonably be cured within 14 calendar days after notice, the Contractor fails, in the sole 
opinion of the Commissioner, to commence and continue diligent efforts to cure, permits the City 
to declare the Contractor in default. Whether to declare the Contractor in default is within the 
sole discretion of the Commissioner. Written notification of the default, and any intention ofthe 
City to temiinate the Agreement, shall be provided to Contractor and such decision is final and 
effective upon Contractor's receipt of such notice. Upon receipt of such notice, the Contractor 
must discontinue any services, unless otherwise directed in the notice, and deliver all materials 
accumulated in the perfomiance of this Agreement, whether completed or in the process of 
completion, to the City. At such time the City may invoke any legal or equitable remedy 
available to it including, but not limited to, the following: 

A. The right to take over and complete the Services or any part thereof as agent for 
and at the cost of the Contractor, either directly or through others. The Contractor shall have, in 
such event, the right to offset from such cost the amount it would have cost the City under the 
terms and conditions herein had the Contractor completed the Services. 

B. The right to terminate this Agreement as to any or all of the Services yet to be 
performed, effective at a time specified by the City. 

C. The right of specific perfon-nance, an injunction or any other appropriate equitable 
remedy. 

D. The right to money damages. 

E. The right to withhold all or any part of Contractor's compensation hereunder. 

F. The right to deem Contractor non-responsible in future contracts to be awarded by 
the City. 

If the City considers it to be in its best interest, it may elect not to declare default or to 
terminate this Agreement. The parties acknowledge that this provision is solely for the benefit of 
the City and that if the City permits the Contractor to continue to provide the Services despite 
one or more events of default, the Contractor is in no way relieved of any of its responsibilities, 
duties or obligations under this Agreement nor does the City waive or relinquish any of its rights. 
No delay or omission to exercise any right accruing upon any event of default impairs any such 
right nor shall it be construed as a waiver of any event of default or acquiescence therein, and 
every such right may be exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient. 
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7.03 Right to Offset 

The City reserves its rights under § 2-92-380 of the Municipal Code of Chicago and the 
Commissioner shall consult with the SSAC before exercising such rights. 

7.04 Suspension 

The City may at any time request that the Contractor suspend its Services, or any part 
thereof, by giving 15 days prior written notice to the Contractor or upon no notice in the event of 
emergency. No costs incurred after the effective date of such suspension shall be allowed. The 
Contractor shall promptly resume its performance upon written notice by the Department. The 
Budget may be revised pursuant to Section 5.02 to account for any additional costs or expenses 
actually incurred by the Contractor as a result of recommencing the Services. 

7.05 No Damages for Delay 

The Contractor agrees that it, its members, i f a partnership or joint venture and its 
Subcontractors shall make no claims against the City for damages, charges, additional costs or 
hourly fees for costs incurred by reason of delays or hindrances by the City in the performance of 
its obligations under this Agreement. 

7.06 Early Termination 

In addition to termination for default, the City may, at any time, elect to terminate this 
Agreement or any portion of the Services to be performed under it at the sole discretion of the 
Commissioner by a written notice to the Contractor. I f the City elects to terminate the 
Agreement in full, all Services shall cease and all materials accumulated in performing this 
Agreement, whether completed or in the process of completion, shall be delivered to the 
Department within 10 days after receipt of the notice or by the date stated in the notice. 

During the final ten days or other time period stated in the notice, the Contractor shall 
restrict its activities, and those of its Subcontractors, to winding down any reports, analyses, or 
other activities previously begun. No costs incurred after the effective date of the termination are 
allowed. Payment for any Services actually and satisfactorily performed before the effective date 
of the termination shall be on the same basis as set forth in Article 5 hereof, but if any 
compensation is described or provided for on the basis of a period longer than ten days, then the 
compensation shall be prorated accordingly. 

If a court of competent jurisdiction determines that the City's election to terminate this 
Agreement for default has been wrongful, then such termination shall be deemed to be an early 
termination. 
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ARTICLE 8 GENERAL CONDITIONS 

8.01 Entire Agreement 

This Agreement, and the exhibits attached hereto and incoiporated hereby, shall 
constitute the entire agreement between the parties and no other warranties, inducements, 
considerations, promises, or interpretations shall be implied or impressed upon this Agreement 
that are not expressly addressed herein. 

8.02 Counterparts 

This Agreement is comprised of several identical counterparts, each to be fully executed 
by the parties and each to be deemed an original having identical legal effect. 

8.03 Amendments 

No changes, amendments, modifications or discharge of this Agreement, or any part 
thereof, shall be valid unless in writing and signed by the authorized agent of the Contractor and 
the Commissioner, or their successors and assigns. The City shall incur no liability for revised 
services without a written amendment to this Agreement pursuant to this Section. 

8.04 Compliance with All Laws 

The Contractor shall at all times observe and comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, 
rules, regulations and executive orders of the federal, state and local government, now existing or 
hereinafter in effect, which may in any manner affect the performance of this Agreement. 

8.05 Compliance with ADA and Other Accessibility Laws 

If this Agreement involves services to the public, the Contractor warrants that all Services 
provided hereunder shall comply with all accessibility standards for persons with disabilities or 
environmentally limited persons including, but not limited to the following: Americans with 
Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq. and the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S.C. 
§§ 793-94. In the event that the above cited standards are inconsistent, the Contractor shall 
comply with the standard providing greater accessibility. 

If this Agreement involves design for construction and/or Construction, the Contractor 
warrants that all design documents produced and/or used under this Agreement shall comply with 
all federal, state and local laws and regulations regarding accessibility standards for persons with 
disabilities or environmentally limited persons including, but not limited to, the following: 
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq. and the Americans with 
Disabilities Act Accessibility Guidelines for Buildings and Facilities; the Architectural Barriers 
Act, P.L. 90-480 and the Unifomi Federal Accessibility Standards; and the Environmental 
Barriers Act, 410 ILCS 25/1 et seq., and the regulations promulgated thereto at 111. Admin. Code 
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tit. 71, ch. 1, § 400.110. In the event that the above cited standards are inconsistent, the 
Contractor shall comply with the standard providing greater accessibility. If the Contractor fails 
to comply with the foregoing standards, it shall perform again at no expense all services required 
to be reperformed as a direct or indirect result of such failure. 

8.06 Assigns 
All of the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit 
of the parties hereto and their respective legal representatives, successors, transferees and 
assigns. 

8.07 Cooperation 

The Contractor agrees at all times to cooperate fully with the City and to act in the City's 
best interests. Upon the termination or expiration of this Agreement, the Contractor shall make 
every effort to assure an orderly transition to another provider of the Services, if any, orderly 
demobilization of its operations in connection with the Services, uninterrupted provision of 
Services during any transition period and shall otherwise comply with reasonable requests of the 
Department in connection with this Agreement's termination or expiration. 

8.08 Severability 

If any provision of this Agreement is held or deemed to be or shall in fact be inoperative 
or unenforceable as applied in any particular case in any jurisdiction or in all cases because it 
conflicts with any other provision hereof or of any constitution, statute, ordinance, mle of law or 
public policy, or for any other reason, such circumstances shall not have the effect of rendering 
such provision inoperative or unenforceable in any other case or circumstances, or of rendering 
any other provision herein invalid, inoperative, or unenforceable to any extent. The invalidity of 
any one or more phrases, sentences, clauses or sections herein shall not affect the remaining 
portions of this Agreement or any part thereof. 

8.09 Interpretation 

All headings in this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and do not define or 
limit the provisions thereof. Words of gender are deemed to include correlative words of the 
other gender. Words importing the singular number include the plural number and vice versa, 
unless the context otherwise indicates. All references to exhibits or documents are deemed to 
include all supplements and/or amendments to such exhibits or documents if entered into in 
accordance with the terms and conditions hereof and thereof All references to persons or 
entities are deemed to include any persons or entities succeeding to the rights, duties, and 
obligations of such persons or entities in accordance with the terms and conditions herein. 

8.10 Miscellaneous Provisions 

Whenever under this Agreement the City by a proper authority waives the Contractor's 
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perfomiance in any respect or waives a requirement or condition to the Contractor's performance, 
the waiver, whether express or implied, applies only to that particular instance and is not a 
waiver forever or for subsequent instances of the perfomiance, requirement or condition. No 
waiver shall be construed as a modification of the Agreement regardless of the number of times 
the City may have waived the performance, requirement or condition. 

8.11 Disputes 

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, Contractor must and the City may bring 
any dispute arising under this Agreement which is not resolved by the parties to the Chief 
Procurement Officer for decision based upon the written submissions of the parties. (A copy of 
the "Regulations of the Department of Procurement Services for Resolution of Disputes between 
Contractors and the City of Chicago" is available in City Hall, 121 N. LaSalle Street, Room 301, 
Bid and Bond Room, Chicago, Illinois 60602.) The Chief Procurement Officer will issue a 
written decision and send it to the Contractor and the SSAC by mail. The decision of the Chief 
Procurement Officer is final and binding. The sole and exclusive remedy to challenge the 
decision of the Chief Procurement Officer is judicial review by means of a common law writ of 
certiorari. 

8.12 Contractor Affidavit 

The Contractor must provide to the City, no later than thirty days after the end of each 
year May 1 of each year, a fully executed and notarized Affidavit certifying the expenditures 
and Services provided for the prior year. The Contractor must also provide to the City, no later 
than June 1̂ ' of each year, a Full-Year Assessment. The forms of this Affidavit and Full-Year 
Assessment are attached as Exhibit 7 and incorporated by reference. 

8.13 Prohibition on Certain Contributions 

No Contractor or any person or entity who directly or indirectly has an ownership or 
beneficial interest in Contractor of more than 7.5% ("Owners"), spouses and domestic partners of 
such Owners, Contractor's Subcontractors, any person or entity who directly or indirectly has an 
ownership or beneficial interest in any Subcontractor of more than 7.5% ("Sub-owners") and 
spouses and domestic partners of such Sub-ovmers (Contractor and all the other preceding 
classes of persons and entities are together, the "Identified Parties"), shall make a contribution of 
any amount to the Mayor of the City of Chicago (the "Mayor") or to his political fundraising 
committee during (i) the bid or other solicitation process for this Contract or Other Contract, 
including while this Contract or Other Contract is executory, (ii) the term of this Contract or any 
Other Contract between City and Contractor, and/or (iii) any period in which an extension of this 
Contract or Other Contract with the City is being sought or negotiated. 

Contractor represents and warrants that since the date of public advertisement of the 
specification, request for qualifications, request for proposals or request for information (or any 
combination of those requests) or, if not competitively procured, from the date the City 
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approached the Contractor or the date the Contractor approached the City, as applicable, 
regarding the formulation of this Contract, no Identified Parties have made a contribution of any 
amount to the Mayor or to his political fundraising committee. 

Contractor shall not: (a) coerce, compel or intimidate its employees to make a contribution of 
any amount to the Mayor or to the Mayor's political fimdraising committee; (b) reimburse its 
employees for a contribution of any amount made to the Mayor or to the Mayor's political 
fundraising committee; or (c) bundle or solicit others to bundle contributions to the Mayor or to 
his political fundraising committee. 

The Identified Parties must not engage in any conduct whatsoever designed to intentionally 
violate this provision or Mayoral Executive Order No. 2011-4 or to entice, direct or solicit others 
to intentionally violate this provision or Mayoral Executive Order No. 2011-4. 

Violation of, non-compliance with, misrepresentation with respect to, or breach of any covenant 
or warranty under this provision or violation of Mayoral Executive Order No. 2011-4 constitutes 
a breach and default under this Contract, and under any Other Contract for which no opportunity 
to cure will be granted. Such breach and default entitles the City to all remedies (including 
without limitation termination for default) under this Contract, under Other Contract, at law and 
in equity. This provision amends any Other Contract and supersedes any inconsistent provision 
contained therein. 

If Contractor violates this provision or Mayoral Executive Order No. 2011-4 prior to award of the 
Contract resulting from this specification, the Commissioner may reject Contractor's bid. 

For purposes of this provision: 

"Other Contract" means any agreement entered into between the Contractor and the City that is 
(i) formed under the authority of MCC Ch. 2-92; (ii) for the purchase, sale or lease of real or 
personal property; or (iii) for materials, supplies, equipment or services which are approved 
and/or authorized by the City Council. 

"Contribution" means a "political contribution" as defined in MCC Ch. 2-156, as amended. 

"Polifical fundraising committee" means a "political fundraising committee" as defined in MCC 
Ch. 2-156, as amended. 

8.14 Firms Owned or Operated by Individuals vvith Disabilities 

The City encourages Contractors to use Subcontractors that are firms owned or 
operated by individuals with disabilities, as defined by Section 2-92-586 of the Municipal 
Code of the City of Chicago, where not otherwise prohibited by federal or state law. 
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8.15 Governing Law and Jurisdiction 

This Agreement is govemed as to performance and interpretation in accordance with 
the laws of the State of Illinois. 

ARTICLE 9 NOTICES 

Notices provided for herein shall be in writing and may be delivered personally or by 
United States mail, first class, certified, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid and 
addressed as follows: 

If to the City: Special Service Area #38 Commission 
4054 N. Lincoln Ave 
Chicago, fllinois 60618 

Department of Planning and Development 
City Hall, Room 1000 
121 North LaSalle Street 
Chicago, Illinois 60602 
Attention: Commissioner 

With Copies to: Department of Law 
Room 600, City Hall 
121 North LaSalle Street 
Chicago, Illinois 60602 
Attention: Corporation Counsel 

If to Contractor: Northcenter Chamber of Commerce 
4054 N. Lincoln Ave 
Chicago, Illinois 60618 
Attention: Mr. Garrett P. FitzGerald 

Changes in the above-referenced addresses must be in writing and delivered in 
accordance with the provisions of this Section. Notices delivered by mail shall be deemed 
received 3 days after mailing in accordance with this Section. Notices delivered personally 
shall be deemed effective upon receipt. 

ARTICLE 10 CITY ACTION 

In the event that there is no duly constituted SSAC during the term of this 
Agreement, the City will retain all of the rights and obligations afforded to the SSAC 
hereunder. 
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ARTICLE 11 MULTI-PROJECT LABOR AGREEMENT 

The City has entered into the Multi-Project Labor Agreement ("PLA") with various 
trades regarding projects as described in the PLA, a copy of which, without appendices, is 
attached hereto as Exhibit 9. A copy of the PLA, with appendices, may also be found on the 
City's website at http://www.citvofchicago.org/PLA. Contractor acknowledges familiarity 
with the requirements of the PLA and its applicability to any Services under this Agreement, 
and shall comply in all respects with any applicable provisions of the PLA. 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and the Contractor have executed this 
Agreement on the date first set forth above, at Chicago, Illinois. 

Recommended by: 

SSAC Chairperson 

CITY OF CHICAGO 

By: 
Commissioner, Department of 
Planning and Development 
as of , 20 

CONTRACTOR 
By: 
Its: 
Attested By: 
Its: 

State of 
County of 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on (date) by 
(name/s of person/s) as (type of authority, e.g., officer, trustee, etc.) of 
(name of party on behalf of whom instrument was executed). 

(Signature of Notary Public) 
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EXHIBIT 1 

Scope of Services & Budget 
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Chicago Dopartmortof Ptwtnlng snd Dcwtoprnvnl 

Nan* : SSA Ctiai iponon: Warren 6lvcr A g e r ^ Contact: Gsnen FtzGeraW 

Servfc* Provldor A^tencv: Northcertef Chamber of Ccnvneroe PhOM Numbt r Tnau.ssso Pbon* Hwnber: 773 MS.3S09 

SSA Tax Autttoftty Term: 2014-2029 Ennl l : garrottQnorllKentefChamtM 

Dat*: 

201S BUDGET SUUBAARY . » i « i . » T r CwTv Ovftr 4 IrmMiw TlMrvan . 2015 Bwdqst 
CATEGORY 
1.00 Customer Aniactun S I.MO I • ^ S 1.500 

2.00 Pubic Way Aeslhetscs i 142.000 » 2SJ00 4 n S 171.GSS 

3.00 Suiainaolty «ad Pubfc Ptocis 1 '. S » S J 

4bQ0 EconofridBusinoss Oevfitopmsnt ~ * ».oaa » 4.M0 4 t > 24.500 

SiO&Suflcly ftojwm 1. 4 '» «' » 
e.OO'̂ SSA HbnaomiM 1. , }<E0O • ' 4 > a . t 24,G00 

7 4 0 P a n c n M l * 44.000 * * 4 • » 44.000 

tMUmCaOKlloK *jn. ». 1I.«0S 4 4 ' I . > 11.00! 

ORAHO TOTAL ' > M3J«5 4 ,4 « 1Z.tlS a ' $ , 2tS.t90 

ZOISBudgel 

.•. -. - . . . ' I - - - : . , ' :•.•.. LEVVANALYSIS T .'• ' , . 

1 
Estim9led2014EAV. ^* '»96.12«,»« 

2 
Autttonzed TsK Ralo Cap: ;.f;J.vv.i'iiam 

3 
Estrrmetl 2014 Levy. »243,70S 

4 
Eitimand Tax Rale to Geiierala 2014 Lswr(EAV<Ea 2014 

Levy • Eat Tax Raw) 0 2 4 % 

2015 BUDGET & SERVICES - SIGNATURE PAGE 
SSA n a NofthcerXer 

Budget&S«(vicesPerv>l January 1. ZOISto December 31 201S 

The Services were approved by the SSA Commission. 
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Economic Disclosure Statement and Affidavit 



CITY OF CHICAGO 
ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT and AFFIDAVIT 

Related to Contraet/Aitiendment/Solicitation 
EDS #59065 

SECTION I - GENERAL INFORMATION 

A. Legal name of the Disclosing Piarty submitting the EDS: 

N o r t h c e n t z e r Chamber of^ Commerce 

Enter d/b/a if applicable: 

The Disclosing Party submitting this EDS Is;: 

t h e A p j ) l i c a n t 

B. Business address ofthe Disclosing Party: 

4054 N Lincoln Aye 
Northcenter Chamber of Commerce 
Chicago, I L 60618 
United States 

C. Telephone: 

7 7 3 - 5 2 5 - 3 6 0 9 

Fax: 

Email: 

Garrett®Northcenterchamber.com 

D. Name of contact person: 

M r . G a r r e t t P F i t z G e r a l d 
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E. Federal Employer Identification No. (if you have one): 

F. Brief description of contract, transaction or other undertaking (referred to below as 
the "Matter") to which this EDS pertains: 

TO ALLOW THE NORTHCENTER CHAMBER OF COMMERCE TO ENTER INTO A 
SERVICE PROVIDER AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OP- CHICAGO IN ORDER 
TO PROVIDE SPECIAL SERVICES WITHIN SSA #38. 

Which. City agency or department is requesting this EDS? 

DEPT OF PLANNING AND DEVELOPMElSfT 

Specification Number 

Contract (PO) Number 

Revision Number 

Release Number 

User Department Project Number 

SECTION II - DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP INTERESTS 

A. NATURE OF THE DISCLOSING PARTY 

1. Indicate the nature of the Disclosing Party: 

N o t - f o r - p r o f i t c o r p o r a t i o n 

Is the Disclosing Party also a 501(c)(3) organization? 

No 

Is the Disclosing Party Incorporated or organized in the State of Illinois? 

Yes 

B. DISCLOSING PARTY IS A LEGAL ENTITY: 

2 -



1.a.1 Does the Disclosing Party have any directors? 

Yes 

1.a.3 List below the full names and titles of all executive officers and all directors, 
if any, of the entity. Do not include any directors who have no power to select the 
entity's officers. 

O f f i c e r / D i r e c t o r : Mr. Garrett FitzGerald 

T i t l e : Executive Direct o r 

Rolls: Both 

O f f i c e r / D i r e c t o r : Mr. Michael Kane Sir 

T i t l e : President 

Role: Both 

O f f i c e r / D i r e c t o r : Mr. Simon Stein 

T i t l e : Treasurer 

Role: Both 

Officer/Director:; Mr.. Ric.o T a l l u d 

T i t l e : D i r e c t o r 

Role: Director 

o f f i c e r / D i r e c t o r : Mri Ben Kennedy 

T i t l e : D i r e c t o r 

Role: D i r e c t o r 

O f f i c e r / D i r e c t o r : Ms. Donna Shultz 

T i t l e : D i r e c t o r 

Role: Director 

O f f i c e r / D i r e c t o r : M.S.. Maribel Selva 

T i t l e : D i r e c t o r 

Role: Director 

O f f i c e r / D i r e c t o r : Mr. Tony Gu i l l e n 

T i t l e : Vice President 

Role: Both 

o f f i c e r / D i r e c t o r : Mrs. Hope W h i t f i e l d 

T i t l e : D i r e c t o r 
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Role: Director 

O f f i c e r / D i r e c t o r : Mr. Joseph Wilcox 

T i t l e : Secretary 

Role: Both 

O f f i c e r / D i r e c t o r : Mr. Robert Keleghan' 

T i t l e : D i rector 

Role: Director 

Of f icer/Direct;or: Mr', Ron Lairiz 

T i t l e : D i r e c t o r 

Role: mre'ator 

officer/Director: Mr. Tom Fencl 

T i t l e : Director 

Role: D i r e c t o r 

Officer/Director: Ms. Elizabeth .Pfeifer 

T i t l e : D i r e c t o r 

Role: DirectLor 

1.a.5 Are there any members ofthe nori-for-profit Disclosing Party which are legal 
entities? 

No 

SECTION III -- BUSINESS RELATIONSHIPS WITH CITY ELECTED 
OFFICIALS 

Has the Disclosing Party had a "business relationship," as defined in Chapter 2-156 
of the Municipal Code, with any City elected official in the 12 months before the date 
this EDS is signed? 

No 

SECTION IV - DISCLOSURE OF SUBCONTRACTORS AND OTHER 
RETAINED PARTIES 

The Disclosing Party must disclose the name and business address of each 
subcontractor, attorney, lobbyist, accountant, consultant and any other person or 
entity whom the Disclosing Party has retained or expects to retain in connection 
with the Matter, as well as the nature ofthe relationship, and the total amount of the 



fees paid or estimated to be paid. The Disclosing Party is not required to disclose 
employees who are paid solely through the Disclosing Party's regular payroll. 

"Lobbyist" means any person or entity who undertakes to influence any legislative or 
administrative action on behalf of any person or entity other than: (1) a not-for-profit 
entity, on an unpaid basis, or (2) himself. "Lobbyist" also means any person or 
entity any part of whose duties as an employee of another includes undertaking to 
influence any legislative or administrative .action. 

If the Disclosing Party is uncertain whether a disclosure is required under this 
Section, the Disclosing Party must either ask the City whether disclosure is required 
or hnake the disclosure^ 

1. Has the Disclosing Party retained any legal entities in connection with the Matter? 

Yes 

2. List below the names of all legal entitles which are^etained parties. 

Name: Schanmier Landscape 

Anticipated/ Retained 
Retained: 

Business Address: 4926 N. Troy 
Chicago, IL 60625 United Staites 

Relationship: Subcontractor. - non MWDBE 

Fees $2,700.00 
($$ or % ) : 

Estimated/Paid: Estimated 

Name: Annette Held Landscape Design 

Anticipated/ Retained 
Retained: 

Business Address: 3731 N. Monticello 
Chicago, IL 60618 United States 

Relationship: Subcontractor - non MWDBE 

Fees $34,000.00 
($$ or % ) : 

Estimated/Paid: Estimated 

Name: Upchurch & Associates 

A n t i c i p a t e d / Retained 
Retained: 
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Business Address: 3725 N. Western Ave. 
Chicago, IL 60618 United States 

Relationship: Subcontractor - MWDBE 

Fees 
($$ or % ) : 

$5,000.00 

Estimated/Paid: Estimated 

Name: I l l i n o i s Municipal Services 

Anticipated/ 
Retained: 

Retained 

Business Address: 1624 N. Kedzie Avie. 
Chicago, IL, 6064-7 United States 

Relationship: Subcontractor - non MWDBE 

Fees 
($$ or % ) : 

$60,000.00 

Eatimated/Paid: Estimated 

Name; Cleanstreet 

Anticipated/ 
Retained: 

Retainisd 

Business Address: 3:501 W, Fillmore St. 
Chicago, IL 60624 United States 

Relationship: Subcontractor - MWDBE 

Fees 
($$ or % ) : 

$24,000.00 

Estimated/Paid: Estimated 

Name: E i l t s & Associates, Inc. 

Anti c i p a t e d / 
Retained: 

Retained 

Business Address: 3711 N> Rav.enswood, #105 
Chicago, IL. 60613 United States 

Relationship: Accountant 
Subcontractor - non MWDBE 

Fees 
($$ or % ) : 

$2,500.00 

Estimated/Paid: Estimated 

3. Has the Disclosing Party retained any persons in connection with the Matter? 



No 

SECTION V - CERTIFICATIONS 

A. COURT-ORDERED CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE 

Under Municipal Code Section 2-92-415. substantial owners of business entities that 
contract with the City must remain in compliance with their child support obligations 
throughout the contract's term. 

Has any person who directly or indirectly owns 10% or more of the Disclosing Party 
been declared in arrearage of any child support obligations by any Illinois court of 
competent jurisdiction? 

Not applicable because no person d i r e c t l y or i n d i r e c t l y owns 
10% or more of the Disclosing Party 

B. FURTHER CERTIFICATIONS 

1. Pursuant to Municipal Code Chapter 1T23. Article I ("Article r')(which the Applicant 
should consult for defined terms (e.g., "doing business") and legal requirements), if 
the Disclosing Party submitting this EDS is the Applicant and is doing business with 
the City, then the Disclosing Party certifies as follows: 

I. neither the Applicant nor any controlling person is currently indicted or charged 
with, or has admitted guilt of, or has ever been convicted of, or placed under 
supervision for, any criminal offense involving actual, attempted, or conspiracy 
to commit bribery, theft, fraud, forgery, perjury, dishonesty or deceit against an 
officer or employee of the City or any sister agency; and 

ii. the Applicant understands and acknowledges that compliance with Article I is a 
continuing requirement for doing business with the City. 

NOTE: If Article I applies to the Applicant, the permanent compliance timeframe in 
Article I supersedes sonie five-year compliance timeframes in certifications 2 and 3 
below. 

I c e r t i f y the above t o be true 

2. The Disclosing Party and, if the Disclosing Party is a legal entity, all of those 
persons or entities identified in Section II.B.l. of this EDS: 

a. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 
ineligible or voluntarily excluded from any transactions by any federal, state or 
local unit of government; 

b. have not, within a five-year period preceding the date of this EDS, been 
convicted of a criminal offense, adjudged guilty, or had a civil judgment 



rendered against them in connection with: obtaining, attempting to obtain, 
or performing a public (federal, state or local) transaction or contract under 
a public transaction; a violation of federal or state antitrust statutes; fraud; 
embezzlement; theft; forgery; bribery; falsification or destruction of records; 
making false statements; or receiving stolen property; 

c. are not presently indicted for, or criminally or civilly charged by, a governmental 
entity (federal, state or local) with committing any of the offenses set forth in 
clause B.2.b. of this Section V; 

d. have not, within a five-year period preceding the date of this EDS, had one or 
more public transactions (federal, state or local) terminated for cause or default; 
and 

e. have not, within a five-year period preceding the date of this; EDS, been 
convicted, adjudged guilty, br fouhd liiable in ai civil proceeding, or in any criminal 
or civil action, including actions concerning environmental violations. Instituted 
by the City or by the federal government, iany state, or any other unit of local 
government. 

I c e r t i f y the above t o be true 

3. Neither the Disclosing Party, nor any Contractor; nor any Affiliated Entity of either 
the Disclosing Party or any Contractor nor any Agents: have, during the five years 
before the date this EDS is signed, or, vyith respect to a Gontractor. an Affiliated 
Entity, or an Affiliated Entity of a Gontractor during the five years before the date of 
such Contractor's or Affiliated Entity's contract or engagemerit In connection with the 
Matter: 

a. bribed or attempted to bribe, or been convicted Or adjudged guilty of bribery or 
attempting to bribe, a public officer or employee ofthe City, the State of Illinois, 
or any agency of the federal government of of any state or local government in 
the United States of America, in that officer's or employee's official capacity; 

b. agreed or colluded with other bidders or prospective bidders, or been a party 
to any such agreement, or been convicted or adjudged guilty of agreement 
or collusion among bidders or prospective bidders, in restraint of freedom of 
competition by agreemient to bid a fixed price or othenwise; or 

c. made an admission of such conduct described in a. or b: above that is a matter 
of record, but have not been prosecuted for such conduct; or 

d. violated the provisions of Municipal Code Section 2-92-610 (Living Wage 
Ordinance). 

I c e r t i f y the above t o be true 

4. Neither the Disclosing Party, Affiliated Entity or Contractor, or any of their 
employees, officials, agents or partners, is barred from contracting with any unit of 
state or local government as a result of engaging in or being convicted of 
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• bid-rigging in violation of 720 ILCS 5/33E-3: 
• bid-rotating in violation of 720 ILCS 5/33E-4: or 
• any similar offense of any state or of the United States of America that contains 

the same elements as the offense of bid-rigging or bid-rotating. 

I c e r t i f y the above to be true 

5. Neither the Disclosing Party nor any Affiliated Entity is listed on any of the 
following lists maintained by the Office of Foreign Assets Control of the U.S. 
Department of the Treasury or the Bureau of Industry and Security of the U.S. 
Department of Commerce or their successors: the Specially Designated Nationals 
List, the Denied Persons List, the Unverified. Listv the Entity List and the Debarred 
List. 

I c e r t i f y the above to be true 

6. The Disclosing Party understands and shall comply with the applicable 
requirements of Chapters^ 2-55 (Legislative Inspector General). Chapter 2-56 
(Inspector General) and Chapter 2-156 (Governmental Ethics) of the Municipal 
Code. 

I c e r t i f y the above to be true 

7. To the best ofthe Disclosing Party's knowledge after reasonable inquiry, the 
following is a complete list of all current employees bf the Disclosing Party who were, 
at any time during the 12-month period preceding the execution date of this EDS, an 
employee, or elected or appointed official, ofthe City of Chicago. 

None 

8. To the best of the Disclosing Party's knowledge after reasonable inquiry, the 
following is a complete list of all gifts that the Disclosing Party has given or caused 
to be given, at any time during the 12-month period preceding the execution date 
of this EDS, to an employee, or elected or appointed official, of the; City of Chicago. 
For purposes of this statement, a "gift" does not include: (I) anything made generally 
available to City employees or to the general public, or (ii) food or drink provided 
in the course of official City business and having a retail value of less than $20 per 
recipient. 

None 

C. CERTIFICATION OF STATUS AS FINANCIAL INSTITUTION 

The Disclosing Party certifies that, as defined in Section 2-32-455(b) ofthe Municipal 
.Code, the Disclosing Party 
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i s not a " f i n a n c i a l i n s t i t u t i o n " 

D. CERTIFICATION REGARDING INTEREST IN CITY BUSINESS 

Any words br terms that are defined in Chapter 2-156 of the Municipal Code have 
the same meanings when used in this Part D. 

1. In accordance with Section 2-156^110 of the; Municipal Code: Does any official or 
employee ofthe City have a financial interest in his pr her own name or in the name 
of any other person or entity in the Matter? 

No 

E. CERTIFICATION REGARDING SLAVERY ERA BUSINESS 

If the Disclosing Party cannot make this verification, the Disclosing Party must 
disclose all required information in the space provided below or in an attachment in 
the "Additional Info" tab. Failure to comply with these disclosure requirements may 
make any contract entered into with the City in connection with the Matter voidable 
by the City. 

The Disclosing Party verifies that the Disclosing Party has searched any and all 
records of the Disclosing Party and any and all predecessor entities regarding 
records of investments or profits from slavery or slaveholder InsiJrance policies 
during the slavery era (including insurance policies issued to slaveholders that 
provided coverage for damage to or injury or death of their slaves), and the 
Disclosing Party has found no such records. 

I can make the above v e r i f i c a t i o n 

SECTION VI -- CERTIFICATIONS FOR FEDERALLY-FUNDED 
MATTERS 

Is the Matter federally funded? For the purposes of this Section VI, tax credits 
allocated by the City and proceeds of debt obligations ofthe City are not federal 
funding. 

No 

SECTION Vll ACKNOWLEDGMENTS, CONTRACT 
INCORPORATION, COMPLIANCE, PENALTIES, DISCLOSURE 

The Disclosing Party understands and agrees that: 
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A. The certifications, disclosures, and acknowledgments contained in this EDS 
will become part of any contract or other agreement between the Applicant arid 
the City in connection with the Matter, whether procurement. City assistance, or 
other City action, and are material inducements to the City's execution of any 
contract or taking other action with respect to the Matter. The Disclosing Party 
understands that it must comply with all statutes, ordinances, and regulations on 
which this EDS is based. 

B. The City's Governmental Ethics and Campaign Financing Ordinances, 
Chapters 2-156 and 2=164 of the Municipal Code, impose certain duties 
and obligations on person's br entities seeking City .contracts, work, 
business, or transactions. A training prbgram is available on line at 
www.cityofchicago.brq/dty/eh/depts/ethics.htmL and may also be obtained from 
the City's Board of Ethics, 740 N, Sedgwick St., Suiie 500, Chicago, IL 60610, 
(312) 744-9660. The Disclosing Party must comply fully with the applicable 
ordinances. 

I a c k n o w l e d g e a n d c o n s e n t t o t h e above 

The Disclosing Party understands and agree.s that: 

C. If the City determines that any information provided in this EDS is false, 
incomplete or inaccurate, any contract or other agreement ih connection with 
which it is submitted may be rescinded or be void or voidable, and the City may 
pursue any remedies under the contract or agreement (if not rescinded or void), 
at law, or in equity, including teririinating the Disclosing Party's participation in 
the Matter and/or declining to allow the Disclosing Party to participate in other 
transactions with the City. Remedies at law for a false staterhent of material fact 
may include incarceration and an award to the City of tî eble damages. 

D. it is the City's policy to make this document available to the public on its Internet 
site and/or upon request. Some or all of the information provided on this EDS 
and any attachments to this EDS may be made available to the public on the 
Internet, in response to a Freedom of Information Act request, or otherwise. By 
completing and signing this EDS, the Disclosing Party waives and releases any 
possible rights or claims which it may have against the City in connection with 
the public release of information contained in this EDS and also authorizes the 
City to verify the accuracy of any information submitted in this EDS. 

E. The information provided in this EDS must be kept current In the event of 
changes, the Disclosing Party must supplement this EDS up to the time the 
City takes action on the Matter. If the Matter is a contract being handled by the 
City's Department of Procurement Services, the Disclosing Party must update 
this EDS as the contract requires. NOTE: With respect to Matters subject 
to Article I of Chapter 1-23 of the Municipal Code (imposing PERMANENT 
INELIGIBILITY for certain specified offenses), the information provided herein 
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regarding eligibility must be kept current for a longer period, as required by 
Chapter 1-23 and Section 2-154-020 of the Municipal Code. 

I acknowledge and consent to the above 

The Disclosing Party represents and warrants that: 

F.l. The Disclosing Party is not delinquent in the payment of any tax administered 
by the Illinois Department of Revenue, nor are the Disclosing Party or its Affiliated 
Entities delinquent ih paying any fine, fee, tax or other chargie owed to the City. This 
includes, but is hot limited to, all water charges, sewer charges, license fees, parking 
tickets, property taxes or sales taxes. 

I c e r t i f y the above t o be true 

F.2 If the Disclosing Party is the Applicant, the Disclosing Party and its Affiliated 
Entities will not use, nor permit their subcontractors to use, any facility listed by the 
U.S. E.P.A. on the federal Excluded Parties List Svstem ("EPLS") maintained by the 
U.S. General Services Administration. 

I c e r t i f y the above t o be true 

F.3 If the Disclosing Party is the Applicant, the Disclosing Party will obtain 
from any contractors/subcontractors hired or to be hired in connection with 
the Matter certifications equal in form and substance to those in F.l. and F.2. 
above and will not, without the prior written consent of the City, use any such 
contractor/subcontractor that does not provide, such certifications or that the 
Disclosing Party has reason to believe has not provided or cannot provide truthful 
certifications. 

I c e r t i f y the above t o be true 

FAMILIAL RELATIONSHIPS WITH ELECTED CITY OFFICIALS AND 
DEPARTMENT HEADS 

This question is to be completed only by (a) the Applicant, and (b) any legal entity 
which has a direct ownership interest in the Applicant exceeding 7.5 percent. It is not 
to be completed by any legal entity which has only an indirect ownership interest in 
the Applicant. 

Under Municipal Code Section 2-154-015, the Disclosing Party must disclose 
whether such Disclosing Party or any "Applicable Party" or any Spouse or Domestic 
Partner thereof currently has a "familial relationship" with any elected city official or 
department head. A "familial relationship" exists if, as of the date this EDS is signed, 
the Disclosing Party or any "Applicable Party" or any Spouse or Domestic Partner 
thereof is related to the mayor, any alderman, the city clerk, the city treasurer or 
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any city department head as spouse or domestic partner or as any of the following, 
whether by blood or adoption: parent, child, brother or sister, aunt or uncle, niece 
or nephew, grandparent, grandchild, father-in-law, mother-in-law, son-in-law, 
daughter-in-law, stepfather or stepmother, stepson or stepdaughter, stepbrother or 
stepsister or half-brother or half-sister. 

"Applicable Party" means (1) all corporate officers of the Disclosing Party, if 
the Disclosing Party is a corporation; all partners of the Disclosing Party, if the 
Disclosing Party is a general partnership; all general partners and limited partners 
ofthe Disclosing Party, if the Disclosing Party is a limited partnership;̂  all managers, 
managing members andmembe'rs of the Disclpsihg Party, if the Disclosing Party is a 
limited liability cbrhpahy; (2) all principal officers of the Disclosihg Party; and (3) any 
person having more than a 7.5 percent ownership interest.in the Disclosing Party. 
"Principal officers" means the president, chief operating officer, executive director, 
chief financial officer, treasurer or secretary-of a legal, entity or any person exercising 
similar authority. 

Does the Disclosing Party or any "Applicable Party" or any Spouse or Domestic 
Partner thereof currently have a "familial relationship" with an elected city official or 
department head? 

No 

ADDITIONAL INFO 

Please add any additional explanatory information here. If explanation is longer than 
1000 characters, you may add. an attachment below. Please note that your EDS, 
including ail attachments, becomes available for public viewing upon contract award. 
Your attachments will be viewable "as is" without manual redaction by the City. You 
are responsible for redacting any non-public information from your documents before 
uploading. 

none 

List of vendor attachments uploaded by City staff 

None. 

List of attachments uploaded by vendor 

None . 

CERTIFICATION 

Under penalty of perjury, the person signing below: (1) warrants that he/she is 
authorized to execute this EDS on behalf of the Disclosing Party, and (2) warrants 
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that all certifications and statements contained in this EDS are true, accurate and 
complete as of the date furnished to the City. 

/s/11/17/2014 
Mr. Garrett P FitzGerald 
Executive Director 
Northcenter Chamber of Commerce 

This is a printed copy of the Economic Disclosure Statement, the original of which 
is filed electronically with the City of Chicago. Any alterations must be made 
electronically, alterations on this printed copy are void and of no effect. 
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CERTIFICATE OF FILING FOR 

CITY OF CHICAGO ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT 

Date of This Filing-11/17/2014 01:11 ?M 
Original Filing Date:08/13/2014 04:04 PM 

Title:Executive Director 

EDS Number: 59065 
Certificate Printed on: 11/17/2014 

Disclosihg Party: Northcenter Chamber of 
Commerce 
Filed by: Mr. Garrett P FitzGerald 

Matter: TO ALLOW THE NORTHCENTER 
CHAMBER OF COMMERCE TO 
ENTER INTO A SERVICE PROVIDER 
AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF 
CHICAGO IN ORDER TO PROVIDE 
SPECIAL SERVICES WITHIN SSA #38. 
Applicant: Northcenter Chamber of Commerce 
Specification #: 
Contract #: 

The Economic Disclosure Statement referenced above has been electronically filed with 
the City. Please provide a copy of this Certificate of Filing to your city contact With other 
required documents pertaining to the Matter. For additional guidance as to when to provide this 
Certificate and other required documents, please follow instructions provided to you about the 
Matter or consult with your City contact. 

A copy ofthe EDS may be viewed and printed by visiting 
https://webappsl.cityofchicago.org/EDSWeb and entering the EDS number into the EDS 
Search. Prior to contract award, the filing is accessible online only to the disclosing party and 
the City, but is still subject to the Illinois Freedom of Information Act. The filing is visible 
online to the public after contract award. 



CERTIFICATE OF FILING FOR 

CITY OF CHICAGO ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT 

EDS Number: 59065 Date of This Filing: 11/17/2014 01:11 PM 
Certificate Printed on: 11/17/2014 Original Filing Date:08/13/2014 04:04 PM 

Disclosing Party: Northcenter Chamber of Title:Executive Director 
Commerce 
Filed by: Mr. Garrett P FitzGerald 

Matter: TO ALLOW THE NORTHCENTER 
CHAMBER OF COMMERCE TO 
ENTER INTO A SERVICE PROVIDER 
AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF 
CHICAGO IN ORDER TO PROVIDE 
SPECL\L SERVICES WITHIN SSA #38. 
Applicant: Northcenter Chainber of Commerce 
Specification #: 
Contract #: 

The Economic Disclosure Statement referenced above has been electronically filed with 
tlie City. Please provide a copy of this Certificate of Filing to your city contact with other 
required documents pertaining to the Matter. For additional guidance as to when to provide this 
Certificate and other required documents, please follow instructions provided to you about the 
Matter or consult with your City contact. 

A. copy ofthe EDS may be viewed and printed by visiting 
https://webappsI.cityofchicago.org/EDSWeb and entering the EDS number into the EDS 
Search. Prior to contract award, the filing is accessible online only to tlie disclosing party and 
the City, but is still subject to the Illinois Freedom of Information Act The filing is visible 
online to the public after contract award. 



EXHIBIT 3 

CONTRACTOR INSURANCE PROVISIONS 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
Special Ser>'ices Area 

Contractor must provide and maintain at Contractor's own expense, during the term of the 
Agreement and time period following expiration i f Contractor is required to return and 
perform any of the Services or Additional Services under this Agreement, the insurance 
coverage and requirements specified below, insuring all operations related to the 
Agreement. 

A. INSURANCE TO BE PROVIDED 

1) Workers Compensation and Employers Liability 

Workers Compensation Insurance, as prescribed by applicable law, covering all 
employees who are to provide a service under this Agreement and Employers Liability 
coverage with limits of not less tlian $100.000 each accident, illness or disease. 

2) Commercial General Liability (Primary and Umbrella) 

Commercial General Liability Insurance or equivalent with limits of not less than 
$1.000.000 per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage 
liability. Coverages must include the following: All premises and operations, 
products/completed operations, separation of insureds, defense and contractual liability 
(not to include Endorsement CG 21 39 or equivalent). The City of Chicago is to be 
named as an additional insured on a primary, non-contributory basis for any liability 
arising directly or indirectly from the work or Services. 

3) Automobile Liability (Primary and Umbrella) 

When any motor vehicles (owned, non-owned and hired) are used in coimection with 
Services to be performed. Contractor must provide Automobile Liability Insurance with 
limits of not less than $500.000 per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage. 
The City of Chicago is to be named as an additional insured on a primary, non-
contributory basis. 

4) Professional Liability 



When any professional consultants (e.g.; CPA's, Attorney, Architects, Engineers) 
perform work in connection with this Agreement, Professional Liability Insurance 
covering acts, errors, or omissions must be maintained with limits of not less than 
$500,000. When policies are renewed or replaced, the policy retroactive date must 
coincide with, or precede start of work on the Contract. A claims-made policy which is 
not renewed or replaced must have an extended reporting period of two (2) years. 

5) Crime 

The Contractor is responsible for all persons handling funds under this Agreement, 
against loss by dishonesty, robbery, burglary, theft, destruction or disappearance, computer 
fraud, credit card forgery and other related crime risks. 

B. SECURITY FIRMS 

If the Contractor enters into a subcontract with a Security Firm, such Security Firm must be 
certified by State of Illinois, and the Security Firm's employees must be registered and certified 
by the State. Contractor must ensure and require any Security Firm subcontractor to comply with 
the Risk Management Division approved Security Firm Insurance Provision set forth in Exhibit 4 
of this Agreement, attached hereto and incorporated by references as though fully set forth 
herein. 

C. ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS 

Contractor must furnish the City of Chicago, Department of Plarming and Development (DPD), 
City Hall, Room 1006, 121 North LaSalle Street 60602, original Certificates of Insurance, or 
such similar evidence, to be in force on the date of this Agreement, and Renewal Certificates of 
Insurance, or such similar evidence, i f the coverages have an expiration or renewal date 
occurring during the term of this Agreement. Contractor must submit evidence of insurance on 
the City of Chicago Insurance Certificate Form (copy attached as Exhibit-) or equivalent prior to 
execution of this Agreement. The receipt of any certificate does not constitute agreement by the 
City that the insurance requirements in the Agreement have been fully met or that the insurance 
policies indicated on the certificate are in compliance with all Agreement requirements. The 
failure of the City to obtain certificates or other insurance evidence from Contractor is not a 
waiver by the City of any requirements for the Contractor to obtain and maintain the specified 
coverages. Contractor must advise all insurers of the Agreement provisions regarding insurance. 
Non-conforming insurance does not relieve Contractor of the obligation to provide insurance as 
specified in this Agreement. Nonfulfillment of the insurance conditions may constitute a 
violation of the Agreement, and the City retains the right to suspend this Agreement until proper 
evidence of insurance is provided, or the Agreement may be terminated. 



The Contractor must provide for 60 days prior written notice to be given lo the City in the event 
coverage is substantially changed, canceled or non-renewed. 

Any deductibles or self-insured retentions on referenced insurance coverages must be borne by 
Contractor. 
Contractor hereby waives and agrees to require their insurers to waive their rights of subrogation 
against the City of Chicago, its employees, elected officials, agents or representatives. 

The coverages and limits furnished by Contractor in no way limit the Contractor's liabilities and 
responsibilities specified within the Agreement or by law. 

Any insurance or self-insurance programs maintained by the City of Chicago do not contribute 
with insurance provided by Contractor under this Agreement. 

The required insurance to be carried is not limited by any limitations expressed in the 
indemnification language in this Agreement or any limitation placed on the indemnity in this 
Agreement given as a matter of law. 

I f Contractor is a joint venture or limited liability company, the insurance policies must name the 
joint venture or limited liability company as a named insured. 

Contractor must require all Subcontractors to provide the insurance required in this Agreement, 
or Contractor may provide the coverages for Subcontractors. All Subcontractors are subject to 
the same insurance requirements of Contractor unless otherwise specified in this Agreement. 

I f Contractor or Subcontractor desire additional coverages, the party desiring the additional 
coverages is responsible for the acquisition and cost. 

Notwithstanding any provision in the Contract to the contrary, the City of Chicago Risk 
Management Department maintains the right to modify, delete, alter or change these 
requirements. 



EXHIBIT 4 

SECURITY FIRM INSURANCE PROVISIONS 

CONTRACT INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

The Security Firm must provide and maintain at Security Firm's own expense, until Contract 
completion and during the time period following expiration i f Security Firm is required to return 
and perform any additional work, the insurance coverages and requirements specified below, 
insuring all operations related to the Contract. 

A. INSURANCE TO BE PROVIDED 

1) Workers Compensation and Employers Liability 

Workers Compensation Insurance, as prescribed by applicable law covering all 
employees who are to provide work under this Contract and Employers Liability 
coverage with limits of not less than $500.000 each accident, illness or disease. 

2) Commercial General Liability (Primary and Umbrella) 

Commercial General Liability Insurance or equivalent wdth limits of not less than 
$1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury, and property damage 
liability. Coverages must include the following: All premises and operations, 
products/completed operations, separation of insureds, defense, and contractual liability 
(not to include Endorsement CG 21 39 or equivalent but coverage must include 
Endorsement CG 22 74). The SSAC, City of Chicago and Contractor are to be named as 
an additional insureds on a primary, non-contributory basis for any liability arising 
directly or indirectly from the work. 

3) Automobile Liability (Primary and Umbrella) 

When any motor vehicles (owned, non-owned and hired) are used in connection with 
work to be performed, the Security Firm must provide Automobile Liability Insurance 
with limits of not less than $ 1.000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and property 
damage. The SSAC, City of Chicago and Contractor are to be named as an additional 
insureds on a primary, non-contributory basis. 

4) Professional Liability 



Professional Liability Insurance covering acts, errors, or omissions must be maintained by the 
Security Firm with limits of not less than $1,000,000. When policies are renewed or replaced, 
the policy retroactive date must coincide with, or precede, start of work on the Contract. A 
claims-made policy which is not renewed or replaced must have an extended reporting period of 
two (2) years. 

B. ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS 

The Security Firm must furnish the Contractor and City of Chicago, Department of Planning and 
Development (DPD), City Hall, Room 1006, 121 North LaSalle Street 60602, original 
Certificates of Insurance, or such similar evidence, to be in force on the date of this Contract, and 
Renewal Certificates of Insurance, or such similar evidence, if the coverages have an expiration 
or renewal date occurring during the term of this Contract. The receipt of any certificate does 
not constitute agreement by the Contractor that the insurance requirements in the Contract have 
been fiilly met or that the insurance policies indicated on the certificate are in compliance with 
all Contract requirements. The failure of the Contractor to obtain certificates or other insurance 
evidence from Security Firm is not a waiver by the Contractor of any requirements for the 
Security Firm to obtain and maintain the specified coverages. The Security Firm shall advise all 
insurers of the Contract provisions regarding insurance. Non-conforming insurance does not 
relieve Security Firm of the obligation to provide insurance as specified herein. Nonfiilfillment 
of the insurance conditions may constitute a violation of the Contract, and the Contractor retains 
the right to stop work imtil proper evidence of insurance is provided, or the Contract may be 
terminated. 

The Security Firm must provide for 60 days prior written notice to be given to the Contractor in 
the event coverage is substantially changed, canceled, or non-renewed. 
Any deductibles or self insured retentions on referenced insurance coverages must be borne by 
Security Firm. 

The Security Firm hereby waives and agrees to require their insurers to waive their rights of 
subrogation against the Contractor and the City of Chicago, its employees, elected officials, 
agents, or representatives. 

The coverages and limits fumished by Security Firm in no way limit the Security Firm's 
liabilities and responsibilities specified within the Contract or by law. 

Any insurance or self insurance programs maintained by the Contractor do not contribute with 
insurance provided by the Security Firm under the Contract. 

The required insurance to be carried is not limited by any limitations expressed in the 
indemnification language in this Contract or any limitation placed on the indemnity in this 
Contract given as a matter of law. 



If Security Firm is a joint venture or limited liability company, the insurance policies must name 
the joint venture or limited liability company as a named insured. 

The Security Firm must require all subcontractors to provide the insurance required herein, or 
Security Firm may provide the coverages for subcontractors. All subcontractors are subject to 
the same insurance requirements of Security Firm unless otherwise specified in this Contract. 

If Security Firm or subcontractor desires additional coverages, the party desiring the additional 
coverages is responsible for the acquisition and cost. 

Notwithstanding any provision in the Contract to the contrary, the City of Chicago Risk 
Management Department maintains the right to modify, delete, alter or change these 
requirements. 



EXHIBIT 5 

Prevailing Wages 



Cook County Prevailing Wage for November 2014 littp://ww\v.illinois.gov/ido!/Laws-Riiles/CONMED/Ratcs/2014/nov.. 

Cook County Prevailing Wage for November 2014 

(See explanation of column headings at bottom oTwages) 

Trade Name RG TYP C Base FRMAN M-F>8 OSA OSH H/W Pensn Vac Trng 

========= == = = = : = = = = = = : = = — -= == == = = = = = =-, ==== === = = 
ASBESTOS 

.;• •• .:: 
38 .200 38 . 700 1 . 5 1 . 5 2 . 0 13 .78 10 .12 0 .000 0 . 500 

ASBESTOS ABT-MEC BLD 35 .100 37 .600 1 . 5 1 . 5 2 .0 11 .17 10 .76 0 .000 0 .720 
BOILERMAKER BLD 44 .240 48 .220 2 . 0 2 . 0 2 .0 6. 970 17 .54 0 .000 0 .350 
BRICK MASON BLD 42 .580 46 .840 1 . 5 1 . 5 2 .0 9. 850 13 . 60 0 .000 1 .030 
CARPENTER ALL 43 . 350 45 .350 1 . 5 1 .5 2 .0 13 .29 13 .75 0 .000 0 .630 
CEMENT MASON ALL 43 .100 45 . 100 2 .0 1 .5 2 .0 12 .70 13 .24 0 .000 0 .450 
CERAMIC TILE FNSHER BLD 35 .810 0 .000 1 .5 1 . 5 2 .0 10 .55 8.440 0 .000 0 .710 
COMM. ELECT. BLD 39 .000 41 .800 1 .5 1 .5 2 .0 8. 420 11 . 98 1 .100 0, , 700 
ELECTRIC PWR EQMT OP ALL 46 . 100 51 .100 1 . 5 1 .5 2 .0 10 .76 14 .87 0 .000 0, ,460 
ELECTRIC PWR GRNDMAN ALL 35 . 960 51 .100 1 .5 1 . 6 2 .0 8. 390 11 .60 0 .000 0, ,360 
ELECTRIC PWR LINEMAN ALL 46 . 100 51 .100 1 . 5 1 .5 2 .0 10 .76 14 .87 0 .000 0, ,460 
ELECTRICIAN ALL 44 .000 47 . 000 1 . 5 1 .5 2 .0 13 .33 14 .77 0 .000 0 .750 
ELEVATOR CONSTRUCTOR BLD 49 . 900 56 .140 2 . 0 2 . 0 2 . 0 12 .73 13 .46 3 .990 0, . 600 
FENCE ERECTOR ALL 35 .840 37 . 840 1 . 5 1 .5 2 .0 13 .01 11 .51 0 .000 0, ,300 
GLAZIER BLD 40 .000 41 .500 1 .5 2 .0 2 .0 12 .49 15 .99 0 .000 0, ,940 
HT/FROST INSULATOR BLD 48 .450 50 .950 1 . 5 1 .5 2 . 0 11 .47 12 .16 0 .000 0, .720 
IRON WORKER ALL 43 .000 45 .000 2 . 0 2 .0 2 .0 13 .45 20 . 65 0 .000 0, .350 
LABORER ALL 38 .000 38 .750 1 .5 1 .5 2 .0 13 .78 10 . 12 0 .000 0, ,500 
LATHER ALL 43, .350 45, .350 1 .5 1, .5 2 .0 13 .29 13 .75 0, ,000 0. , 630 
MACHINIST BLD 44, .350 46, .850 1 .5 1 .5 2 .0 6. 760 8.950 1, ,850 0. .000 
MARBLE FINISHERS ALL 31, .400 32, .970 1 .5 1 .5 2 .0 9. 850 13 .10 0 ,000 0. .600 
MARBLE MASON BLD 41, .780 45, ,960 1 .5 1, .5 2 .0 9. 850 13 .42 0, ,000 0. .760 
MATERIAL TESTER I ALL 28, .000 0, .000 1 .5 1, .5 2 .0 13 .78 10 .12 0, ,000 0, .500 
MATERIALS TESTER I I ALL 33, ,000 0. .000 1, .5 1, .5 2, .0 13 .78 10 .12 0. ,000 0. ,500 
MILLWRIGHT ALL 43. ,350 45. .350 1, .5 1, .5 2, .0 13 .29 13 .75 0. ,000 0. ,630 
OPERATING ENGINEER BLD 1 47. .100 51, . 100 2, .0 2, .0 2, .0 17 .10 11, .80 1. ,900 1, ,250 
OPERATING ENGINEER BLD 2 45. .800 51. .100 2, .0 2, ,0 2, .0 17 .10 11 .80 1. ,900 1. ,250 
OPERATING ENGINEER BLD 3 43. .250 51. .100 2, .0 2, .0 2, .0 17 .10 11 .80 1. ,900 1. ,250 
OPERATING ENGINEER BLD 4 41. ,500 51. ,100 2, .0 2. .0 2, .0 17 . 10 11, .80 1. , 900 1. 250 
OPERATING ENGINEER BLD 5 50. , 850 51. ,100 2, . 0 2. .0 2, .0 17 .10 11, .80 1. ,900 1. 250 
OPERATING ENGINEER BLD 6 48. , 100 51. ,100 2, .0 2. .0 2, .0 17 .10 11, .80 1. ,900 1. 250 
OPERATING ENGINEER BLD 7 50. , 100 51. , 100 2, . 0 2. .0 2, . 0 17 .10 11, .80 1. .900 1. 250 
OPERATING ENGINEER FLT 1 52. ,450 52, ,450 1, . 5 1. .5 2, .0 16 .60 11, .05 1. ,900 1. ,250 
OPERATING ENGINEER FLT 2 50. ,950 52. ,450 1, .5 1. .5 2, .0 16 .60 11, .05 1, .900 1. ,250 
OPERATING ENGINEER FLT 3 45. ,350 52. , 450 1, .5 1, .5 2, .0 16 .60 11, .05 1. .900 1, ,250 
OPERATING ENGINEER FLT 4 37. ,700 52. , 450 1, .5 1, .5 2, .0 16 .60 11, .05 1. .900 1. ,250 
OPERATING ENGINEER FLT 5 53. , 950 52. ,450 1, .5 1, .5 2, .0 16 .60 11, .05 1. .900 1. ,250 
OPERATING ENGINEER HWY 1 45. ,'300 49. , 300 1, .5 1, .5 2, .0 17 .10 11 ,80 1. .900 1. ,250 
OPERATING ENGINEER HWY 2 44. ,750 49. , 300 1. .5 1, .5 2, .0 17 .10 11, .80 1. .900 1. ,250 
OPERATING ENGINEER HWY 3 42. 700 49. .300 1, .5 1. ,5 2. .0 17 . 10 11. .80 1. ,900 1. 250 
OPERATING ENGINEER HWY 4 41. 300 49. . 300 1, .5 1. ,5 2. .0 17 . 10 11, .80 1. ,900 1. 250 
OPERATING ENGINEER HWY 5 40. 100 49. 300 1. .5 1. ,5 2, .0 17 .10 11. .80 1. ,900 1. 250 
OPERATING ENGINEER HWY 6 48. 300 49. 300 1. .5 1. ,5 2. .0 17 .10 11, .80 1. ,900 1. 250 
OPERATING ENGINEER HWY 7 46. 300 49. 300 1. .5 1. ,5 2, .0 17 .10 11, . 80 1, ,900 1. 250 
ORNAMNTL : IRON WORKER ALL 43. 900 46. 400 2. .0 2. 0 2. ,0 13 .36 17. ,24 0. 000 0. 650 
PAINTER ALL 40. 750 45. 500 1 . ,5 1. ,5 1. ,5 10 .75 11. .10 0. 000 0. 770 
PAINTER SIGNS BLD 33. 920 38. 090 1. , 5 1. 5 1. ,5 2.1 500 2.710 0. 000 0. 000 
PILEDRIVER ALL 43. 350 45. 350 1. , 5 1. 5 2, ,0 13 .29 13. ,75 0. 000 0. 630 
PIPEFITTER BLD 46. 000 49. 000 1. , 5 1. 5 2. ,0 9.1 300 15. ,85 0. 000 1. 780 
PLASTERER BLD 42. 250 44 . 790 1 . 5 1. 5 2. 0 11 .40 12. 19 0. 000 0. 650 
PLUMBER BLD 46. 650 48. 650 1. 5 1. 5 2. 0 13 .18 11. 46 0. 000 0. 880 
ROOFER BLD 39. 700 42. 700 1. 5 1. 5 2. 0 8.280 10. ,06 0. 000 0. 530 
SHEETMETAL WORKER BLD 41. 530 44 . 850 1. 5 1. 5 2. 0 10 .48 20. 06 0. 000 0. 690 
SIGN HANGER BLD 30. 210 30. 710 1 . 5 1 . 5 2 . 0 4 . 850 3.030 0. 000 0. 000 
SPRINKLER FITTER BLD 49. 200 51 . 200 1. 5 1 . 5 2 . 0 11 .25 9. 500 0. 000 0. 450 
STEEL ERECTOR ALL 42. 070 44 . 070 2. 0 2 . 0 n 0 13 .45 19. 59 0. 000 0. 350 
STONE MASON BLD 42. 580 46. 840 1. 5 1. 5 2 . 0 9. 850 13. 60 0. 000 1. 030 
SHRVEY WOnKER—> NOT IN EFFECT ALL 37.OOC 1 37. 750 1. 5 1. 5 2.0 12 :.97 9.930 0.000 0.500 
TERRAZZO FINISHER BLD 37. 040 0. 000 1 . 5 1 . 5 2 . 0 10 .55 10. 32 0. 000 0. 620 
TERRAZZO MASON BLD 40. 880 43. 880 1. 5 1 . 5 2 . 0 10 . 55 11. 63 0. 000 0. 820 
TILE MASON BLD 42. 840 46. 840 1 . 5 1 . 5 2 . 0 10, . 55 10. 42 0. 000 0, 920 

of 7 10/28/2014 11:20 AM 



Cook County Prevailing Wage for November 2014 http://www.illinois.gov/idol/Laws-Rules/CONMED/Rates/2014/nov.. 

TRAFFIC SAFETY WRKR HWY 32. .750 34 , , 350 1, . 5 1, . 5 2 .0 6. ,550 6.450 0. . 000 0, .500 
TRUCK DRIVER E ALL 1 33. ,850 34 , ,500 1, . 5 1 . 5 2, .0 8 . , 150 8 . 500 0. , 000 0, .150 
TRUCK DRIVER E ALL 2 34. , 100 34 , . 500 1, . 5 1, . 5 2, . 0 8 . .150 8 .500 0. ,000 0, . 150 
TRUCK DRIVER E ALL 3 34 . 300 34 . , 500 1. . 5 1 , . 5 2. , 0 8. ,150 8.500 0. ,000 0. .150 
TRUCK DRIVER E ALL 4 34. ,500 34 . , 500 1 , . 5 1, . 5 2. , 0 8. , 150 8.500 0. ,000 0. .150 
TRUCK DRIVER W ALL 1 32. ,550 33. , 100 1, . 5 1, . 5 2 , ,0 6. , 500 4.350 0. ,000 0, .000 
TRUCK DRIVER W ALL 2 32. ,700 33. ,100 1, . 5 1, . 5 2, .0 6. , 500 4 .350 0. ,000 0, .000 
TRUCK DRIVER w ALL 3 32. , 900 33. , 100 1, . 5 1. C 

. J 2, . 0 6. ,500 4.350 0. , 000 0, .000 
TRUCK DRIVER w ALL 4 33. 100 33. ,100 1. . 5 1, . 5 2. . 0 6. 500 4 .350 0. 000 0. ,000 
TUCKPOINTER BLD 42. ,800 43. , 800 1. . 5 1, . 5 2. , 0 8 . ,180 12. 66 0. 000 0. , 650 

Legend: P.G (Rogion) 
TYP (Trade Type - All,Highway,Building, Floacinq. O i l i Chip,River 5) 
C (Class) 
Base (Base Wage P.ate) 
FRMAN (Foreman Rate) 
K-F>8 (OT required for any hour greater than 8 worlied each d.Ty, Hon through F r i . 
OSA (Overtime (OT) i.s required for every hour worked on .Saturday) 
OSH (Overtime i s required for every hour worked on Sunday and Holidays) 
H/W (Health & Welfare Insurance) 
Pensn (Pension) 
Vac (Vacation) 
Trng (Training) 

Explanations 

COOK COUNTY 

The f o l l o w i n g l i s t i s considered as those days f o r which h o l i d a y r a t e s 
of wages f o r work performed apply: New Years Day, Memorial Day, 
Fourth o f J u l y , Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day and 
Veterans Day i n some c l a s s i f i c a t i o n s / c o u n t i e s . Generally, any o f 
these h o l i d a y s which f a l l on a Sunday i s c e l e b r a t e d on the f o l l o w i n g 
Monday. This then makes work performed on t h a t Monday payable at the 
a p p r o p r i a t e overtime r a t e f o r h o l i d a y pay. Common p r a c t i c e i n a given 
l o c a l may a l t e r c e r t a i n days o f c e l e b r a t i o n . I f i n doubt, please 
check w i t h IDOL. 

TRUCK DRIVERS (WEST) - That p a r t o f the county West of B a r r i n g t o n 
Road. 

EXPLANATION OF CLASSES 

ASBESTOS - GENERAL - removal of asbestos m a t e r i a l / m o l d and hazardous 
m a t e r i a l s from any place i n a b u i l d i n g , i n c l u d i n g mechanical systems 
where those mechanical systems are t o be removed. This includes the 
removal o f asbestos materials/mold and hazardous m a t e r i a l s from 
ductwork or pipes i n a b u i l d i n g when the b u i l d i n g i s t o be demolished 
at the time or at some close f u t u r e date. 
ASBESTOS - MECHANICAL - removal of asbestos m a t e r i a l from mechanical 
systems, such as pipes, ducts, and b o i l e r s , where the mechanical 
systems are t o remain. 

CERAMIC TILE FINISHER 

The g r o u t i n g , c l e a n i n g , and p o l i s h i n g of a l l classes of t i l e , whether 
f o r i n t e r i o r or e x t e r i o r purposes, a l l burned, glazed or unglazed 
products; a l l composition m a t e r i a l s , g r a n i t e t i l e s , warning d e t e c t a b l e 
t i l e s , cement t i l e s , epoxy composite m a t e r i a l s , pavers, glass, 
mosaics, f i b e r g l a s s , and a l l s u b s t i t u t e m a t e r i a l s , f o r t i l e made i n 
t i l e - l i k e u n i t s ; a l l mixtures i n t i l e l i k e form of cement, metals, and 
other m a t e r i a l s t h a t are f o r and intended f o r use as a f i n i s h e d f l o o r 
surface, s t a i r t r eads, promenade r o o f s , walks, w a l l s , c e i l i n g s , 
swimming pools, and a l l other places where t i l e i s to form a f i n i s h e d 
i n t e r i o r or e.xterior. The mixing of a l l s e t t i n g mortars i n c l u d i n g but 
not l i m i t e d t o t h i n - s e t mortars, epo.xies, w a l l mud, and any other 
sand and cement mixtures or adhesives when used i n the p r e p a r a t i o n , 
i n s t a l l a t i o n , r e p a i r , or maintenance of t i l e and/or s i m i l a r m a t e r i a l s . 
The handling and unloading of a l l sand, cement, lime, t i l e , 
f i x t u r e s , eguipment, adhesives, or any other m a t e r i a l s to be used i n 
the p r e p a r a t i o n , i n s t a l l a t i o n , r e p a i r , or maintenance of t i l e and/or 
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s i m i l a r m a t e r i a l s . Ceramic T i l e F i n i s h e r s s h a l l f i l l a l l j o i n t s and 
voids regardless of method on a l l t i l e work, p a r t i c u l a r l y and 
e s p e c i a l l y a f t e r i n s t a l l a t i o n of s a i d t i l e work. A p p l i c a t i o n of any 
and a l l p r o t e c t i v e coverings t o a l l types of t i l e i n s t a l l a t i o n s 
i n c l u d i n g , but not be l i m i t e d t o , a l l soap compounds, paper products, 
tapes, and a l l polyethylene coverings, plywood, masonite, cardboard, 
and any new type of products t h a t may be used to p r o t e c t t i l e 
i n s t a l l a t i o n s , B l a s t r a c equipment, and a l l f l o o r s c a r i f y i n g equipment 
used i n p r e p a r i n g f l o o r s t o rec e i v e t i l e . The clean up and removal of 
a l l waste and m a t e r i a l s . A l l d e m o l i t i o n of e x i s t i n g t i l e f l o o r s and 
w a l l s t o be r e - t i l e d . 

COMMUNICATIONS ELECTRICIAN 

I n s t a l l a t i o n , o p e r a t i o n , i n s p e c t i o n , maintenance, r e p a i r and s e r v i c e 
of r a d i o , t e l e v i s i o n , r e c o r d i n g , voice sound v i s i o n p r o d u c t i o n and 
re p r o d u c t i o n , telephone and telephone i n t e r c o n n e c t , f a c s i m i l e , data 
apparatus, c o a x i a l , f i b r e o p t i c and w i r e l e s s equipment, appliances and 
systems used f o r the tr a n s m i s s i o n and r e c e p t i o n of s i g n a l s of any 
nature, business, domestic, commercial, education, entertainment, and 
r e s i d e n t i a l purposes, i n c l u d i n g but not l i m i t e d t o , communication and 
telephone, e l e c t r o n i c and sound equipment, f i b r e o p t i c and data 
communication systems, and the performance o f any task d i r e c t l y 
r e l a t e d t o such i n s t a l l a t i o n or s e r v i c e whether at new or e x i s t i n g 
s i t e s , such tasks t o i n c l u d e the p l a c i n g of wi r e and cable and 
e l e c t r i c a l power conduit or other raceway work w i t h i n the equipment 
room and p u l l i n g w i r e and/or cable through conduit and the 
i n s t a l l a t i o n of any i n c i d e n t a l c o n d u i t , such t h a t the employees 
covered hereby can complete any j o b i n f u l l . 

MARBLE FINISHER 

Loading and unloading t r u c k s , d i s t r i b u t i o n of a l l m a t e r i a l s ( a l l 
stone, sand, e t c . ) , s t o c k i n g o f f l o o r s w i t h m a t e r i a l , performing a l l 
r i g g i n g f o r heavy work, the h a n d l i n g o f a l l m a t e r i a l t h a t may be 
needed f o r the i n s t a l l a t i o n o f such m a t e r i a l s , b u i l d i n g of 
s c a f f o l d i n g , p o l i s h i n g i f needed, p a t c h i n g , waxing o f m a t e r i a l i f 
damaged, p o i n t i n g up, c a u l k i n g , g r o u t i n g and clean i n g of marble, 
h o l d i n g water on diamond or Carborundum blade or saw f o r s e t t e r s 
c u t t i n g , use of tub saw or any other saw needed f o r p r e p a r a t i o n of 
m a t e r i a l , d r i l l i n g o f holes f o r wires t h a t anchor m a t e r i a l set by 
s e t t e r s , m i x i n g up o f molding p l a s t e r f o r i n s t a l l a t i o n o f m a t e r i a l , 
mixing up t h i n set f o r the i n s t a l l a t i o n of m a t e r i a l , mixing up of sand 
to cement f o r the i n s t a l l a t i o n of m a t e r i a l and such other work as may 
be r e q u i r e d i n h e l p i n g a Marble S e t t e r i n the handling of a l l 
m a t e r i a l i n the e r e c t i o n or i n s t a l l a t i o n of i n t e r i o r marble, s l a t e , 
t r a v e r t i n e , a r t marble, s e r p e n t i n e , alberene stone, blue stone, 
g r a n i t e and other stones (meaning as t o stone any f o r e i g n or domestic 
m a t e r i a l s as are s p e c i f i e d and used i n b u i l d i n g i n t e r i o r s and 
e x t e r i o r s and c u s t o m a r i l y known as stone i n the t r a d e ) , c a r r a r a , 
sanionyx, v i t r o l i t e and s i m i l a r opaque glass and the l a y i n g of a l l 
marble t i l e , t e r r a z z o t i l e , s l a t e t i l e and precast t i l e , steps, r i s e r s 
t r e a d s , base, or any other m a t e r i a l s t h a t may be used as s u b s t i t u t e s 
f o r any o f the aforementioned m a t e r i a l s and which are used on i n t e r i o r 
and e x t e r i o r which are i n s t a l l e d i n a s i m i l a r manner. 

MATERIAL TESTER I : Hand c o r i n g and d r i l l i n g f o r t e s t i n g of m a t e r i a l s ; 
f i e l d i n s p e c t i o n of uncured concrete and as p h a l t . 

MATERIAL TESTER I I : F i e l d i n s p e c t i o n of welds, s t r u c t u r a l s t e e l , 
f i r e p r o o f i n g , masonry, s o i l , facade, r e i n f o r c i n g s t e e l , formwork, 
cured concrete, and concrete and aspha l t batch p l a n t s ; a d j u s t i n g 
p r o p o r t i o n s of bituminous m i x t u r e s . 

OPERATING ENGINEER - BUILDING 

Class 1. Asphalt P l a n t ; Asphalt Spreader; Autograde; Backhoes w i t h 
Caisson Attachment; Batch P l a n t ; Benoto ( r e q u i r e s Two Engineers); 
B o i l e r and T h r o t t l e Valve; Caisson Rigs; C e n t r a l Redi-Mix Plant; 
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Combination Back Hoe Front End-loader Machine; Compressor and T h r o t t l e 
Valve; Concrete Breaker (Truck Mounted); Concrete Conveyor; Concrete 
Conveyor (Truck Mounted); Concrete Paver Over 27E cu. f t ; Concrete 
Paver 27E cu. f t . and Under: Concrete Placer; Concrete Placing Boom; 
Concrete Pump (Truck Mounted); Concrete Tower; Cranes, A l l ; Cranes, 
Hammerhead; Cranes, (GCI and s i m i l a r Type); Creter Crane; Spider 
Crane; Crusher, Stone, e t c . ; D e r r i c k s , A l l ; D e r r i c k s , T r a v e l i n g ; 
Formless Curb and Gutter Machine; Grader, E l e v a t i n g ; Grouting 
Machines; Heavy Duty S e l f - P r o p e l l e d Transporter or Prime Mover; 
H i g h l i f t Shovels or Front Endloader 2-1/4 yd. and over; H o i s t s , 
E l e v a t o r s , o u t s i d e type rack and p i n i o n and s i m i l a r machines; Hoists, 
One, Two and Three Drum; Ho i s t s , Two Tugger One Floor; Hydraulic 
Backhoes; Hyd r a u l i c Boom Trucks; Hydro Vac (and s i m i l a r equipment); 
Locomotives, A l l ; Motor P a t r o l ; L u b r i c a t i o n Technician; Manipulators; 
P i l e D r i v e r s and Skid Rig; Post Hole Digger; Pre-Stress Machine; Pump 
Cretes Dual Ram; Pump Cretes: Squeeze Cretes-Screw Type Pumps; Gypsum 
Bulker and Pump; Raised and B l i n d Hole D r i l l ; Roto M i l l Grinder; 
Scoops - T r a c t o r Drawn; Slip-Form Paver; Straddle Buggies; Operation 
of Tie Back Machine; T o u r n a p u l l ; T r a c t o r w i t h Boom and Side Boom; 
Trenching Machines. 

Class 2. B o i l e r s ; Broom, A l l Power P r o p e l l e d ; B u l l d o z e r s ; Concrete 
Mixer (Two Bag and Over); Conveyor, Por t a b l e ; F o r k l i f t Trucks; 
H i g h l i f t Shovels or Front Endloaders under 2-1/4 yd.; H o i s t s , 
Automatic; H o i s t s , I n s i d e E l e v a t o r s ; H o i s t s , Sewer Dragging Machine; 
H o i s t s , Tugger Single Drum; Laser Screed; Rock D r i l l ( S e l f - P r o p e l l e d ) ; 
Rock D r i l l (Truck Mounted); R o l l e r s , A l l ; Steam Generators; T r a c t o r s , 
A l l ; T r a c t o r Drawn V i b r a t o r y R o l l e r ; Winch Trucks w i t h "A" Frame. 

Class 3. A i r Compressor; Combination Small Equipment Operator; 
Generators; Heaters, Mechanical; H o i s t s , I n s i d e E l e v a t o r s (remodeling 
or r e n o v a t i o n work); H y d r a u l i c Power Uni t s ( P i l e D r i v i n g , E x t r a c t i n g , 
and D r i l l i n g ) ; Pumps, over 3" (1 t o 3 not t o exceed a t o t a l o f 300 
f t . ) ; Low Boys; Pumps, Well P o i n t s ; Welding Machines (2 through 5 ) ; 
Winches, 4 Small E l e c t r i c D r i l l Winches. 

Class 4. Bobcats and/or other Skid Steer Loaders; O i l e r s ; and B r i c k 
F o r k l i f t . 

Class 5. A s s i s t a n t C r a f t Foreman. 

Class 6. G r a d a l l . 

Class 7. Mechanics; Welders. 

OPERATING ENGINEERS - HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION 

Class 1. Asphalt P l a n t ; Asphalt Heater and Planer Combination; Asphalt 
Heater S c a r f i r e ; Asphalt Spreader; Autograder/GOMACO or other s i m i l a r 
type machines: ABG Paver; Backhoes w i t h Caisson Attachment; B a l l a s t 
Regulator; B e l t Loader; Caisson Rigs; Car Dumper; C e n t r a l Redi-Mix 
P l a n t ; Combination Backhoe Front Endloader Machine, (1 cu. yd. Backhoe 
Bucket or over or w i t h attachments); Concrete Breaker (Truck 
Mounted); Concrete Conveyor; Concrete Paver over 27E cu. f t . ; Concrete 
Placer; Concrete Tube F l o a t ; Cranes, a l l attachments; Cranes, Tower 
Cranes of a l l types: Creter Crane: Spider Crane; Crusher, Stone, e t c . ; 
D e r r i c k s , A l l ; D e r r i c k Boats; D e r r i c k s , T r a v e l i n g ; Dredges; 
E l e v a t o r s , Outside type Rack 4 Pinion and S i m i l a r Machines; Formless 
Curb and Gutter Machine; Grader, E l e v a t i n g ; Grader, Motor Grader, 
Motor P a t r o l , Auto P a t r o l , Form Grader, P u l l Grader, Subgrader; Guard 
R a i l Post D r i v e r Truck Mounted; H o i s t s , One, Two and Three Drum; Heavy 
Duty S e l f - P r o p e l l e d Transporter or Prime Mover; Hyd r a u l i c Backhoes; 
Backhoes w i t h shear attachments up to 40' o f boom reach; L u b r i c a t i o n 
Technician; Manipulators; Mucking Machine; P i l e D r i v e r s and Skid Rig; 
Pre-Stress Machine; Pump Cretes Dual Ram; Rock D r i l l - Crawler or Skid 
Rig; Rock D r i l l - Truck Mounted; Rock/Track Tamper; Roto M i l l 
Grinder; Slip-Form Paver; Snow Welters; S o i l Test D r i l l Rig (Truck 
Mounted); Straddle Buggies; Hy d r a u l i c Telescoping Form (Tunnel); 
Operation of Tieback Machine; T r a c t o r Drawn B e l t Loader; T r a c t o r 
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Drawn B e l t Loader ( w i t h attached pusher - two e n g i n e e r s ) ; T r a c t o r w i t h 
Boom; T r a c t a i r e w i t h Attachments; T r a f f i c B a r r i e r Transfer Machine; 
Trenching; Truck Mounted Concrete Pump w i t h Boom; Raised or B l i n d Hole 
D r i l l s (Tunnel S h a f t ) ; Underground Boring and/or Mining Machines 5 
f t . i n diameter and over t u n n e l , e t c ; Underground Boring and/or Mining 
Machines under 5 f t . i n diameter; Wheel Excavator; Widener (APSCO). 

Class 2. Batch Plant; Bituminous Mixer; B o i l e r and T h r o t t l e Valve; 
B u l l d o z e r s ; Car Loader T r a i l i n g Conveyors; Combination Backhoe Front 
Endloader Machine (Less than 1 cu. yd. Backhoe Bucket or over or w i t h 
attachments); Compressor and T h r o t t l e Valve; Compressor, Common 
Receiver ( 3 ) ; Concrete Breaker or Hydro Hammer; Concrete G r i n d i n g 
Machine; Concrete Mixer or Paver 73 Series t o and i n c l u d i n g 27 cu. 
f t . ; Concrete Spreader; Concrete Curing Machine, Burlap Machine, 
B e l t i n g Machine and Sealing Machine; Concrete Wheel Saw; Conveyor Muck 
Cars (Haglund or S i m i l a r Type); D r i l l s , A l l ; F i n i s h i n g Machine -
Concrete; H i g h l i f t Shovels or Front Endloader; Hoist - Sewer Dragging 
Machine; Hy d r a u l i c Boom Trucks ( A l l Attachments); Hydro-Blaster; Hydro 
Excavating (excluding hose work); Laser Screed; A l l Locomotives, 
Dinky; Off-Road Hauling Un i t s ( i n c l u d i n g a r t i c u l a t i n g ) Non 
Self-Loading E j e c t i o n Dump; Pump Cretes: Squeeze Cretes - Screw Type 
Pumps, Gypsum Bulker and Pump; R o l l e r , Asphalt; Rotary Snow Plows; 
R o t o t i l l e r , Seaman, e t c . , s e l f - p r o p e l l e d ; S e l f - P r o p e l l e d Compactor; 
Spreader - Chip - Stone, e t c . ; Scraper - Single/Twin Engine/Push and 
P u l l ; Scraper - Prime Mover i n Tandem (Regardless of S i z e ) ; T r a c t o r s 
p u l l i n g attachments, Sheeps Foot, Disc, Compactor, e t c . ; Tug Boats. 

Class 3. B o i l e r s ; Brooms, A l l Power Propelled; Cement Supply Tender; 
Compressor, Common Receiver (2); Concrete Mixer (Two Bag and Over); 
Conveyor, Portable; Farm-Type Tractors Used for Mowing, Seeding, e t c . ; 
F o r k l i f t Trucks; Grouting Machine; Hoists, Automatic; Hoists, A l l 
Elevators; Hoists, Tugger Single Drum; Jeep Diggers; Low Boys; Pipe 
Jacking Machines; Post-Hole Digger; Power Saw, Concrete Power Driven; 
Pug M i l l s ; R o l l e r s , other than Asphalt; Seed and Straw Blower; Steam 
Generators; Stump Machine; Winch Trucks with "A" Frame; Work Boats; 
Tamper-Form-Motor Driven. 

Class 4. A i r Compressor; Combination - Small Equipment Operator; 
D i r e c t i o n a l Boring Machine; Generators; Heaters, Mechanical; H y d r a u l i c 
Power U n i t ( P i l e D r i v i n g , E x t r a c t i n g , or D r i l l i n g ) ; L i g h t P l a n t s , A l l 
(1 through 5 ) ; Pumps, over 3" (1 to 3 not t o exceed a t o t a l of 300 
f t . ) ; Pumps, Well P o i n t s ; Vacuum Trucks (excl u d i n g hose work); Welding 
Machines (2 through 5 ) ; Winches, 4 Small E l e c t r i c D r i l l Winches. 

Class 5. SkidSteer Loader ( a l l ) ; B r i c k F o r k l i f t s ; O i l e r s . 

Class 6. F i e l d Mechanics and F i e l d Welders 

Class 7. Dowell Machine w i t h A i r Compressor; G r a d a l l and machines of 
l i k e n ature. 

OPERATING ENGINEER - FLOATING 

Class 1. C r a f t Foreman; Master Mechanic; Diver/Wet Tender; Engineer; 
Engineer (Hydraulic Dredge). 

Class 2. Crane/Backhoe Operator; Boat Operator u i t h towing 
endorsement; Mechanic/Welder; A s s i s t a n t Engineer (Hydraulic Dredge) ; 
Leverman (Hydraulic Dredge); Diver Tender. 

Class 3. Deck Equipment Operator, Machineryman, Maintenance o f Crane 
(over 50 ton c a p a c i t y ) or Backhoe (115,000 l b s . or more); Tug/Launch 
Operator; Loader/Dozer and l i k e equipment on Barge, Breakwater Wall, 
Slip/Dock, or Scow, Deck Machinery, e t c . 

Class 4. Deck Equipment Operator, Machineryman/Fireman (4 Equipment 
Unit s or More); Off Road Trucks; Deck Hand, Tug Engineer, Crane 
Maintenance (50 Ton Capacity and Under) or Backhoe Weighing (115,000 
pounds or l e s s ) ; A s s i s t a n t Tug Operator. 
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Class 5. F r i c t i o n or L a t t i c e Boom Cranes. 

SURVEY WORKER - Operated survey equipment i n c l u d i n g data c o l l e c t o r s , 
G.P.S. and r o b o t i c instruments, as w e l l as conventional l e v e l s and 
t r a n s i t s . 

TERRAZZO FINISHER 

The handling of sand, cement, marble chips, and a l l other m a t e r i a l s 
t h a t may be used by the Mosaic Terrazzo Mechanic, and the mixing, 
g r i n d i n g , g r o u t i n g , c l e a n i n g and s e a l i n g of a l l Marble, Mosaic, and 
Terrazzo work, f l o o r s , base, s t a i r s , and wainscoting by hand or 
machine, and i n a d d i t i o n , a s s i s t i n g and a i d i n g Marble, Masonic, and 
Terrazzo Mechanics. 

TRAFFIC SAFETY 

Work associated w i t h b a r r i c a d e s , horses and drums used t o reduce lane 
usage on highway work, the i n s t a l l a t i o n and removal of temporary lane 
markings, and the i n s t a l l a t i o n and removal of temporary road signs. 

TRUCK DRIVER - BUILDING, HEAVY AND HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION - EAST & WEST 

Class 1. Two or thre e Axle Trucks. A-frame Truck when used f o r 
t r a n s p o r t a t i o n purposes; A i r Compressors and Welding Machines, 
i n c l u d i n g those p u l l e d by cars, pick-up t r u c k s and t r a c t o r s ; 
Ambulances; Batch Gate Lockers; Batch Hopperman; Car and Truck 
Washers; C a r r y - a l l s ; Fork L i f t s and H o l s t e r s ; Helpers; Mechanics 
Helpers and Greasers; O i l D i s t r i b u t o r s 2-man o p e r a t i o n ; Pavement 
Breakers; Pole T r a i l e r , up t o 40 f e e t ; Power Mower T r a c t o r s ; 
S e l f - p r o p e l l e d Chip Spreader; Skipman; S l u r r y Trucks, 2-man o p e r a t i o n ; 
S l u r r y Truck Conveyor Operation, 2 or 3 man; Teamsters; U n s k i l l e d 
Dumpman; and Truck D r i v e r s h a u l i n g warning l i g h t s , b a r r i c a d e s , and 
p o r t a b l e t o i l e t s on the j o b s i t e . 

Class 2. Four a x l e t r u c k s ; Dump Crets and Adgetors under 7 yards; 
Dumpsters, Track Trucks, E u c l i d s , Hug Bottom Dump Turnapulls or 
T u r n a t r a i l e r s when p u l l i n g other than s e l f - l o a d i n g equipment or 
s i m i l a r equipment under 15 cubic yards; Mixer Trucks under 7 yards; 
Ready-mix Plant Hopper Operator, and Winch Trucks, 2 Axles. 

Class 3. Five axle t r u c k s ; Dump Crets and Adgetors 7 yards and over; 
Dumpsters, Track Trucks, E u c l i d s , Hug Bottom Dump T u r n a t r a i l e r s or 
t u r n a p u l l s when p u l l i n g other than s e l f - l o a d i n g equipment or s i m i l a r 
equipment over 16 cubic yards; Explosives and/or F i s s i o n M a t e r i a l 
Trucks; Mixer Trucks 7 yards or over; Mobile Cranes wh i l e i n t r a n s i t ; 
O i l D i s t r i b u t o r s , 1-man o p e r a t i o n ; Pole T r a i l e r , over 40 f e e t ; Pole 
and Expandable T r a i l e r s h a u l i n g m a t e r i a l over 50 f e e t long; S l u r r y 
t r u c k s , 1-man o p e r a t i o n ; Winch t r u c k s , 3 axles or more; 
Mechanic--Truck Welder and Truck P a i n t e r . 

Class 4. Six axle t r u c k s ; Dual-purpose v e h i c l e s , such as mounted 
crane t r u c k s w i t h h o i s t and accessories; Foreman; Master Mechanic; 
S e l f - l o a d i n g equipment l i k e P.B. and t r u c k s w i t h scoops on the f r o n t . 

Other C l a s s i f i c a t i o n s o f Work: 

For d e f i n i t i o n s o f c l a s s i f i c a t i o n s not otherwise set out, the 
Department g e n e r a l l y has on f i l e such d e f i n i t i o n s which are 
a v a i l a b l e . I f a task t o be performed i s not subject t o one of the 
c l a s s i f i c a t i o n s o f pay set out, the Department w i l l upon being 
contacted s t a t e which neighboring county has such a c l a s s i f i c a t i o n and 
provide such r a t e , such r a t e being deemed to e x i s t by reference i n 
t h i s document. I f no neighboring county r a t e a p p l i e s t o the task, 
the Department s h a l l undertake a s p e c i a l d e t e r m i n a t i o n , such s p e c i a l 
d e t e r m i n a t i o n being then deemed to have e x i s t e d under t h i s 
d e t e r m i n a t i o n . I f a p r o j e c t r e q u i r e s those, or any c l a s s i f i c a t i o n not 
l i s t e d , please contact IDOL at 217-782-1710 f o r wage ra t e s or 
c l a r i f i c a t i o n s . 
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LANDSCAPING 

Landscaping work f a l l s under the e;<isting c l a s s i f i c a t i o n s for laborer, 
operating engineer and truck driver. The work performed by 
landscape plantsman and landscape laborer i s covered by the existing 
c l a s s i f i c a t i o n of laborer. The work performed by landscape operators 
(regardless of equipment used or i t s size) i s covered by the 
cla s s i f i c a t i o n s of operating engineer. The work performed by 
landscape truck drivers (regardless of size of truck driven) i s 
covered by the c l a s s i f i c a t i o n s of truck driver. 

MATERIAL TESTER & MATERIAL TESTER/INSPECTOR I AND I I 

Notwithstanding the difference i n the c l a s s i f i c a t i o n t i t l e , the 
c l a s s i f i c a t i o n e n t i t l e d "Material Tester I " involves the same job 
duties as the c l a s s i f i c a t i o n e n t i t l e d "Material Tester/Inspector I " . 
Likewise, the c l a s s i f i c a t i o n e n t i t l e d "Material Tester I I " involves 
the same job duties as the c l a s s i f i c a t i o n e n t i t l e d "Material 
Tester/Inspector I I " . 
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EXHIBIT 6 

Performance Bond Form 



CONTRACTOR'S PERFORMANCE & PAYMENT BOND 

^nnfij (All ^ t n by tljcse ^rtscnts, That we. 

Principal, hereinafter refeaed to as Contractor, and 
, Surely 

of the County of Cook and State of Illinois, are held and firmly bound unto the CITY OF CHICAGO in the penal sum of 

lawful money of the United States, for the payment of which sum of money, well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, 

executors, administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 

with our seals and dated this day of A.D., 20 

That whereas the above bounden Contractor has entered into a certain contract with the CITY OF CHICAGO, bearing 

Contract No. and Specification No. all in conformity with said contract, for. 

The said contract is incorporated herein by reference in its endrety, including without limitation, any and all indenmificadon provisions. 

Now, if the said Contractor shall in all respects well and truly keep and perform the said contract on its part, in accordance with 
the terms and provisions of all of the Contract Documents comprising said contract, and in the time and maimer therein prescribed, and 
further shall save, indenmify, and keep harmless the City of Chicago against all loss, damages, claims, liabilities, judgements, costs and 
expenses which may in anywise accrue against said City of Chicago, in consequence of the granting of said contract, or which may in 
anywise result therefrom, or which may result from strict liability, or which may in anywise result from any injuries to, or death of, any 
person, or damage to any real or personal property, arising directly or indirectly from or in connection with, work performed or to be 
performed under said contract by said Contractor, its Agents, Employees or Workmen, assignees, subcontractors, or anyone else, in any 
respect whatever, or which may result on account of any infringement of any patent by reason of the materials, machinery, devices or 
apparams used in the performance of said conuaci, and moreover, shall pay to said City any sum or sums of money determined by the 
Purchasing Agent, and/or by a court of competent jurisdiction, to be due said City by reason of any failure or neglect in the performance 
of the requirements, of said contract, wherefore the said Purchasing Agent shall have elected to suspend or cancel the same, and shall pay 
all claims and demands whatsoever, which may accrue to each and every materialman and subcontractor, and to each and every person 
who shall be employed by the said Contractor or by its assignees and subcontractors, in or about the performance of said contract, and 
with wages paid at prevailing wage rates if so required by said contract, and shall insure its liability to pay the compensation, and shall 
pay all claims and demands for compensation which may accrue to each and every person who shall be employed by them or any of them in or 
about the performance of said contract, or which shall accrue to the beneficiaries or dependents of any such person, under the provisions 
of the Workers' Compensation Act, 820 ILCS 305, as amended, and the Workers' Occupational Disease Act, 820 ILCS 310, as amended 
(hereinafter referred to as "Acts") then is this obligation to be null and void, otherwise to remain in fuU force and effect. 



And il is hereby expressly understood and agreed, and made a condition hereof, that any judgement rendered against said City in 
any suit based upon any loss, damages, claims, liabilities, judgements, costs or expenses which may in anywise accrue against said City 
as a consequence of the granting of s.iid contract, or which may in anywise result therefrom, or which may in anywise result from any 
injuries lo, or death of. any person, or damage to any real or personal property, arising directly or indirectly from, or in connection with, 
work performed, or to h>e performed under said contract by said Contractor or its agents, employees or workmen, assignees, subcontrac­
tors, or anyone else and also any decision of the Industrial Commission of the State of Illinois, and any order of court based upon such deci­
sion, or judgement thereon, rendered against said City of Chicago in any suit or claim arising under the aforementioned Acts when notice 
of the pendency or arbitration proceedings or suit shall have been given said Contractor, shall be conclusive against each and all parties 
to this obligation, as to amount, liability and all other things pertaining thereto. 

Every person furnishing material or performing labor in tlie performance of said contract, either as an individual, as a subconu^ctor, 
or otherwise, shall have the right lo sue on tiiis bond in the name of the City of Chicago for his use and benefit and in such suit said person 
as plaintiff, shall file a copy of this bond, certified by die party or parties in whose charge this bond shall be, which copy shall be, unless 
execution diereof be denied under oath, prima facie evidence of the execution and delivery of the original; provided, that nothing in this 
bond contained shall be taken to make the City of Chicago liable to any subcontractor, materialman, laborer or to any other person to any 
greater extent than it would have been liable prior lo the enactment of the Public Constraction Bond Act, 30 LLCS 550, as amended; 
provided further, that any person having a claim for labor and materials furnished in the performance of this contract shall have no right of 
action unless he shall have filed a verified notice of such claim with ihe Clerk of die City of Chicago within 180 days after the date of the 
last item of work or the ftimishing of the last item of materials, and shall have fiimished a copy of such verified notice to the contractor 
within 10 days of the filing of die notice with the City of Chicago. Such claim shall be verified and shall contain the name and address of 
the claimant, the business address of the claimani within the State of Illinois, if any, or if the claimant be a foreign corporation having no 
place of business with the Slate the principal place of business of said corporation, and in all cases of partnership the names and residences 
of each of the partners, the name of the contractor for the City of Chicago, the name of the person, furm or corporation by whom the 
claimant was employed or lo whom such claimani fumished materials, the amount of the claim and a brief description of the public 
improvement for the construction or installation of which the contract is lo be performed. Provided, further, that no defect in the notice 
herein provided for shall deprive the claimant of his right of action under the terms and provisions of this bond unless it shall affirmatively 
appear that such defect has prejudiced the rights of an interested party asserting the same; provided, further, that no action shall be 
brought until the expiration of one hundred twenty (120) days after die date of die last item of work or of the furnishing of the last item of 
material, except in cases where the fmal settiement between the City of Chicago and the ConU^clor shall have been made prior to the 
expiration ofthe 120 day period in which case action may be taken immediately following such final settiement, and provided, fiirther, that 
no action of any kind shall be brought later dian six (6) months after die acceptance by die City of Chicago of die completion of work. 
Any suit upon this bond shall be brought only in a circuit court of die State of Illinois in die judicial district in which the conbaa shall have 
been performed. 

The said Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees dial no change, extension of time, alteration or addition to die terms 
of any of die Contract Documents comprising said contract, or to the work to be performed diereunder, shall in anywise affect die 
obligations on this bond, and il does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration or addition to die terms of said 
Contract Documents or to the work. 

: (Seal) 

Approved , 20 
(Seal) 

(Seal) 
Purchasing Agent 

(Seal) 

Approved as to form and legality: (Seal) 

(Seal) 
Assistant Corporation Coonsd 
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STATE OF ILLINOIS,! 
COUNTY OF COOK, J 

aforesaid, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that 

, a Notary' Public in and for the County and Stale 

President and 

Secretary of die_ 

who are personally known to me to be the same persons whose names are subscribed in the foregoing instrument as 

such President and Secretary, appeared 
before me this day in person and acknowledged that they signed, sealed and delivered the said instrument of writing as 

their free and voluntary act, and as the free and voluntary act of the said 
for the uses and purposes therein set forth, and caused the cor[xirate seal of said Company to be thereto attached. 

GIVEN under my hand and Notarial Seal this day of 20 

\ 
Notary Public 

1 o 

o u 

{ STATE OF ILLINOIS, 
COUNTY OF COOK 

I , a Notary Public in and for the County and State 

aforesaid, DO HEREBY CERTIFY diai_ 

. of ihe_ _who_ . personally known 

to be the same person. . whose name_ . subscribed in the foregoing instrument as such_ 

_, appeared before me this day in person and acknowledged diat_ 

signed, sealed and delivered ihe said instrument of writing as_ _free and voluntary act, and as the free 

and voluntary act of the said_ 
for the uses and purposes therein set forth, and caused die corporate seal of said Company to be thereto attached. 

GIVEN under my hand and Notarial Seal this day of 20_ 

Notary Public 

/ STATE OF ILLINOIS 
COUNTY OF COOK 

I,. 

SS. 

, a Notary Public in and for the County and Slate 

aforesaid, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that 

who personally known lo me lo be the same persons whose name . _subscribed in the foregoing 

he . signed, sealed and delivered the instrument, appeared before me diis day in person and acknowledged that_ 

said instrument of writing as free and voluntary act, for the uses and purposes therein set forth. 

GIVEN under my hand and Notarial Seal this_ .day of _ 20 

\ 
Notary Public 

GRC-160211-26-1 



RIDER TO CONTRACTOR'S PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BOND 

This Rider supplements Contractor's Performance and Payment Bond ("Bond") on that certain 
contract with the City of Chicago ("City") bearing Contract No. and Specification No. 
("Contract"). Surety acl<nowledges that the Contract requires Contractor to obtain from each of its 
subcontractors consent to a collateral assignment of their contracts with Contractor to the City. The 
Contract further grants the City the right, upon Contractor's default for failure to comply with Chapter 
4-36 of the Municipal Code of the City, and at the City's sole option, to take over and complete the 
work to be performed by Contractor through the City's assumption of some or all of Contractor's 
subcontracts. If the City, in its sole discretion, exercises this right, then Surety waives any rights it 
may have to cure Contractor's default by performing the work itself or through others and remains 
bound by its other obligations under the Bond. 



EXHIBIT 7 

Contractor Affidavit 

Contractor Name: 

Special Service Area Number: 
Agreement ("Agreement"): 

Agreement between the City of Chicago and dated 

, relating to the provision of special services. 

AFFIDAVIT 

The undersigned, , as , and on behalf 
of , having been duly sworn under oath, certifies that in the 
year , it performed that portion of the Services described in Exiiibit 1 of the Agreement 
in accordance with the terms of the Agreement, to the extent described in the attached Full-Year 
Assessment Form and that it spent that portion of funds obtained from the City in connection with that 
Agreement on the Services described in Exhibit 1, to the extent described in the attached Full-Year 
Assessment Form . The Full-Year Assessment Fonn shall be in the form prescribed by the City and shall 
contain such level of detail as the City may require from time to tiine. 

Nothing in this Affidavit may be construed as limiting Contractor's obligations under the Agreement. 
All terms not defined in this Affidavit will be as defined in the Agreement. 

Under penalty of perjury, I certify that I am authorized to execute this Affidavit on behalf of the 
Contractor, that I have personal knowledge of the certifications made in this Affidavit, and that they are 
true and correct. 

NAME OF CONTRACTOR: 

Signature of Authorized Officer 

Name of Authorized Officer (Print or Type) 

State of 
County of 

Sworn to and acknowledged before me bv [name of signatorvl as 
ftitid of fname of 

contracting partvl this day of ,_20 . 

Signature of Notary 



INSERT FULL-YEAR ASSESSWENTiF.ORM 



EXHIBIT 8 

Special Service Area - Additional Audit Requirements 

Accounting System 

The Department requires that the Contractor maintain its accounting system in a manner which 
allows the Contractor's expenditures to be categorized in its statement of activities according to 
the categories listed in the budget approved by the City for each Area. 

Guidance for the Contractor's Selection of a CPA Firm (Independent Auditor) 

The Contractor must use the following guidelines for engaging a qualified CPA Firm: 

1. Issue a Request for Proposal ("RFP") that sets forth all of the terms and conditions of the 
engagement, evaluation criteria, and scope of the work required. Audit firm evaluations 
can replace an annual RFP process; an RFP process every three years is preferred. 

2. Distribute and publicize the RFP sufficiently to ensure full and open competition. 
3. Request in the RFP that bidders provide detail on: 

a. How the CPA Firm will conduct the audit. 
b. Qualifications of the CPA Firm, management, and staff, including experience in 

auditing like entities. 
c. Policies on notification of changes in key personnel. 
d. Whether the proposed staff has received continuing professional education that is 

relevant to the performance of this engagement during the previous 2 years, 
e. Whether the CPA Firm has received a positive peer review within the last 3 years. 
f. Whether the CPA Firm is independent, as defined by applicable auditing 

standards. 
g. Whether the CPA Firm has been the object of any disciplinary action during the 

past 3 years. 
h. Confinnation the CPA Firm and key personnel assigned to this engagement 

maintains an active license in the State of Illinois and attached a copy of a current license with 
the RFP response or annually. 

i . Confirmation the CPA Firm is not on the City's debarred vendor list, 
j . The audit fee. 

4. Evaluate the proposals based on: 
a. The CPA Firm's understanding of the audit requirements, including the needs of 

the Area and the final products to be delivered. 
b. Soundness of technical approach to the audit, including the meeting of the 

Contractor's specific deadlines and other requirements. 
c. Qualifications of the CPA Firm. 
d. Qualifications ofthe audit team. 
e. The information provided by respondents in response to the RFP, including cost 



and independence. 

5. Rate the proposals as follows: 
a. Proposals should be evaluated as submitted. 
b. Make a list of strengths and weaknesses for each to support its technical rating. 
c. Review the proposed fees offered by the bidders after completion of the teclinical 

evaluation. 
d. Ask questions of the bidders to eliminate any ambiguities. 
e. Select a proposal that is most advantageous to the Area based on the evaluation 

criteria set forth in the RFP. 

6. Once a CPA Firm is chosen based upon the foregoing criteria, require a written 
engagement letter to avoid misunderstandings that specifies: 

a. Audit scope, objectives, and purposes. 
b. Deadlines for the work to be performed. 
c. Audit fees. 
d. Report fonnat, including providing a PDF digital version of the final audit. 
e. Type and timing of support to be provided to the CPA Fimi by the Special Service 

Area Commission ("SSAC"). 
f Professional auditing standards to be followed in performing the audit. 
g. Independence of the CPA Firm to the SSAC. 
h. Terms of making changes to the scope of the agreement. 
i . CPA Firm's ownership of the work papers, retention period, and requirement for 

availability to the City upon request. 

Summary Schedule of Findings. 

In order to properly conduct the certified audit of the books and records of the Contractor, it is 
necessary for the CPA Firm to read and understand the requirements contained in the Agreement. 
Particular attention should be given to Sections 3 and 5 of the Agreement. 

The CPA Firm must test the Contractor's compliance with the requirements contained in the 
Agreement. Should the CPA Firm find exception to the requirements of the Agreement, it must 
disclose all exceptions in a separate schedule, which shall be entitled "Summary Schedule of 
Findings". Each finding shall be listed separately. The schedule shall be incorporated with the 
other required financial statements. 

If the CPA Firm finds no exceptions to the Agreement requirements, it shall still include a 
"Summary Schedule of Findings". On that schedule the CPA Firm shall make an affirmative 
statement indicating it has read the Agreement and, after conducting the audit, has determined 
that no exceptions were noted. 

Subsections to note in Section 5 include: 
a. Section 5.01, Basis of Payment, describes "carry over" as the amount of Service 



Tax Funds collected for prior tax years which remain previously unspent. 
b. Section 5.02, Budget for Services, restricts the maximum amount that may be 

spent in a calendar year to the amount stated in the Agreement. 
c. Section 5.03, Method of Payment, states that the Contractor shall establish a 

separate checking account and that Area funds shall not be commingled with other sources. 

Audit of Financial Statements 

As discussed in Section 3.07, "Records and Audits", the Contractor shall provide an annual 
audited financial statement to the Department and SSAC within 120 calendar days after the end 
of the calendar year and the system of accounting shall be in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles and practices, consistently applied throughout. 

Audit Documents 
The City requires an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 
to include the following documents: 

1. Statement of Financial Position. 
2. Statement of Activities: Budget and Actual (period being audited compared to the 
previous year, e.g. columns should be 2015 Budget, 2015 Actual, Variance, 2014 Budget, 2014 
Actual, Variance). 
3. Statement of Cash Flows. 
4. Notes to the Financial Statements. 
5. Summary Schedule of Findings that also includes the management response to any audit 
findings and any subsequent CPA Firm and/or City's and/or management responses until the 
CPA Firm and/or the City consider the findings sufficiently remedied. 

Expense descriptions included in the Statement of Activities must correspond to the expense 
descriptions in the budget submitted to the City. 

CPA Firm License 

The CPA Firm shall attach as an exhibit to the audit the firm's active license and key persormel 
to this engagement in the State of Illinois. 

Audit Presentations 

The CPA Firm shall attend at least one (1) SSAC meeting and be available for other meetings as 
requested by the City to present the draft and/or final audit and respond to questions. 

Debarment 

Upon issuance of the final audit, the CPA Firm shall confirm it is not on the City's debarred 
vendor list. 
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CITY OF CHICAGO 

MULTI- PROJECT LABOR AGREEMENT 

This Model Multi-Project Labor Agreement ("Agreement") is entered into by and between City 
of Chicago, an Illinois municipal corporation, as Owner, on behalf of itself and each of its contractors, 
subcontractors of whatsoever tier performing construction work on any project to which this Agreement 
shall be applicable, and each ofthe undersigned labor organizations signatory hereto. 

Whereas, Owner is responsible for construction, demolition, rehabilitation, maintenance, and/or 
renovation of real property located in Chicago, Illinois; Due to the size, scope, cost and duration of the 
multitude of Projects traditionally performed by the City of Chicago, the parties to this Agreement have 
determined that it is in their interest to have these Projects completed in the most timely, productive, 
economical and orderly manner possible, and withouf labor disruptions of any kind that might interfere 
with, or delay, any of these Projects; 

Whereas, the parties have determined that it is desirable to eliminate the potential for friction and 
disruption of these Projects by using their best efforts and ensuring that all work is performed by the trade 
unions that are signatory hereto and which have traditionally performed and have trade and geographic 
jurisdiction over such work. Experience has proven the value of such cooperation, and that such mutual 
undertakings should be maintained, and if possible, strengthened, and that the ultimate beneficiaries 
remain the Ovmer of the project; and. 

Whereas, the Owner acknowledges that it has a serious and ongoing concem regarding labor 
relations associated with the Projects and through its completion irrespective of the existence of a 
collective bargaining relationship with any of the signatory labor organizations. 

NOW THEREFORE, in order to further these goals and objectives and to maintain the spirit of 
harmony, labor-management cooperation and stability, the parties agree as follows: 

1. During the term of this Agreement, Owner its representatives and agents shall not 
contract or subcontract, nor permit any other person, firm, company, or entity to contract 
or subcontract, any construction, disrnolition, rehabilitation or renovation work for the 
Project work covered under this Agreeinent or within the trade •jurisdiction of the 
signatory labor organization, to be performed at the Site of construction or off-site solely 
for installation at the Site (including all tenant improvements, if applicable), unless such 
work is performed only by a person, firm or company signatory, or willing to become 
signatory, to the applicable area-wide collective bargaining agreement(s) with the 
union(s) or the appropriate trade/craft union(s) or subordinate body or affiliate of the 
Chicago & Cook County Building & Construction Trades Council ("Council") or the 
Teamsters' Joint. Council No. 25-. Copies of all such current collective bargaining 
agreements constitute Appendix "A" of this Agreement, attached hereto and made an 
integral part hereof, and as may be modified from time to time during the term of this 
Agreement. Said provisions of this Agreement shall be included in all Requests for Bids 
and/or Proposals and shall be explicitly included in all contracts or subcontracts of 
whatsoever tier by all contractors and subcontractors; provided that the total Project value 
exceeds $25,000.00. In no event shall contracts be "split" so as to avoid the applicability 
of this Agreement. In th& event a dispute arises with respect to the applicability of this 
Multi-Project Labor Agreement to a particular project, the parties agree to submit said 
dispute to final and binding arbitration .before a Permanent Umpire who shall be 
mutually agreed to by the parties. 



2. With respect to a contractor or subcontractor who is the successful bidder, but is not 
signatory to the applicable collective bargaining agreement, the collective bargaining 
agreement(s) executed by said" bidder shall be the relevant area-wide agreement(s) 

'Tegulating or governing wages] houfraiid other terms and conditions of employment. 

3. During the term of this Agreement, the Owner or any Project contractor and sub­
contractor shall engage in no lockout. 

4. During the term of this Agreement, no labor organization signatory hereto, or any of its 
members, officers, stewards, agents, representatives, or employees shall instigate, 
authorize, support, sanction, maintain, or participate in any strike, walkout, work 
stoppage, work slowdown, work curtailment, cessation or interruption of production, or 
in any picketing of any Site covered under this Agreement for any reason whatsoever, 
including but not limited to the expiration of any of tĥ  collective bargaining agreements 
referred to on Appendix A. In the event of an economic strike or other Job action upon 
the termination of an existing collective bargaining agreement, in no event shall any 
adverse job action be directed against any covered Project. All provisions of the 
subsequently negotiated collective bargaining agreement shall be retroactive for all 
employees working at a Project Site, provided such a provision for retroactivity is 
contained in the newly negotiated collective bargaining agreement. 

5. Each Union signatory hereto agrees that it will use its best efforts to prevent any of the 
acts forbidden in Paragraph 4, and that in the event any such act takes place or is engaged 
in by any employee or group of employees, each Union signatory heretb further agrees 
that it will use its best efforts, (including its full disciplinary power under its Constitution 
and/or By-Laws) to cause an immediate cessation thereof. . " 

6. Any contractor of subcontractor signatory or otherwise bound stipulated or required to 
abide by and to any provisions of this Agreement shall have the right to discharge or 
discipline any employee who violates the provisions of this Agreement. Such discharge 
or discipline by a contractor or subcontractor shall be subject to the Grievance/Arbitration 
procedure of the applicable collective bargaining agreement only as to the fact of such 
employee's violation of this Agreement. If such fact is established, the penalty imposed 
shall not be disturbed. Work at any Site covered under this Agreement shall continue 
without disruption or hindrance of any kind durinĝ any Grievance/" Arbitration procedure. 

7. The parties expressly authorize a court of competent jurisdiction to order appropriate 
injunctive relief to restrain any violation of this Agreement, any form of self-help remedy 
is expressly forbidden. Nothing in the foregoing shall restrict any party to otherwise 
judicially enforce any provision of its collective bargaining agreement between any labor 
organization and a contractor with whom it has a collective bargaining relationship. 

8. This Agreement shall become effective, and shall be included in all Requests for Pro­
posals and/or Bids, all Purchase Orders, Contracts or other arrangements issued by the 
City of Chicago for work described in Paragraph 1 above immediately subsequent to the 
ratification of the Ordinance authorizing this Multi-Project Labor Agreement by the City 
Council. 

9. This Agreement shall expire on December 31, 2016 and shall be automatically extended 
for an additional five (S) year term unless the parties issue a notice to terminate between 
sixty (60) and (30) days prior to the initial expiration date. 



10. In the event a dispute shall arise between any contractor or subcontractor ofthe Project 
and any signatory labor organization and/or fringe benefit fund established under any of 
the appropriate collective bargaining agreements as to thejobjigation and/or paŷ f̂ nt 0/ 
fringe benefit contributions provided under the collective bargaining agreement, upon 
proper notice to the contractor(s) or subcontractor(s) by the applicable labor organization 
or fringe benefit fund and to the contractor or subcontractor, an amount sufficient to 
satisfy the amount claimed shall be withheld from the contractor's or subcontractor's 
regularly scheduled periodic payment from the contractor or subcontractor, or their 
agents until such time as said claim is resolved. 

11. In the event of a jurisdictional dispute by and between any labor organizations signatory 
hereto, such labor organizations shall take all steps.necessary to promptly resolve the dispute. 
In the event of a dispute relating to trade or work jurisdiction, ail parties, including' the 
employers, contractors or subcontractors, agree that a final and binding resolution of the 
dispute shall be resolved as follows: 

a. ) Representatives of the affected trades shall meet on the job site within forty-eight (48) 
hours after receiving notice in an effort to resolve the dispute. (In the event there is a 
dispute between local unions affiliated with the same International Union, the decision of 
the General President, or his/her designee, as the intemal jurisdictional authority of that 
International Union, shall consfitute a find and binding decision and determination as to' 
the jurisdiction of work.) 

b. ) If no settlement is achieved subsequent to the preceding Paragraph, the matter shall be 
referred to the Chicago & Cook County Building & Construction Trades Council., which shall 
meet with the affected trades within forty-eight (48) hours subsequent to receiving notice. An 
agreement reached at this Step shall be final and binding.' 

c. ) If no settlement agreements is reached during the proceedings contemplated by Paragraph "a" 
or "b" above', the matter shall be immediately referred (o the Joint Conference Board, 
established by the Standard Agreement between the Construction Employers' Association and 
the Chicago & Cook County Building & Construction Trades Council, which may be 
amended from time to time, for final and binding resolution of said dispute. Said Standard 
Agreement is attached hereto as Appendix "B" and specifically incorporated into this 
Agreement. 

• t 
12. This Agreement shall be incorporated into and become part of the collective bargaining 

agreements between the Unions signatory hereto and contractors and subcontractors. In 
the event of any inconsistency between this Agreement and any collective bargaining 
agreement, the terms of this Agreement shall supersede and prevail except for ail work 
performed under the NT Articles of Agreement, the National Stack/Chimney Agreement, 
the National Cooling Tower Agreement, all instrument calibrafion work and loop 
checking shall be performed under the terms of the UA/IBEW Joint National Agreement 
for instrument and Control Systems Technicians, and the National Agreement of the 
International Union of Elevator Constructors with the exception of the content and 
subject matter of Articles V, VI and VH of the AFL-CIO's Building & Construction 
Trades Department model Project Labor Agreement. 

13. The parties agree that in the implementation and administration of this Agreement, it is 
vitally necessary to maintain effective and immediate communication so as to minimize 
the potential of labor relatfons disputes arising out of this Agreement. To that end, each 
party hereto agrees to designate, in writing, a representative to whom problems can be 



directed which may arise during the term of this Agreement. Within forty-eight (48) 
hours after notice of the existence of any problem, representatives of each party shall 
meet to discuss and, where possible, resolve such problems. The representative of the 
sTgnaTory unions"shairi3e T1iomas'Villanova, o of the Chicago & 
Cook County Building & Construction Trades Council. The representative of Owner 
shall be the Corporation Counsel or his/her designee. 

14. If any provision, section, subsection or other portion of this Agreement shall be 
determined by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable 
in whole or in part, and such determination shall become final, such provision or portion 
shall be deemed to be severed or limited, but only to the extent required to render the 
remaining provisions and portions of this Agreement enforceable. This Agreement, as 
thus amended, shall be enforced so as to give effect to the intention of the parties insofar 
as that is possible. In addition, the parties hereby expressly empower a court of competent 
jurisdiction to modify any term or provision of this Agreement to the extent necessary to 
comply with existing law and to enforce this Agreement as modified. 

15. Owner and General Contractor, on behalf of themselves and their contractors and 
subcontractors agree that the applicable substance abuse policy (i.e., drug, alcohol, etc.) 
applicable to the employees working on any covered Project shall be that as contained, or 
otherwise provided for, in the area-wide collective bargaining agreements attached at 
Appendix "A" to this Agreement. Nothing in the foregoing shall limit the Owners and/or 
General Contractor, its contractors or subcontractors from instituting its own substance 
abuse policy governing other employees performing work on a Project not otherwise 
covered under this Agreement. In the event there is no substance abuse policy in the 
applicable collective bargaining agreement, the polity adopted by the Owners and/or 
General Contractor may apply. ,• 

16. The parties recognize a desire to facilitate the entry into the building and construction 
trades of veterans who are interested in careers in the building and construction industry. 
The parties agree to utilize the services of the- Center for Military Recruitment, 
Assessment and Veterans Employment (hereinafter referred to as the "Center") and the 
Center's Helmets to Hardhats" program to service as a resource-for preliminary 
orientation, assessment of construction aptitude, referral to apprenticeship programs or 
hiring halls, counseling and mentoring, support network, employment opportunities.aijd 
other needs as identified by the parties. The parties also agree to coordinate with the 
Center to create and maintain an integrated database of veterans interested in working on 
this project and of apprenticeship and employment opportunities for these Projects. To 
the extent permitted by law, the parties will give appropriate credit to such veterans for 
bona fide, provable past experience, in the building and construction industry. 

The parties recognize the importance of facilitating the goals and objectives of the 
Apprenticeship & Training Initiative agreed to by the parties in separate collective 
bargaining agreements applicable to employees of the Owner. Additionally, parties agree 
to incorporate the duties and responsibilities associated with the Supplemental Addendum 
to the Multi-Project Labor Agreement between the signatory labor organizations and the 
Chicago Public Schools attached hereto in Appendix "C" and incorporated herein. 
Towards these ends, the undersigned labor organizations will assist and cooperate with 
the Owner, the Chicago Public Schools, City Colleges and contractors in monitoring and 
enforcing the foregoing commitments, including providing relevant information 
requested by the Owner for the purpose of such monitoring and enforcement, including 



the information provided for in Paragraph 3(E) of the'Supplemental Addendum with 
CPS. Upon execution of this Agreement, representatives of the Owner and the Chicago 
Building Trades Council will immediately meet for the purpose of establishing the 
specific'mechanism by whfchlhiTinfbmiatiofi will be~gâ  reported: 

The parties hereto agree and acknowledge that the commitments set forth herein, 
including those in the attached Appendix "C" are interdependent. In the event the goals 
and commitments set forth in Appendix "C" are not realized, the City shall bring this to 
the attention of the Chicago Building Trades Council ("Council"), and the parties shall 
immediately meet for the purpose of identifying the cause(s) of said failure and 
implement necessary measures to remedy the failure. Should the Council's affiliate 
members refuse to impleiiient measures reasonably necessary to realize these goals and 
commitments, the City may terminate this Agreement subsequent to January 13, 2013. If, 
as of June I, 2012, the City believes that the Council's affiliate members have failed to 
implement measures reasonably necessary to realize these goals and commitments, the 
City may at that time deliver to the Council formal written notice of intent to terminate 
this Agreement on January 1, 2013. Upon deliverance of such notice, the parties shall 
immediately meet to craft and implement additional measures to remedy such failure. If 
the parties are unsuccessful in implementing satisfactory measures, the City may 
implement said notice of termination on January 1,2013. 

The parties acknowledge the Residency requirement for employees of contractors and 
subcontractoi-s in the standard City of Chicago construction contract. The parties also 
agree to cooperatively work and monitor compliance with these requirements and to work 
cooperatively to facilitate and work in good faith to the achievement of said required 
Residency provision including union attendance at pre-bid conferences with prospective 
contractors and subcontractors as well as other reasonable undertakings to demonstrate 
progress in this regard. 

17. The parties agree that contractors and subcontractors working under the provisions of this 
Agreement shall be required to strive to utilize the maximum number of apprentices on 
said Project as permitted under the applicable collective bargaining agreement as 
contained in Appendix "A". 

18. This document, with each of .the Attachments, constitutes the entire agreement of the 
parties and may not be modified or changed except by the subsequent written agreement 
ofthe parties. 

19. All parties represent that they have the full legal authority to enter into this Agreement. 

The undersigned, as the Owner and Labor Organizations on the Project, agree to all of the terms 
and conditions contained in this Agreement. 

Dated this the 9"' day of February, 2011 in Chicago, Cook County, Illinois. 

On behalf of Owner: 



Corporation Counsel 

Duly Authorized Officer of the City of Chicago 

On behalf of 

(Insert Name of Labor Organization) 

Its Duly Authorized Officer 



SECTION 11. Filing. The City Clerk is hereby ordered and directed to file in the Office 
of the County Clerk of Cook County, Illinois (the "County Clerk"), in accordance with Section 27-
75 of the Act, a certified copy of this ordinance containing an accurate map of the Area and a 
copy of the public hearing notice attached as Exhibit 4. The City Clerk is hereby further ordered 
and directed to file in the Office of the Recorder of Deeds of Cook County, in accordance with 
Section 27-40 of the Act, a certified copy of this ordinance containing a description of the Area, 
within 60 days of the effective date of this ordinance. In addition, the City Clerk is hereby further 
ordered and directed to file in the Office of the County Clerk,, in accordance with Section 27-75 
of the Act, a certified copy of this ordinance on or prior to December 30, 2014, and the County 
Clerk shall thereafter extend for collection together with all other taxes to be levied by the City, 
the Services Tax herein provided for, said Services Tax to., be extended for collection by the 
County Clerk for the tax year 2014 against all the taxable property within the Area, the amount 
of the Services Tax herein levied to be in addition to and in excess of all other taxes to be levied 
and extended against all taxable property within the Area. " 

SECTION 12. Conflict. This ordinance shall control over any provision of any other 
ordinance, resolution, motion or order in conflict with this; ordinance, to the extent of such 
conflict. 

SECTION 13. Publication. This ordinance shall be published by the City Clerk, in 
special pamphlet form, and made available in her office for public inspection and distribution to 
members ofthe public who may wish to avail themselves of a copy of this ordinance. 

SECTION 14. Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect 10 days after its passage 
and publication. 
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